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OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA 
Notice is hereby given that the Finance Committee of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin will hold 
a regular or special meeting as indicated on the date, time and location given below. 


 


Meeting of the:  


Date /Time: 
Location: 
 
 


 
 
Members: 


FINANCE COMMITTEE OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON  
Tuesday, May 25, 2021, 6:00 pm  


  This is a teleconference meeting via GoToMeeting 
Access with a computer, tablet or smartphone via GoToMeeting - 
https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/730444597 
You may also join by phone using dial-in number 1 877 309 2073 
Access code 730-444-597 
 
Brett Schumacher (Chair), Lisa Reeves (Vice Chair), Ozzie Doom, Regina Hirsch, 
Michael Engelberger, Joey Neigum and Mayor Tim Swadley (ex-officio) 
   


Item # AGENDA 
1  Call to Order 
2  Communications 
3  Reports 


• April Treasurer’s Report 
• Contingency Report 
• April 30, 2021 Financial Statements 
• April 30, 2021 YTD CIP Report 


 
COMMITTEE BUSINESS 
4 Approval of the May 11, 2021 Finance Committee Minutes 
 
5 Acknowledge receipt of the 2020 City of Stoughton Audit and Management 


Letter 
 
6 Discussion and possible action regarding the City of Stoughton funding 50% of 


the installation of door access controls at the Youth Center 
 
7 Discussion and possible action regarding replacing the Stoughton Police 


Department’s Traffic Speed Board utilizing contingency funds 
 
8 Discussion and possible action regarding investigating the waiving or delaying 


of certain license and permit fees  
 
 
 
 
 



https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/730444597





 FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS  
 
- Future Treatment of Costs Eligible for Special Assessments 
- Riverfront Purchase and Developer Agreement 
- HATS Request 


 
   ADJOURNMENT  
 
 
Any person wishing to attend the meeting, whom because of a disability, requires special 
accommodation, should contact the City Clerk’s Office at (608) 873-6692 at least 24 hours before 
the scheduled meeting time so appropriate arrangements can be made. In addition, any person 
wishing to speak or have their comments heard but does not have access to the internet should 
also contact the City Clerk’s Office at the number above at least 24 hours before the scheduled 
meeting so appropriate arrangements can be made.  
 
NOTE:  AN EXPANDED MEETING MAY CONSTITUTE A QUORUM OF THE COUNCIL. 








BANK RECONCILIATION FOR STOUGHTON CITY 1/4Page
:


05/18/2021 07:33 AM
User: JAMIN
DB: Stoughton


Bank 3 (PRIMARY CHECKING)
FROM 04/01/2021 TO 04/30/2021
Reconciliation Record ID: 199


421,141.75 Add: Journal Entries/Other
(776,629.59)Less: Payroll Disbursements


(1,004,404.34)Less: Cash Disbursements
1,674,181.65 Add: Cash Receipts
1,960,514.94 Beginning GL Balance:


(512,637.51)Add: Miscellaneous Transactions


2,058.76 04/30/2021 Deposit ID: 2903
886,128.22 04/29/2021 Deposit ID: 2902
21,976.91 05/03/2021 *Deposit ID: 2904


775.46 05/04/2021 *Deposit ID: 2906
0.00 CREDIT CARD PAYMENTS RCD
0.00 PAYROLL REMITTANCE IN TRANSIT
0.00 EBC DISCREPENCY - CORRECT NEXT MONTH


277.20 DMV IN TRANSIT
961.76 DELTA DENTAL PAYMENTS IN TRANSIT


45,979.10 CREDIT CARD PAYMENT IN TRANSIT
0.00 STRIPE IN TRANSIT


(10,116.68)WEB PAYMENT IN TRANSIT
0.00 EBC PAYROLL WITHDRAWL IN TRANIST - END OF MONTH
0.00 EBC FEE IN TRANSIT - END OF MONTH


(8,481.60)GREAT WEST PAYROLL DEDUCTION IN TRANSIT
(1,724.08)OPERA HOUSE CREDIT CARD IN TRANSIT


0.00 ECHECK & ACH IN TRANSIT
0.00 WRS PAYMENT IN TRANSIT


(582.80)POINT AND PAY IN TRANSIT


937,252.25 


2,274,804.41 Ending GL Balance:


1,983,955.79 Ending Bank Balance:


Add: Deposits in Transit


Less:  Outstanding Checks


Amount NameCheck Number   Check Date


AP Checks


77.00 SUSAN STRANDLIE68933   08/27/2020
200.00 KELSEY MILES68994   09/10/2020
40.00 ERIC OLSEN69271   10/15/2020
70.00 NATHAN GATES69627   12/10/2020
75.00 SUSAN STRANDLIE69683   12/10/2020
52.37 BRIAN OR KARRON CONGER69762   12/31/2020
19.25 ALFRED OR MARILYN SEIER69818   12/31/2020
15.95 LEAH ZAHREN69839   12/31/2020


199.96 TODD OR NOELLE VAN DE KREEKE69918   01/07/2021
17.00 CHERYL ERICKSON69947   01/14/2021
89.31 MATTHEW OR KRISTINE HORABIK69960   01/14/2021







BANK RECONCILIATION FOR STOUGHTON CITY 2/4Page
:


05/18/2021 07:33 AM
User: JAMIN
DB: Stoughton


Bank 3 (PRIMARY CHECKING)
FROM 04/01/2021 TO 04/30/2021
Reconciliation Record ID: 199


Amount NameCheck Number   Check Date


AP Checks


14.99 BRICE WALKER70067   01/21/2021
276.48 TOWN OF MADISON 70168   02/04/2021
26.00 RANDI STILLER70209   02/11/2021


7,504.00 SOUTH CENTRAL LIBRARY SYSTEM70340   02/25/2021
77.00 SUSAN STRANDLIE70347   02/25/2021


110.00 FBINAA WISCONSIN CHAPTER70418   03/11/2021
126.00 ANNE PAPPADAKIS70435   03/11/2021


12,926.69 US BANK CORPORATE PAYMENT SYSTEMS1835   03/26/2021
0.00 VOID1836   03/26/2021 VOIDED 05/11/2021
0.00 VOID1837   03/26/2021 VOIDED 05/11/2021
0.00 VOID1838   03/26/2021 VOIDED 05/11/2021
0.00 VOID1839   03/26/2021 VOIDED 05/11/2021
0.00 VOID1840   03/26/2021 VOIDED 05/11/2021
0.00 VOID1841   03/26/2021 VOIDED 05/11/2021
0.00 VOID1842   03/26/2021 VOIDED 05/11/2021


14.86 HILLARY GRANT70526   04/01/2021
21,754.71 NORTH SHORE BANK FSB70543   04/01/2021


138.00 UWHC70558   04/01/2021
127.50 PICK-N-SAVE70583   04/08/2021


17,471.91 US BANK CORPORATE PAYMENT SYSTEMS1849   04/09/2021
0.00 VOID1850   04/09/2021 VOIDED 05/14/2021
0.00 VOID1851   04/09/2021 VOIDED 05/14/2021
0.00 VOID1852   04/09/2021 VOIDED 05/14/2021
0.00 VOID1853   04/09/2021 VOIDED 05/14/2021
0.00 VOID1854   04/09/2021 VOIDED 05/14/2021
0.00 VOID1855   04/09/2021 VOIDED 05/14/2021
0.00 VOID1856   04/09/2021 VOIDED 05/14/2021
0.00 VOID1857   04/09/2021 VOIDED 05/14/2021
0.00 VOID1858   04/09/2021 VOIDED 05/14/2021


2,375.00 HAMACHER LAWN CARE SERVICE LLC70623   04/15/2021
168.82 ROLF HANSEN70624   04/15/2021
140.00 INTOXIMETERS INC.70625   04/15/2021 VOIDED 05/17/2021
80.00 MATC70637   04/15/2021


299.95 TRUCK SPECIALTY & DETAIL70667   04/15/2021
35.00 UWHC70669   04/15/2021


838.00 XYLEM WATER SOLUTIONS U.S.A. INC.70678   04/15/2021
1,171.94 DANE COUNTY TREASURER - LAND C70695   04/22/2021


300.00 CHRISTINA DOLLHAUSEN70697   04/22/2021
70.00 CHARLES ERICKSON70701   04/22/2021
50.00 FIRST LUTHERAN CHURCH70704   04/22/2021
70.00 ANNE JONES70714   04/22/2021


2,090.49 LAKESIDE INTERNATIONAL LLC70720   04/22/2021
50.00 LAKEVIEW CHURCH70721   04/22/2021
70.00 MARTIN LAMERS70722   04/22/2021







BANK RECONCILIATION FOR STOUGHTON CITY 3/4Page
:


05/18/2021 07:33 AM
User: JAMIN
DB: Stoughton


Bank 3 (PRIMARY CHECKING)
FROM 04/01/2021 TO 04/30/2021
Reconciliation Record ID: 199


Amount NameCheck Number   Check Date


AP Checks


70.00 JENNIFER LAPORTE70724   04/22/2021
80.00 CORINNE MC GEEVER70728   04/22/2021


250.00 BLAINE MCQUINN70730   04/22/2021
17.38 BARBARA NATVIG-GOWAN70732   04/22/2021


300.00 NAVSURFWARCENDIV CRANE70733   04/22/2021
327.27 PERFORMANCE FOODSERVICE TPC70738   04/22/2021
695.37 PRIZEPROMOS70739   04/22/2021
70.00 CATHY RIGDON70744   04/22/2021


8,681.00 STAINLESS & REPAIR INC70748   04/22/2021
70.00 ROBERT STECHSCHULTE70749   04/22/2021
70.00 LAURA STOKSTAD70750   04/22/2021
77.00 SUSAN STRANDLIE70754   04/22/2021
77.00 AARON TECHE70759   04/22/2021
70.00 KRISTY THALACKER70760   04/22/2021
50.00 UNITED METHODIST CHURCH70763   04/22/2021
27.40 ANDREW JOHNSON1817   04/29/2021
19.58 ALEX MATHISON1818   04/29/2021


117.50 KATIE MUNLEY1819   04/29/2021
19.58 JOE SHERVEY1820   04/29/2021
19.58 JUDY WALLANDER1821   04/29/2021


4,399.92 3 RIVERS BILLING INC70770   04/29/2021
1,722.00 5 ALARM70771   04/29/2021


76.53 AIRGAS USA LLC70772   04/29/2021
15.00 CARISSA ALT70773   04/29/2021


516.00 BOARDMAN & CLARK  LLP70774   04/29/2021
14,053.00 BS&A SOFTWARE70775   04/29/2021


15.00 MIYAH CARBAJAL70776   04/29/2021
1,660.83 DANE COUNTY CLERK70777   04/29/2021


290.00 DANE COUNTY CLERK OF COURTS70778   04/29/2021
705.00 DUCKSOUP SIGNS & DESIGN70779   04/29/2021
42.00 FOSDAL BAKERY LLC70780   04/29/2021


331.33 GALL'S INC70781   04/29/2021
599.97 HANSON ELECTRONICS70782   04/29/2021
73.00 HANSON PEST MANAGEMENT 2 INC70783   04/29/2021


300.00 COURTNEY HARTMAN70784   04/29/2021
799.50 JEFFERSON FIRE & SAFETY INC70785   04/29/2021
128.83 KROGER70786   04/29/2021
404.69 NATIONAL GOVERNMENT SERVICES70787   04/29/2021


2,350.25 NO SHORTS ELECTRIC LLC70788   04/29/2021
102.00 O'BRION AGENCY LLC70789   04/29/2021
20.00 QUADIENT INC70790   04/29/2021


150.00 SAUK COUNTY SHERIFF'S DEPARTMENT70791   04/29/2021
17,283.06 STAFFORD ROSENBAUM LLP70792   04/29/2021







BANK RECONCILIATION FOR STOUGHTON CITY 4/4Page
:


05/18/2021 07:33 AM
User: JAMIN
DB: Stoughton


Bank 3 (PRIMARY CHECKING)
FROM 04/01/2021 TO 04/30/2021
Reconciliation Record ID: 199


Amount NameCheck Number   Check Date


AP Checks


384.00 STATE BAR OF WISCONSIN70793   04/29/2021
4,747.00 STREICHER'S70794   04/29/2021


18.38 TOTAL WATER TREATMENT SYS INC70795   04/29/2021
409.65 UHC MEDICARE COMPLETE70796   04/29/2021
160.00 WISCONSIN MEDICAL SUPPLIES LLC70797   04/29/2021


AmountNameCheck Number   Check Date


Payroll Checks


1,667.34 WEGNER, SCOTT69840   12/29/2020


133,766.12 Total - 104 Outstanding Checks:
2,274,804.41 Adjusted Bank Balance


0.00 Unreconciled Difference:


DATE:REVIEWED BY:







RECEIPT REGISTER FOR CITY OF STOUGHTON 1/41Page:05/18/2021 07:36 AM
User: JAMIN
DB: Stoughton


Post Date from 04/01/2021 - 04/30/2021   Completed Receipts


 AmountReceived OfWkstnCashierDateReceipt #   
  Distribution   Description


SCOTT, JESSICAJUDI04/01/2021100053118   C
 17.00  32136DOG
 35.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE 66729914


52.00 


MATZ, JAMES & KAYJUDI04/01/2021100053119   C
 17.00  32137DOG


BASCO, KATHRYN/JOHNJUDI04/01/2021100053120   C
 17.00  32138DOG
 17.00  32139DOG


34.00 


LAWRENCE, ANGELAJUDI04/01/2021100053121   C
 17.00  32140DOG


LOPEZ, ALRICJUDI04/01/2021100053122   C
 17.00  32141DOG
 17.00  32142DOG
 17.00  32143DOG


51.00 


FALCH, HANNAH/TOM JR. JUDI04/01/2021100053123   C
 17.00  32144DOG


SHERIDAN, NYSSA & DUSTINJUDI04/01/2021100053124   C
 17.00  32145DOG
 35.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE 66739914


52.00 


MAYNARD, CODY & JESSICAJUDI04/01/2021100053125   C
 17.00  32146DOG
 35.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE 66749914


52.00 


GORDEN, MARY ELLEN/DARYLJUDI04/01/2021100053126   C
 17.00  32147DOG


NONN, MELJUDI04/01/2021100053127   C
 75.00  ADDITIONS PLAN REVIEW401
 75.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT405
 50.00  ELECTRICAL PERMIT402


200.00 


NONN, MELJUDI04/01/2021100053128   C
 75.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT SHED405


NONN, MELJUDI04/01/2021100053129   C
 50.00  ELECTRICAL PERMIT402
 50.00  HEATING PERMIT (HVAC)404
 50.00  PLUMBING PERMIT403
 75.00  BUILDING PERMITS401


225.00 


HANSEN, KEVINJUDI04/01/2021100053130   C
 75.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT FENCE405


MOLITOR, CHRISTOPHERJUDI04/01/2021100053131   C







RECEIPT REGISTER FOR CITY OF STOUGHTON 2/41Page:05/18/2021 07:36 AM
User: JAMIN
DB: Stoughton


Post Date from 04/01/2021 - 04/30/2021   Completed Receipts


 AmountReceived OfWkstnCashierDateReceipt #   
  Distribution   Description


 75.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT FENCING405


RIECHERS, MEGANKATIE04/01/2021100053133   C
 187.00  BAILS/FINES BE674476-5301


MUELLER PUGH, WANDAKATIE04/01/2021100053134   C
 25.00  BAILS/FINES BB058277-2 301


PAVLOVICH, BONNIEKATIE04/01/2021100053135   C
 10.00  BAILS/FINES BF106779-1301


ROBINSON, LEVELLEKATIE04/01/2021100053136   C
 187.00  BAILS/FINES C782Q1PTK9301


JACKSON OBAZEE, TANIKAKATIE04/01/2021100053137   C
 187.00  BAILS/FINES C782Q1PTKB301


AULIK, DENISELYDIA04/01/2021100053139   C
 17.00  32148DOG
 17.00  32149DOG


34.00 


GOLDADE, TOD JR.LYDIA04/01/2021100053140   C
 21.00  32150DOG


MULLEN, THOMAS & CHARLOTTECANDEE04/01/2021100053141   C
 400.00  FOOD PANTRY501


MYLREA, JOYCECANDEE04/01/2021100053142   C
 50.00  FOOD PANTRY501


PIZZA HUTCANDEE04/01/2021100053143   C
 100.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-BEER901
 100.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-WINE901
 20.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-PUB901


220.00 


CHENOWETH, NICHOLAS/ALLISONLYDIA04/01/2021100053144   C
 17.00  32151DOG
 35.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE-166759914


52.00 


KRIESER, STEVELYDIA04/01/2021100053146   C
 17.00  32152DOG
 17.00  32153DOG
 17.00  32154DOG


51.00 


WOHLFERT, DAN/MILLER JESSICALYDIA04/01/2021100053147   C
 17.00  32155DOG
 17.00  32156DOG
 21.00  32157DOG


55.00 


DANE COUNTY HUMAN SERVICESDEBBIE04/01/2021100053148   C
 799.17  0000003851MR


WARWICK, MICHAELLYDIA04/01/2021100053149   C
 17.00  32158DOG
 35.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE-166769914







RECEIPT REGISTER FOR CITY OF STOUGHTON 3/41Page:05/18/2021 07:36 AM
User: JAMIN
DB: Stoughton


Post Date from 04/01/2021 - 04/30/2021   Completed Receipts


 AmountReceived OfWkstnCashierDateReceipt #   
  Distribution   Description


52.00 


SWENOR, HEIDICANDEE04/01/2021100053150   C
 50.00  OPERATORS/PROVISIONAL902


MARSDEN, SETHKATIE04/01/2021100053151   C
 25.00  BAILS/FINES PAYMENT PLAN301


JENNIFER04/02/2021100053152   C
 1,160.00  YARD WASTE FEES1202


JENNIFER04/02/2021100053153   C
 205.00  YARD WASTE FEES1202


FOULK, NICKJUDI04/02/2021100053154   C
 75.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT405
 75.00  BUILDING PERMITS401


150.00 


TREMLETT, STEPHENJUDI04/02/2021100053155   C
 1,625.00  CSM AND PLATS405


LANDINI, JASONJUDI04/02/2021100053156   C
 75.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT405


MALICKI MATTHEWJUDI04/02/2021100053157   C
 22.00  32159DOG
 35.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE 66779914
 22.00  32160DOG
 17.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE 66789914


96.00 


MILLER, RYANJUDI04/02/2021100053158   C
 35.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE 66799914


ZWEEP, MIKEJUDI04/02/2021100053159   C
 75.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT405


CAMPA VALENZUELA, MARTIN FRANCISCOMERRI04/02/2021100053160   C
 124.00  BAILS/FINES BG709704-2301
 124.00  BAILS/FINES  BG709702-0301


248.00 


PARKS, JASONMERRI04/02/2021100053161   C
 324.50  DMV FEES303


EUGSTER, ISAACCANDEE04/02/2021100053162   C
 50.00  OPERATORS/PROVISIONAL902


MUSSO, DALECANDEE04/02/2021100053163   C
 75.00  OPERATORS/PROVISIONAL902


BEARDMORE, DANIEL/FOLBERG, KATRINALYDIA04/02/2021100053164   C
 17.00  32161DOG


FOREE, KRISTINLYDIA04/02/2021100053165   C
 22.00  32162DOG
 22.00  32163DOG
 35.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE-166809914
 17.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE-166819914


96.00 
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User: JAMIN
DB: Stoughton


Post Date from 04/01/2021 - 04/30/2021   Completed Receipts


 AmountReceived OfWkstnCashierDateReceipt #   
  Distribution   Description


MOORE, ROBERT/LYDIALYDIA04/02/2021100053166   C
 17.00  32164DOG


GIESEN LAW OFFICESKATIE04/02/2021100053167   C
 19.00  MISC REVENUES LAMPMAN CONT304


ALLEN, SARAHMERRI04/02/2021100053168   C
 122.00  DMV FEES303


PETERS, ECKARDMERRI04/02/2021100053169   C
 124.00  BAILS/FINES BF106904-0301


FLYNN, VICTORIA DEBBIE04/02/2021100053170   C
 32.68  CHARGE FROM CC 3-26-20219901


BRYANT FOUNDATION DEBBIE04/02/2021100053171   C
 60,000.00  DONATION 9901


MICHIGAN WISCONSIN PIPELINE COMPANYDEBBIE04/02/2021100053176   C
 2,387.08  0511-093-8111-6/7037-10SPEC
 1,951.70  0511-093-8121-4/7037-10SPEC


4,338.78 


LIBRARY DEPOSIT DEBBIE04/02/2021100053177   C
 1,630.23  217-DESIGNATED DONATION704


GANSHERT, DENNIS & MARY DEBBIE04/02/2021100053178   C
 1,750.00  0511-053-6307-2/7055-20SPEC


ARMSTRONG REVOCABLE LIVING TRUSTCANDEE04/05/2021100053172   C
 25.00  FOOD PANTRY501


ANONYMOUSCANDEE04/05/2021100053173   C
 20.00  FOOD PANTRY501


FRIDLEY, CHARLOTTECANDEE04/05/2021100053174   C
 100.00  FOOD PANTRY501


GULLICKSON, RICHARDCANDEE04/05/2021100053175   C
 75.00  OPERATORS/PROVISIONAL902


RIVERA, SAMANTHALYDIA04/05/2021100053179   C
 21.00  32165DOG
 35.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE-166829914


56.00 


DAN PRUEHERJENNIFER04/05/2021100053180   C
 25.00  STREET OPENING1201


KENRICK, JENIFER & EDWARDLYDIA04/05/2021100053181   C
 21.00  32166DOG


KOCH, MATTHEWKATIE04/05/2021100053182   C
 15.00  PARKING FINES 37655302


WESSEL LEHKER & FUMELLEKATIE04/05/2021100053183   C
 16.00  MISC REVENUES304


WESSEL LEHKER & FUMELLEKATIE04/05/2021100053184   C
 16.00  MISC REVENUES304


MENDOZA MOREL, ZAIRA X KATIE04/05/2021100053185   C
 252.50  BAILS/FINES 301


JONES, ANNE MKATIE04/05/2021100053186   C
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User: JAMIN
DB: Stoughton


Post Date from 04/01/2021 - 04/30/2021   Completed Receipts


 AmountReceived OfWkstnCashierDateReceipt #   
  Distribution   Description


 98.80  BAILS/FINES BE675451-0301
 98.80  BAILS/FINES BE675452-1301


197.60 


BLIBO, RUTHKATIE04/05/2021100053187   C
 124.00  BAILS/FINES BF106861-6301


UNZICKER, AMANDALISA04/06/2021100053188   C
 120.00  PARKING FINES302


SCHWERSINSKE, TIMOTHYLISA04/06/2021100053189   C
 60.00  PARKING FINES302


SCHWERSINSKE, TIMOTHYLISA04/06/2021100053190   C
 60.00  PARKING FINES302


HOWLAND, KELLYLISA04/06/2021100053191   C
 20.00  PARKING FINES302


SMITH, BENJAMINLISA04/06/2021100053192   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES302


BROWN, KEONLISA04/06/2021100053193   C
 124.00  BAILS/FINES301


BROWNING, JAMESLISA04/06/2021100053194   C
 100.00  BAILS/FINES301


STATE OF WILISA04/06/2021100053195   C
 20.00  TO RECORD COURT TRIP DEPOSITSCOURTTRI


3 RIVERSLISA04/06/2021100053196   C
 5,238.17  3 RIVERS EMS DEPOSIT3RIV


3 RIVERSLISA04/06/2021100053197   C
 5,710.24  3 RIVERS EMS DEPOSIT3RIV


3 RIVERSLISA04/06/2021100053198   C
 3,595.34  3 RIVERS EMS DEPOSIT3RIV


STATE OF WILISA04/06/2021100053199   C
 251,345.32  GENERAL TRANSPORTATION AID 9901


STATE OF WILISA04/06/2021100053200   C
 12,988.80  CONNECTING HIGHWAY AID9901


GUNDERSON FUNERAL HOME DEBBIE04/06/2021100053201   C
 500.00  THEA MAE HOLTAN BURIAL 9901


ROATCH, REBECCAKATIE04/06/2021100053202   C
 10.00  BAILS/FINES BF106857-2301


BOYD, JASMYNEKATIE04/06/2021100053203   C
 92.50  BAILS/FINES C782VKHWS7301


NELSON INDUSTRIES, INC DEBBIE04/06/2021100053204   C
 2,031.75  0511-072-8085-2/7057-15SPEC


WOPZT, JONATHAN & MARIACANDEE04/06/2021100053205   C
 50.00  FOOD PANTRY501


FITZPATRICK SELECT DEBBIE04/06/2021100053206   C
 35.00  SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REQUEST907


WAL-MART STORES EAST, LLPCANDEE04/06/2021100053207   C
 100.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-BEER901
 500.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-LIQ.901
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Post Date from 04/01/2021 - 04/30/2021   Completed Receipts
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 20.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-PUB.901
 100.00  MISC LICENSES-CIGARETTE906
 70.00  MISC LICENSES-AMUS. DEVICES906


790.00 


LAZ BISTRO & BARLISA04/06/2021100053208   C
 90.46  DELINQUENT PERSONAL PROPERTY9907
 2.71  INT DELINQUENT PERSONAL PROP9908


93.17 


THE PRINTING HOUSELISA04/06/2021100053209   C
 176.82  DELINQUENT PERSONAL PROPERTY9907
 5.31  INT DELINQUENT PERSONAL PROP9908


182.13 


HOMESTEAD TITLE DEBBIE04/06/2021100053210   C
 35.00  SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REQUEST907


EDGE ONELISA04/06/2021100053211   C
 63.75  SERVICE SOLUTIONS 58-323449907
 26.71  CASHROOM SOLUTIONS 58-321089907
 234.39  EDGE-ONE 58-304379907
 9.75  INT DELINQUENT PERSONAL PROP9908


334.60 


THE HILLMAN GROUPLISA04/06/2021100053212   C
 2.06  DELINQUENT PERSONAL PROPERTY9907
 0.04  INT DELINQUENT PERSONAL PROP9908


2.10 


SHIVAM HOSPITALITY LISA04/06/2021100053213   C
 499.61  DELINQUENT PERSONAL PROPERTY9907
 14.99  INT DELINQUENT PERSONAL PROP9908


514.60 


CHICAGO TITLE DEBBIE04/06/2021100053214   C
 35.00  SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REQUEST907


VERIZON STORELISA04/06/2021100053215   C
 149.50  DELINQUENT PERSONAL PROPERTY9907
 31.40  INT DELINQUENT PERSONAL PROP9908


180.90 


DUNKIRK ELECTRICLISA04/06/2021100053216   C
 1,111.56  DELINQUENT PERSONAL PROPERTY9907
 534.63  INT DELINQUENT PERSONAL PROP9908


1,646.19 


MADISON COLLEGELISA04/06/2021100053217   C
 5.01  2019 P.P. CHARGEBACK9901


WRIGHT, RANDY/DEBRALYDIA04/06/2021100053218   C
 17.00  32167DOG


JENNIFER04/07/2021100053219   C
 1,720.00  YARD WASTE FEES1202


JENNIFER04/07/2021100053221   C
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 45.00  ELECTRONIC RECYCLING FEE1205


3 RIVERSLISA04/07/2021100053222   C
 152.10  3 RIVERS EMS DEPOSIT3RIV


STOUGHTON AREA SCHOOL DISTRICTLISA04/07/2021100053223   C
 343.97   PERSONAL PROPERTY CHARGEBACK9901


LA CANTINA, LLCCANDEE04/07/2021100053224   C
 100.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-BEER901
 500.00  LIQUOR - RESERVE901
 20.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-PUB.901


620.00 


FORWARD DEVELOPMENT GROUP LLC-PHASE DEBBIE04/07/2021100053225   C
 535.22  0000003731MR


FORWARD DEVELOPMENT GROUP LLC-PHASE DEBBIE04/07/2021100053226   C
 295.65  0000003744MR


FORWARD DEVELOPMENT GROUP LLC-PHASE DEBBIE04/07/2021100053227   C
 3,101.03  0000003783MR


FORWARD DEVELOPMENT GROUP LLCDEBBIE04/07/2021100053228   C
 1,102.00  0000003746MR


FORWARD DEVELOPMENT GROUP LLCDEBBIE04/07/2021100053229   C
 228.00  0000003779MR


FORWARD DEVELOPMENT GROUP LLCDEBBIE04/07/2021100053230   C
 114.00  0000003819MR


FORWARD DEVELOPMENT GROUP LLC-PHASE DEBBIE04/07/2021100053231   C
 3,430.85  0000003800MR


FORWARD DEVELOPMENT GROUP LLC-PHASE DEBBIE04/07/2021100053232   C
 236.52  0000003831MR


BHOOMI LODGING LLCDEBBIE04/07/2021100053233   C
 193.50  0511-071-0670-2/7057-01SPEC


LEISKAU, PETER/JILLLYDIA04/07/2021100053234   C
 17.00  32168DOG


MOEN, BRENDALYDIA04/07/2021100053235   C
 17.00  32169DOG


JOHNSON, KENNETH DEBBIE04/07/2021100053236   C
 250.00  DONATION ALMOST LIVE 9901


KOPKES FRUIT OF THE BLOOM DEBBIE04/07/2021100053237   C
 250.00  DONATION ALMOST LIVE 9901


GOLBACH, GREGKATIE04/07/2021100053238   C
 80.00  PARKING FINES 37112302
 80.00  PARKING FINES 37116302


160.00 


PREFERRED TITLE DEBBIE04/07/2021100053239   C
 105.00  SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REQUEST907


HELSTAD, RICKDEBBIE04/07/2021100053241   C
 59.34  0000003847MR


JENKS, DAN DEBBIE04/07/2021100053242   C







RECEIPT REGISTER FOR CITY OF STOUGHTON 8/41Page:05/18/2021 07:36 AM
User: JAMIN
DB: Stoughton


Post Date from 04/01/2021 - 04/30/2021   Completed Receipts


 AmountReceived OfWkstnCashierDateReceipt #   
  Distribution   Description


 59.34  0000003848MR


REC DEPOSIT DEBBIE04/07/2021100053243   C
 200.00  PROGRAM FEES1001
 4,500.00  PROGRAM FEES1001
 50.00  INSTRUCTION FEES1003


4,750.00 


ACTIVE NETWORK DEBBIE04/07/2021100053244   C
 404.76  INSTRUCTION FEES1003
 18.00  PROGRAM FEES1001
 746.24  INSTRUCTION FEES1003
 464.00  INSTRUCTION FEES1003
 80.00  PROGRAM FEES1001
 299.99  INSTRUCTION FEES1003
 30.00  PROGRAM FEES1001
 748.01  INSTRUCTION FEES1003
 52.00  INSTRUCTION FEES1003
 275.00  INSTRUCTION FEES1003
 155.00  INSTRUCTION FEES1003
 (274.43) CREDIT CARD & TRANSACTION FEES1004


2,998.57 


ACTIVE NETWORK DEBBIE04/07/2021100053245   C
 40.00  AARON HUTCHINS SCHOLARSHIP FU1001
 325.00  INSTRUCTION FEES1003
 15.00  PROGRAM FEES1001
 29.00  INSTRUCTION FEES1003
 395.00  INSTRUCTION FEES1003
 410.00  PROGRAM FEES1001
 1,504.00  INSTRUCTION FEES1003
 120.00  PROGRAM FEES1001
 200.00  INSTRUCTION FEES1003
 52.00  INSTRUCTION FEES1003
 340.00  INSTRUCTION FEES1003
 840.00  INSTRUCTION FEES1003
 (335.27) CREDIT CARD & TRANSACTION FEES1004


3,934.73 


STOUGHTON UTILITIES DEBBIE04/07/2021100053248   C
 85,000.00  HULTS RD DEBT PAYMENT PRINC9901
 4,675.00  HULTS RD DEBT PAYMENT INTERES9901


89,675.00 


KWIK TRIPHOLLY04/08/2021100053240   C
 10.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE901


STATE OF WILISA04/08/2021100053246   C
 5,549.30  TO RECORD COURT TRIP DEPOSITSCOURTTRI


3 RIVERSLISA04/08/2021100053247   C
 585.93  3 RIVERS EMS DEPOSIT3RIV


SMOKEY'S AUTO BODYJUDY04/08/2021100053251   C
 20.00  PARKING FINES 38402302
 20.00  PARKING FINES 38403302


40.00 


METROPOLITAN REPORTING BUREAUJUDY04/08/2021100053253   C
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 1.00  MISC REVENUES304


ANGELL, ERIC/KRISTINALYDIA04/08/2021100053254   C
 17.00  32170DOG
 35.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE-166839914


52.00 


DON SWENSONJUDY04/08/2021100053255   C
 132.00  DMV FEES 636CRU303


MARSHALL, JACOBLYDIA04/08/2021100053256   C
 17.00  32171DOG


ELECTRICAL SOLUTIONS INCDESIRE04/08/2021100053257   C
 50.00  ELECTRICAL PERMIT402


ANTHONY WESLEYJUDY04/08/2021100053258   C
 288.50  DMV FEES303


AMANDA LONGLEYJUDY04/08/2021100053259   C
 10.00  BAILS/FINES BE675448-4301
 98.80  BAILS/FINES BE675449-5301


108.80 


KLUENDER, VIRJEANMASON04/08/2021100053260   C
 50.00  MISC. DONATION9901


FIRST LUTHERAN CHURCHMASON04/08/2021100053261   C
 2,500.00  MISC. DONATION9901


JUSTIN PICCOLOJUDY04/08/2021100053262   C
 297.00  DMV FEES ALD9487303


JONES, WESTLISA04/09/2021100053263   C
 124.00  BAILS/FINES301


JONES, WESTLISA04/09/2021100053264   C
 98.80  BAILS/FINES301


SETTERLUN, JOESPHLISA04/09/2021100053265   C
 98.80  BAILS/FINES301


STEINMETZ, TERESA & MARK JUDI04/09/2021100053266   C
 17.00  32172DOG
 17.00  32173DOG


34.00 


BUEHRING, KURT & CAROLINEJUDI04/09/2021100053267   C
 17.00  32174DOG
 35.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE 66849914
 17.00  32175DOG
 17.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE 66859914


86.00 


DOSKOCIL, ANGELA & KEVINJUDI04/09/2021100053268   C
 21.00  32176DOG


TERPSTRAKIMBERLY04/09/2021100053269   C
 256.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


PELLETTKIMBERLY04/09/2021100053270   C
 50.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801
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ELSNERKIMBERLY04/09/2021100053271   C
 50.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


JOHNSONKIMBERLY04/09/2021100053272   C
 100.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


BRIETZMANKIMBERLY04/09/2021100053273   C
 150.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


PELLETTKIMBERLY04/09/2021100053274   C
 50.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


STELLMACHERKIMBERLY04/09/2021100053275   C
 10.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


POINTKIMBERLY04/09/2021100053276   C
 12.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


KLUGKIMBERLY04/09/2021100053277   C
 8.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


UTKEKIMBERLY04/09/2021100053278   C
 115.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


PELLETTKIMBERLY04/09/2021100053279   C
 50.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


ORMONDKIMBERLY04/09/2021100053280   C
 100.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


MORRISKIMBERLY04/09/2021100053281   C
 50.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


EGGLESONKIMBERLY04/09/2021100053282   C
 190.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


HOMDROMKIMBERLY04/09/2021100053283   C
 184.11  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


THORNTONKIMBERLY04/09/2021100053284   C
 284.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


PELLETTKIMBERLY04/09/2021100053285   C
 50.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


KAROLUSKIMBERLY04/09/2021100053286   C
 76.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


AHLGRIMKIMBERLY04/09/2021100053287   C
 60.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


HORVATHKIMBERLY04/09/2021100053288   C
 180.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


HORVATHKIMBERLY04/09/2021100053289   C
 40.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


KLUGKIMBERLY04/09/2021100053290   C
 8.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


ELSNERKIMBERLY04/09/2021100053291   C
 55.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


DAVISKIMBERLY04/09/2021100053292   C
 95.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


KIMBERLY04/09/2021100053293   C
 1,149.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801
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BENTZLER, CAROLJUDI04/09/2021100053294   C
 17.00  32177DOG


WAUNAKEE REMODELINGDESIRE04/09/2021100053295   C
 50.00  ELECTRICAL PERMIT402
 50.00  PLUMBING PERMIT403
 175.00  BUILDING PERMITS401


275.00 


LIONESS CLUBCINDY04/09/2021100053296   C
 100.00  SENIORS IN NEED502


BAILEYCINDY04/09/2021100053297   C
 5.00  LOAN CLOSET806


SILBAUGHCINDY04/09/2021100053298   C
 25.00  LOAN CLOSET806


CARRANOCINDY04/09/2021100053299   C
 20.00  DONATIONS - SR CENTER803


MCGLYNNCINDY04/09/2021100053300   C
 20.00  DONATIONS - SR CENTER803


SIERCINDY04/09/2021100053301   C
 500.00  DONATIONS - SR CENTER803


CELLULAR RECYCLERCINDY04/09/2021100053302   C
 518.06  DONATIONS - SR CENTER803


BEALLCINDY04/09/2021100053303   C
 300.00  DONATIONS - SR CENTER803


CABLECINDY04/09/2021100053304   C
 9.00  NEWSLETTER804


VITENSE, STACYKATIE04/09/2021100053305   C
 95.00  PARKING FINES 34175302
 95.00  PARKING FINES 34265302
 60.00  PARKING FINES 34271302
 95.00  PARKING FINES 35734302
 60.00  PARKING FINES 36321302
 60.00  PARKING FINES 36764302
 60.00  PARKING FINES 36779302
 100.00  PARKING FINES 37454302
 60.00  PARKING FINES 37637 VITENSE302
 95.00  PARKING FINES 32647302
 95.00  PARKING FINES 32740302
 95.00  PARKING FINES 33793302
 95.00  PARKING FINES 33805302
 95.00  PARKING FINES 34309302
 95.00  PARKING FINES 34407302


1,255.00 


BREKKEN, RENEEKATIE04/09/2021100053306   C
 132.00  DMV FEES AFB3505303


3 RIVERSLISA04/12/2021100053307   C
 6,722.67  3 RIVERS EMS DEPOSIT3RIV


3 RIVERSLISA04/12/2021100053308   C
 14,819.02  3 RIVERS EMS DEPOSIT3RIV
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BEST PRACTICESLISA04/12/2021100053309   C
 42.71  DELINQUENT PERSONAL PROPERTY9907
 8.97  INT DELINQUENT PERSONAL PROP9908


51.68 


MERSHONIAN CIDERYCANDEE04/12/2021100053310   C
 20.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-PUB901


FETTER, SAMANTHAKATIE04/12/2021100053311   C
 184.06  DMV FEES 139TEY303


KWIK TRIP INCCANDEE04/12/2021100053312   C
 80.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-PUB901
 400.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-BEER901
 400.00  CIGARETTE903


880.00 


LAZ BISTRO & BARCANDEE04/12/2021100053313   C
 20.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-PUB.901


ELMER, ROBINCANDEE04/12/2021100053314   C
 75.00  OPERATORS/PROVISIONAL902


HACKER, MARYCANDEE04/12/2021100053315   C
 75.00  OPERATORS/PROVISIONAL902


STOUGHTON CHAMBER OF COMMERCEHOLLY04/12/2021100053316   C
 30.00  MISC LICENSES906


SMITHBACK, SCOTTKATIE04/12/2021100053317   C
 339.50  DMV FEES SL9917303


JENNIFER04/12/2021100053318   C
 750.00  YARD WASTE FEES1202


JENNIFER04/12/2021100053319   C
 500.00  YARD WASTE FEES1202


BETTS, TIFFANY JKATIE04/12/2021100053320   C
 122.00  DMV FEES AJM7679 RENEW303


RIGDON, CATHYCANDEE04/12/2021100053321   C
 75.00  OPERATORS/PROVISIONAL902


LEHMAN, MARIAH & ASAPHLYDIA04/12/2021100053322   C
 17.00  32178DOG
 17.00  COUNTY DOG PARK-166869914


34.00 


ELMER, ROBINLYDIA04/12/2021100053323   C
 22.00  32179DOG


BRODRECHT, MERCEDESDESIRE04/12/2021100053324   C
 75.00  BUILDING PERMITS401
 75.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-ZONING405


150.00 


VFW #328CANDEE04/12/2021100053325   C
 100.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-BEER901
 500.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-LIQ.901
 20.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-PUB901
 10.00  MISC LICENSES-JUKEBOX906
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 100.00  MISC LICENSES-CABARET906
 70.00  MISC LICENSES-AMUSE.DEVICE-2906


800.00 


YARD WASTELISA04/12/2021100053330   C
 20.00  YARD WASTE FEES1202


HEIDEN, NICOLELISA04/13/2021100053326   C
 20.00  PARKING FINES302


MONROE, ALEXANDERLISA04/13/2021100053327   C
 108.80  BAILS/FINES301


SIMON, EMILYLISA04/13/2021100053328   C
 20.00  PARKING FINES302


STATE OF WILISA04/13/2021100053329   C
 114.00  TO RECORD COURT TRIP DEPOSITSCOURTTRI


SCHWERSINSKE, TIMOTHYTRACIE04/13/2021100053331   C
 20.00  PARKING FINES 38251302


DIAZ ROOFING, LLCDESIRE04/13/2021100053332   C
 40.00  BUILDING PERMITS401
 40.00  BUILDING PERMITS401


80.00 


STOUGHTON UTILITIESLISA04/13/2021100053333   C
 4,657.34  4-1-21 PAYROLL DEFERRED COMP9901


FIDELITY INVESTMENTSLISA04/13/2021100053334   C
 0.06  FIDELITY DIVIDEND9901


FIDELITY INVESTMENTSLISA04/13/2021100053335   C
 131.70  FIDELITY DIVIDEND9901


MADISON, TOWN OFLISA04/13/2021100053336   C
 1,233.72  FEBRUARY SEATBELT GRANT9901


SEUSER, SANDYTRACIE04/13/2021100053337   C
 20.00  PARKING FINES 38204302


SOUTH CENTRAL LIBRARY SYSTEMLISA04/13/2021100053338   C
 869.38  E-RATE REBATE9901


SWENSON, GREGORYTRACIE04/13/2021100053339   C
 100.00  BAILS/FINES301


BURKHALTER, ROCKYTRACIE04/13/2021100053340   C
 20.00  BAILS/FINES301


SMITH, SHEILATRACIE04/13/2021100053341   C
 25.00  BAILS/FINES C780UM7RBQ301


SIMMS, ROGERTRACIE04/13/2021100053342   C
 50.00  BAILS/FINES301


KOTLOWSKI, CHRISTINETRACIE04/13/2021100053343   C
 98.80  BAILS/FINES BE675477-5301


REC DEPOSITLISA04/13/2021100053344   C
 70.00  PARK RESERVATION1101
 180.00  PROGRAM FEES1001
 400.00  PROGRAM FEES1001
 1,300.00  SPONSORSHIP FUND9901
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 100.00  PICKLEBALL9901


2,050.00 


TRISHA BROWNHOLLY04/13/2021100053345   C
 100.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-BEER901
 500.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-LIQ901
 20.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-PUB901


620.00 


WELK, JERRILYNNTRACIE04/13/2021100053346   C
 25.00  K-9 DONATIONS308


VOGEL, DONNALYDIA04/13/2021100053347   C
 22.00  32180DOG


HEWITT, JAMES/LYNNLYDIA04/13/2021100053348   C
 17.00  32181DOG
 17.00  32182DOG
 17.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE-166879914
 17.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE-166889914


68.00 


BOTHUM, PAULJUDY04/13/2021100053349   C
 292.50  DMV FEES RX9765 RENEW303
 373.00  DMV FEES SL9918 TITLE303


665.50 


REICH, RAHNALISA04/13/2021100053350   C
 98.80  BAILS/FINES301


RBA TITLE SERVICESLISA04/13/2021100053351   C
 35.00  SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REQUEST907


METROPOITAN REPORTING BUREAUJUDY04/13/2021100053352   C
 1.00  MISC REVENUES 21-110889304


FITZPATRICK SELECTLISA04/13/2021100053353   C
 35.00  SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REQUEST907


FITZPATRICK SELECT LISA04/13/2021100053354   C
 35.00  SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REQUEST907


PREFERRED TITLELISA04/13/2021100053355   C
 105.00  SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REQUEST907


MADISON COLLEGELISA04/13/2021100053356   C
 23.06  2019 P.P. CHARGEBACK9901


ANDREW HALVERSONJUDY04/13/2021100053357   C
 137.00  DMV FEES JY6213303


STOUGHTON UTILITIESLISA04/13/2021100053359   C
 42,410.32  0000003856MR


BREY, CARLTRACIE04/14/2021100053358   C
 122.00  DMV FEES ACG7138303


HOLLY04/14/2021100053360   C
 30.00  MISC LICENSES906


CROOK, ANGELIQUECANDEE04/14/2021100053361   C
 10.00  MISC LICENSES906
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BEST PLAZA LIQUORCANDEE04/14/2021100053362   C
 100.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-BEER901
 500.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-LIQ901
 20.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-PUB.901


620.00 


BEST PLAZA LIQUORCANDEE04/14/2021100053363   C
 100.00  CIGARETTE903


DEAKS PUB & GRILLCANDEE04/14/2021100053364   C
 100.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-BEER901
 500.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-LIQ.901
 20.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-PUB901


620.00 


DEAKS PUB & GRILLCANDEE04/14/2021100053365   C
 10.00  MISC LICENSES-JUKEBOX906
 35.00  MISC LICENSES-POOL TABLES906
 350.00  MISC LICENSES-AMUSE DEV.-10 906


395.00 


SCHAUB, KEITHTRACIE04/14/2021100053366   C
 262.00  DMV FEES 660GS303
 449.50  DMV FEES SJ9919303


711.50 


ULTRA MARTCANDEE04/14/2021100053367   C
 100.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-BEER901
 500.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-LIQ.901
 20.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-PUB.901


620.00 


ULTRA MARTCANDEE04/14/2021100053368   C
 100.00  CIGARETTE903


ULTRA MARTCANDEE04/14/2021100053369   C
 35.00  MISC LICENSES-AMUSE DEVICE-1906


SLINDE, MONICA/STEVELYDIA04/14/2021100053370   C
 17.00  32183DOG


JAGAT PETROLEUM LLCCANDEE04/14/2021100053371   C
 100.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-BEER901
 20.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-PUB.901
 100.00  CIGARETTE903


220.00 


DIAMOND JUBILEECANDEE04/14/2021100053372   C
 100.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-BEER901
 20.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-PUB.901


120.00 


PRANGE, KEVIN & MEGANLYDIA04/14/2021100053373   C
 17.00  32184DOG
 17.00  32185DOG


34.00 


MASINI, BEHARTRACIE04/14/2021100053374   C
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 98.80  BAILS/FINES BF1068992301


LYDON, CORYDESIRE04/14/2021100053375   C
 75.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-ZONING405


BARTZ, RICHARDDESIRE04/14/2021100053376   C
 75.00  BUILDING PERMITS401


BERRY, MICHAELLYDIA04/14/2021100053377   C
 17.00  32186DOG


SCHROETER, ROSEDESIRE04/14/2021100053378   C
 175.00  BUILDING PERMITS401
 80.00  BUILDING PERMITS401


255.00 


DUNKIRK ELECTRICAL SERVICES, LLCDESIRE04/14/2021100053379   C
 50.00  ELECTRICAL PERMIT402


BUBON, TIMOTHYDESIRE04/14/2021100053380   C
 50.00  ELECTRICAL PERMIT402
 50.00  PLUMBING PERMIT403
 75.00  BUILDING PERMITS401


175.00 


CREATIVE CONSTRUCTORS, LLCDESIRE04/14/2021100053381   C
 2,600.00  BUILDING PERMITS401
 155.00  ELECTRICAL PERMIT402
 85.00  HEATING PERMIT (HVAC)404
 85.00  PLUMBING PERMIT403


2,925.00 


SCHROETER, ROSEDESIRE04/14/2021100053382   C
 75.00  BUILDING PERMITS401


BEJS INVESTMENTS LLCDESIRE04/14/2021100053383   C
 100.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-ZONING405


WALKER, TERRYDESIRE04/14/2021100053384   C
 75.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-ZONING405


JACOBSON, MARKDESIRE04/14/2021100053385   C
 50.00  PLUMBING PERMIT403


EAST KOSHKONONG LUTHERAN CHURCHCANDEE04/14/2021100053386   C
 616.03  FOOD PANTRY501


VALUE CONSTRUCTION GROUPDESIRE04/14/2021100053387   C
 50.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-DRIVEWAY405


PAUL DAVIS RESTORATIONDESIRE04/14/2021100053388   C
 50.00  ELECTRICAL PERMIT402
 50.00  PLUMBING PERMIT403
 160.00  BUILDING PERMITS401


260.00 


WAUNAKEE REMODELING, INCDESIRE04/14/2021100053389   C
 40.00  BUILDING PERMITS401


BEUTEL, JOHNCANDEE04/14/2021100053390   C
 500.00  FOOD PANTRY501


ARNOLD, HANNAHDESIRE04/14/2021100053391   C
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 85.00  PLUMBING PERMIT403


MILLER, JENNIFERLYDIA04/14/2021100053392   C
 17.00  32187DOG


BADGER BASEMENT SYSTEMS INCDESIRE04/14/2021100053393   C
 40.00  BUILDING PERMITS401


BENJAMIN PLUMBINGDESIRE04/14/2021100053394   C
 85.00  PLUMBING PERMIT403


GAMOKE, JAMES & KATHLEENCANDEE04/14/2021100053395   C
 500.00  FOOD PANTRY501


HARKER HEATING & COOLING INC.DESIRE04/14/2021100053396   C
 50.00  HEATING PERMIT (HVAC)404


WOLF, TODDDESIRE04/14/2021100053397   C
 50.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-DRIVEWAY405


LAMBERSON, THOMASDESIRE04/14/2021100053398   C
 50.00  ELECTRICAL PERMIT402
 75.00  BUILDING PERMITS401
 75.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-ZONING405


200.00 


ARMSTRONG, RUTHTRACIE04/14/2021100053399   C
 25.00  PAUL KRABY MEMORIAL FUND DONATION310


SCHUCK, ERICLYDIA04/14/2021100053400   C
 17.00  32188DOG
 17.00  32189DOG
 35.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE-166899914
 17.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE-166909914


86.00 


LEIGH, JASENTRACIE04/14/2021100053401   C
 484.00  DMV FEES ALD9488303


GEMINI GAMESCANDEE04/14/2021100053402   C
 100.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-BEER901
 20.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-PUB.901


120.00 


BIG SKY RESTAURANTCANDEE04/14/2021100053403   C
 100.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-BEER901
 100.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-WINE901
 20.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-PUB.901


220.00 


BECKMAN, MARILYNCANDEE04/14/2021100053404   C
 20.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-PUB.901


PANCAKE CAFECANDEE04/14/2021100053405   C
 100.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-BEER901
 100.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-WINE901
 20.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-PUB901


220.00 


VIKESTAR HOLDINGSCANDEE04/14/2021100053406   C
 100.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-BEER901
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 500.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-LIQ.901
 20.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-PUB.901


620.00 


VIKESTAR HOLDINGSCANDEE04/14/2021100053407   C
 10.00  MISC LICENSES-JUKEBOX906
 70.00  MISC LICENSES-AMUSE. DEVICE 2906
 100.00  MISC LICENSES-CABARET906


180.00 


MICHAEL CHICKERJENNIFER04/14/2021100053408   C
 15.00  ELECTRONIC RECYCLING FEE1205


MICHAEL CHICKERJENNIFER04/14/2021100053409   C
 20.00  YARD WASTE FEES1202


3 RIVERSLISA04/14/2021100053410   C
 447.44  3 RIVERS EMS DEPOSIT3RIV


SEIDLITZ, KARI TRACIE04/15/2021100053411   C
 132.00  DMV FEES AFR2438303


GNIECH, LORIANNELISA04/15/2021100053412   C
 136.60  BAILS/FINES301


MARTINEZ, JACOBLISA04/15/2021100053413   C
 20.00  PARKING FINES302


JENNIFER04/15/2021100053414   C
 270.00  YARD WASTE FEES1202


ROBERTS, RICKY LTRACIE04/15/2021100053416   C
 245.00  DMV FEES 534ZJH303


BERGMAN, CARRIEJUDI04/15/2021100053417   C
 17.00  32190DOG
 35.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE 66919914


52.00 


TEIGEN, ARLINTRACIE04/15/2021100053418   C
 20.00  PARKING FINES 38254302


LAMBERSON, THOMASDESIRE04/15/2021100053419   C
 30.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-DRIVEWAY405


RULEAU, RACHELJUDI04/15/2021100053420   C
 17.00  32191DOG


RIVERS, BERNARDDESIRE04/15/2021100053421   C
 85.00  PLUMBING PERMIT403


VALUE CONSTRUCTION GROUP, INCDESIRE04/15/2021100053422   C
 50.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-SIDEWALK405


J & K SECURITY SOLUTIONSDESIRE04/15/2021100053423   C
 368.24  FIRE PROTECTION FEES408


COVERT, JASONDESIRE04/15/2021100053424   C
 155.00  ELECTRICAL PERMIT402


BUSCH, DUANE & BETTEJUDI04/15/2021100053425   C
 22.00  32192DOG


TUNDRALAND HOME IMPROVEMENTS LLCDESIRE04/15/2021100053426   C







RECEIPT REGISTER FOR CITY OF STOUGHTON 19/41Page:05/18/2021 07:36 AM
User: JAMIN
DB: Stoughton


Post Date from 04/01/2021 - 04/30/2021   Completed Receipts


 AmountReceived OfWkstnCashierDateReceipt #   
  Distribution   Description


 50.00  PLUMBING PERMIT403


BOWER, MARKDESIRE04/15/2021100053427   C
 30.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-DRIVEWAY405


GOLDADE, TODDESIRE04/15/2021100053428   C
 40.00  BUILDING PERMITS401


JOE HANSON CONSTRUCTION LLCDESIRE04/15/2021100053429   C
 50.00  ELECTRICAL PERMIT402
 50.00  HEATING PERMIT (HVAC)404
 88.00  BUILDING PERMITS401


188.00 


FISHER HOME INSPECTIONSDESIRE04/15/2021100053430   C
 50.00  ELECTRICAL PERMIT402
 50.00  HEATING PERMIT (HVAC)404
 96.00  BUILDING PERMITS401


196.00 


STOUGHTON GARDEN CENTERDESIRE04/15/2021100053431   C
 75.00  BUILDING PERMITS401


DVORAK, CHRISTOPHERDESIRE04/15/2021100053432   C
 21.00  BUILDING PERMITS401


BROWN, KENTTRACIE04/15/2021100053433   C
 313.50  DMV FEES ALD9489303


R.A. HEATING & AIR CONDITIONING INC.DESIRE04/15/2021100053434   C
 85.00  HEATING PERMIT (HVAC)404


HOLZMANN, MARKDESIRE04/15/2021100053435   C
 56.50  ELECTRICAL PERMIT402
 56.50  HEATING PERMIT (HVAC)404
 56.50  PLUMBING PERMIT403
 40.00  BUILDING PERMITS-EROSION401
 180.80  BUILDING PERMITS-PLN RVW401
 75.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-ZONING405
 30.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-DRIVEWAY405


495.30 


DANE COUNTY FENCEDESIRE04/15/2021100053436   C
 75.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-ZONING405


24 HOUR HOME COMFORT SERVICES, INC.DESIRE04/15/2021100053437   C
 50.00  HEATING PERMIT (HVAC)404


D.R. HANSEN PLUMBINGDESIRE04/15/2021100053438   C
 85.00  PLUMBING PERMIT403


MEYER, JEANDESIRE04/15/2021100053439   C
 50.00  HEATING PERMIT (HVAC)404


METZLER ROOFING INC.DESIRE04/15/2021100053440   C
 40.00  BUILDING PERMITS401


MERRITT, REBECCADESIRE04/15/2021100053441   C
 75.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-ZONING405


KR KUSTOMS LLCDESIRE04/15/2021100053442   C
 245.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-ZONING405
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DREW, JULIEDESIRE04/15/2021100053443   C
 75.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-ZONING405


SPLICER PROPERTIES LLCDESIRE04/15/2021100053444   C
 100.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-ZONING405


WARNER, JAYDESIRE04/15/2021100053445   C
 75.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT405


MALMQUIST, RANDALLDESIRE04/15/2021100053446   C
 75.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-ZONING405


NELSON ELECTRIC, LLCDESIRE04/15/2021100053447   C
 50.00  ELECTRICAL PERMIT402


ELECTRIC CONSTRUCTION, INCDESIRE04/15/2021100053448   C
 155.00  ELECTRICAL PERMIT402


PACE ELECTRICDESIRE04/15/2021100053449   C
 155.00  ELECTRICAL PERMIT402


VALUE CONSTRUCTION GROUP, INCDESIRE04/15/2021100053450   C
 202.65  ELECTRICAL PERMIT402
 202.65  HEATING PERMIT (HVAC)404
 202.65  PLUMBING PERMIT403
 40.00  BUILDING PERMITS-OCCUPANCY401
 607.95  BUILDING PERMITS-PLN RVW401
 75.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-ZONING405


1,330.90 


BENSCHOP CONCRETEDESIRE04/15/2021100053451   C
 30.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-DRIVEWAY405


FELDCO FACTORY DIRECT, LLCDESIRE04/15/2021100053452   C
 40.00  BUILDING PERMITS401


CARDINAL HEATING & AIR CONDITIONING,DESIRE04/15/2021100053453   C
 50.00  PLUMBING PERMIT403


SCHAUFF, HEATHERDESIRE04/15/2021100053454   C
 40.00  BUILDING PERMITS401


METZLER ROOFING INCDESIRE04/15/2021100053455   C
 120.00  BUILDING PERMITS401


FOX WATERDESIRE04/15/2021100053456   C
 100.00  PLUMBING PERMIT403


BRADLEY, JEFFDESIRE04/15/2021100053457   C
 100.00  BUILDING PERMITS401


MAC CITY HOME IMPROVEMENT LLCDESIRE04/15/2021100053458   C
 40.00  BUILDING PERMITS401


HILL ELECTRIC, INC.DESIRE04/15/2021100053459   C
 50.00  ELECTRICAL PERMIT402


LAKE LAND BUILDERS LLCDESIRE04/15/2021100053460   C
 50.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-DRIVEWAY405
 238.90  ELECTRICAL PERMIT402
 238.90  HEATING PERMIT (HVAC)404
 238.90  PLUMBING PERMIT403
 135.00  BUILDING PERMITS-EROSION401
 40.00  BUILDING PERMITS-OCCUPANCY401
 764.48  BUILDING PERMITS-PLN RVW401
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 40.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-DILHR SL405
 75.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-ZONING405
 600.00  TREE PLANTINGS - DEVELOPER1206


2,421.18 


NELSON GENERAL CONTRACTORSDESIRE04/15/2021100053461   C
 50.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-DRIVEWAY405
 182.10  ELECTRICAL PERMIT402
 182.10  PLUMBING PERMIT403
 182.10  HEATING PERMIT (HVAC)404
 135.00  BUILDING PERMITS-EROSION401
 40.00  BUILDING PERMITS-OCCUPANCY401
 582.72  BUILDING PERMITS- PLN RVW401
 40.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-DILHR SL405
 75.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-ZONING405
 2,100.00  TREE PLANTINGS - DEVELOPER1206
 2,486.02  IMPACT FEES - IMPROVEMENTS409


6,055.04 


PHILLIPS CONTRACTING LLCDESIRE04/15/2021100053462   C
 50.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-DRIVEWAY405
 295.70  ELECTRICAL PERMIT402
 295.70  PLUMBING PERMIT403
 295.70  HEATING PERMIT (HVAC)404
 135.00  BUILDING PERMITS-EROSION401
 40.00  BUILDING PERMITS-OCCUPANCY401
 946.24  BUILDING PERMITS-PLN RVW401
 40.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-DILHR SL405
 75.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-ZONING405
 1,200.00  TREE PLANTINGS - DEVELOPER1206


3,373.34 


LAKE LAND BUILDERS LLCDESIRE04/15/2021100053463   C
 50.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT405
 235.50  ELECTRICAL PERMIT402
 235.50  HEATING PERMIT (HVAC)404
 235.50  PLUMBING PERMIT403
 135.00  BUILDING PERMITS-EROSION401
 40.00  BUILDING PERMITS-OCCUPANCY401
 40.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-DILHR SL405
 75.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-ZONING405
 600.00  TREE PLANTINGS - DEVELOPER1206
 753.60  BUILDING PERMITS-PLN RVW401


2,400.10 


HILL, RYANLYDIA04/15/2021100053464   C
 21.00  32193DOG
 35.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE-166929914


56.00 


RING, PATRICK MARTINSON, KATLYNLYDIA04/15/2021100053465   C
 17.00  32194DOG
 35.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE-166939914


52.00 


KING, ERINDESIRE04/15/2021100053466   C
 85.00  BUILDING PERMITS401
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WALGREENSHOLLY04/15/2021100053467   C
 120.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE901
 100.00  CIGARETTE903


220.00 


FAUST, CYNTHIATRACIE04/15/2021100053468   C
 220.00  DMV FEES ALD9490303


FAUST, CYNTHIATRACIE04/15/2021100053469   C
 77.00  DMV FEES ALD9490303


LAUTERBACH, BARBARATRACIE04/15/2021100053470   C
 269.00  DMV FEES ALD9491303


BELLO, LUISTRACIE04/15/2021100053471   C
 150.00  DMV FEES AJT2886303


BELLO, LUISTRACIE04/15/2021100053472   C
 36.75  DMV FEES AJT2886303


TERRY, CONNIE JTRACIE04/15/2021100053473   C
 245.00  DMV FEES 929UUX303


YARD WASTELISA04/15/2021100053510   C
 150.00  YARD WASTE FEES1202


CLARK, WILLIAM STRACIE04/16/2021100053474   C
 297.06  DMV FEES ALD9492303


STANFORD, DENVERTRACIE04/16/2021100053475   C
 363.50  DMV FEES SL9920303


GORDAN, DOUGTRACIE04/16/2021100053476   C
 153.00  DMV FEES KZ6206303


LUERS, SUSANALEX04/16/2021100053477   C
 20.00  38409302


PERCY, MICHAELALEX04/16/2021100053478   C
 10.00   BE675481-2301


KLUENDERCINDY04/16/2021100053479   C
 25.00  DONATIONS - SR CENTER803


OVERLANDCINDY04/16/2021100053480   C
 15.00  DONATIONS - SR CENTER803


MILLERCINDY04/16/2021100053481   C
 120.00  DONATIONS - SR CENTER803


GAMOKECINDY04/16/2021100053482   C
 500.00  DONATIONS - SR CENTER803


AHN TRUSTCINDY04/16/2021100053483   C
 1,965.05  DONATIONS - SR CENTER803


AUSTIN, MARIAALEX04/16/2021100053484   C
 495.00  DMV FEES303


ANNEN, MARKALEX04/16/2021100053485   C
 200.00  AFA2752303


ANNEN, MARKALEX04/16/2021100053486   C
 138.00  AFA2752303


CHICAGO TITLELISA04/16/2021100053492   C
 70.00  SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REQUEST907
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DANE, COUNTY OFLISA04/16/2021100053500   C
 1,369.50  DELINQUENT SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS9905
 490.53  SPECIAL ASSESSMENT INTEREST9906


1,860.03 


DANE, COUNTY OFLISA04/16/2021100053504   C
 219.93  COUNTY OUTREACH9901


REC DEPOSITLISA04/16/2021100053505   C
 370.00  PROGRAM FEES1001
 485.00  PROGRAM FEES1001
 230.00  PROGRAM FEES1001
 50.00  SCHOLARSHIP FUND9901


1,135.00 


SHARPE, DAVID OR MARGARETLISA04/16/2021100053506   C
 1,000.00  ANNEX REMODEL DONATION9901


WISCONSIN SURPLUSLISA04/16/2021100053507   C
 12,268.11  21222-17 PROCEEDS9901


MIKKELSON, STEPHANIE RTRACIE04/17/2021100053487   C
 132.00  DMV FEES 511TYF303


GILE, HUNTERTRACIE04/17/2021100053488   C
 372.50  DMV FEES SL69921303


REE, CHARLESALEX04/17/2021100053489   C
 147.00  FG7839303


BYRNE,JUSTINALEX04/17/2021100053490   C
 20.00  38412301


ROBERT JOHNSONJUDY04/19/2021100053491   C
 137.00  DMV FEES ND5231303


DIAMOND JUBILEECANDEE04/19/2021100053493   C
 100.00  CIGARETTE903


AMMOVI VENTURESCANDEE04/19/2021100053494   C
 100.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-BEER901
 500.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-LIQ.901
 20.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-PUB.901
 10.00  MISC LICENSES-JUKEBOX906
 175.00  MISC LICENSES- AMUSE DEVICE-5906
 100.00  MISC LICENSES-CABARET906


905.00 


ALEJANDRO AVALOS MONTESJUDY04/19/2021100053495   C
 569.00  DMV FEES  AKD1690303


EL RIO GRANDECANDEE04/19/2021100053496   C
 100.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-BEER901
 500.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE- LIQ901
 20.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-PUB901


620.00 


TAILGATERS, CHAD STRUTZELCANDEE04/19/2021100053497   C
 100.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-BEER901
 500.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-LIQ.901
 20.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-PUB901
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 10.00  MISC LICENSES-JUKEBOX906
 35.00  MISC LICENSES-POOL TABLE906
 245.00  MISC LICENSES-AMUSE DEVICE-7906
 100.00  MISC LICENSES-CAB.906


1,010.00 


ATTICUS MCFARLANEJUDY04/19/2021100053498   C
 211.50  DMV FEES AKD1753303


JULICA KELLYJUDY04/19/2021100053499   C
 124.00  BAILS/FINES C782Z7RB1Q301


VIKING LANESCANDEE04/19/2021100053501   C
 100.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-BEER901
 500.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-LIQ901
 20.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-PUB901
 10.00  MISC LICENSES-JUKEBOX906
 70.00  MISC LICENSES-POOL TABLE-2906
 175.00  MISC LICENSES-AMUSE DEVICE-5906
 100.00  MISC LICENSES-CABARET906


975.00 


CHEESERSCANDEE04/19/2021100053502   C
 20.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-PUB.901


YORK, ROBERTCANDEE04/19/2021100053503   C
 50.00  OPERATORS/PROVISIONAL902


HANSEN, RODGER & LINDACANDEE04/19/2021100053508   C
 200.00  FOOD PANTRY501


ASLESON, RICHARD & JEANCANDEE04/19/2021100053509   C
 100.00  FOOD PANTRY501


STOUGHTON AREA EMSLISA04/19/2021100053511   C
 41.11  SUNSHINE FUND CHARGE9901


JENNIFER04/19/2021100053512   C
 1,205.00  YARD WASTE FEES1202


JENNIFER04/19/2021100053513   C
 265.00  YARD WASTE FEES1202


JENNIFER04/19/2021100053514   C
 30.00  ELECTRONIC RECYCLING FEE1205


DENNIS BREMERJUDY04/19/2021100053515   C
 147.00  DMV FEES 1478ER303


PATTI BUSCHKEJUDY04/19/2021100053516   C
 684.00  DMV FEES 581VCD303


WILLIAM SKAREJUDY04/19/2021100053517   C
 379.50  DMV FEES ALD9494303


SCHIGUR, TIM & JOELLLYDIA04/19/2021100053519   C
 22.00  32195DOG
 22.00  32196DOG
 35.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE-166969914
 17.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE-166979914


96.00 


TAYLOR BIDDICKJUDY04/19/2021100053520   C
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 439.00  BAILS/FINES301


TRANSUE, KENT & TRACYLYDIA04/19/2021100053521   C
 21.00  32197DOG
 17.00  32198DOG


38.00 


AUSTIN WESTJUDY04/19/2021100053522   C
 100.00  BAILS/FINES  C782Z7RB0Q301


CORKERY, HEATHERLISA04/19/2021100053523   C
 10.00  BAILS/FINES301


MCLAURIN, MARQITISLISA04/19/2021100053524   C
 98.80  BAILS/FINES301


GALLEGOS, LILANALISA04/19/2021100053525   C
 124.00  BAILS/FINES301


DEAL, REBECCALISA04/19/2021100053526   C
 98.80  BAILS/FINES301


MARTIN, ZACHERYLISA04/19/2021100053527   C
 124.00  BAILS/FINES301


HOLTE, TARALISA04/19/2021100053528   C
 98.00  BAILS/FINES301


EVERLIGHT SOLAR CONSTRUCTIONDESIRE04/19/2021100053529   C
 75.00  BUILDING PERMITS401
 50.00  ELECTRICAL PERMIT402


125.00 


STEVENSON, TAMMYJENNIFER04/19/2021100053530   C
 1,850.00  CEMETERY FEES1203


3 RIVERSLISA04/19/2021100053531   C
 7,523.31  3 RIVERS EMS DEPOSIT3RIV


3 RIVERSLISA04/19/2021100053532   C
 2,089.71  3 RIVERS EMS DEPOSIT3RIV


REC DEPOSITLISA04/19/2021100053533   C
 940.00  PROGRAM FEES1001
 400.00  PROGRAM FEES1001
 270.00  SCHOLARSHIP FUND9901


1,610.00 


SEYMOUR ENVIRONMENTALJENNIFER04/19/2021100053534   C
 50.00  STREET OPENING1201


STOUGHTON UTILITIES LISA04/19/2021100053535   C
 4,657.35  DEFERRED COMP 4/16/21 PAYROLL9901


CRESS FUNERAL HOMELISA04/19/2021100053536   C
 695.00  CEMETERY FEES1203


STOUGHTON UTILITIESLISA04/19/2021100053537   C
 58,730.42  MARCH STORMWATER9901


EXPEDIALISA04/19/2021100053538   C
 666.91  1ST QTR ROOM TAX9903


LIBRARY DEPOSITLISA04/19/2021100053539   C
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 38.92  FINES702
 200.00  217-DESIGNATED DONATION704


238.92 


TAXCONNEX LLCLISA04/19/2021100053540   C
 7.48  FRANCHISE TAX REFUND - MARCH 9901


MARTIN, ZACHERYALEX04/19/2021100053541   C
 98.80  BF107081-2301
 136.60  BF107080-1301


235.40 


CHICAGO TITLELISA04/19/2021100053543   C
 35.00  SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REQUEST907


ACTIVE NETWORKLISA04/19/2021100053547   C
 550.00  SCHOLARSHIP FUND9901
 190.00  INSTRUCTION FEES1003
 35.00  PROGRAM FEES1001
 978.00  INSTRUCTION FEES1003
 140.00  PROGRAM FEES1001
 849.00  INSTRUCTION FEES1003
 450.00  INSTRUCTION FEES1003
 180.00  PROGRAM FEES1001
 474.00  INSTRUCTION FEES1003
 52.00  INSTRUCTION FEES1003
 680.00  INSTRUCTION FEES1003
 960.00  INSTRUCTION FEES1003
 (435.87) CREDIT CARD & TRANSACTION FEES1004


5,102.13 


BRIGITTE CHAMBERLAINJUDY04/20/2021100053544   C
 324.50  DMV FEES ALD9496303


GUNDERSON FUNERAL HOME JENNIFER04/20/2021100053545   C
 925.00  CEMETERY FEES1203


RAYMOND CULLJUDY04/20/2021100053546   C
 143.00  DMV FEES NE8501303


MAD CITY WINDOW & BATHDESIRE04/20/2021100053548   C
 80.00  BUILDING PERMITS401


MOYERS INCDESIRE04/20/2021100053549   C
 80.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT405


SANDSNES, JEREMYDESIRE04/20/2021100053550   C
 30.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-ZONING405


DIXON, DAVIDLISA04/20/2021100053551   C
 20.00  PARKING FINES302


ARNOLD, QUINTINLISA04/20/2021100053552   C
 20.00  PARKING FINES302


3 RIVERSLISA04/20/2021100053553   C
 1,530.92  3 RIVERS EMS DEPOSIT3RIV


CULL, RAYMONDKATIE04/20/2021100053554   C
 24.00  DMV FEES RENEW RV103606303
 17.00  K-9 DONATIONS ADULT 2X308


41.00 
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LAUFENBERG, VINCENTKATIE04/20/2021100053555   C
 365.75  DMV FEES ALD9497303


BAUMANN,GREGORYKATIE04/20/2021100053556   C
 98.80  BAILS/FINES BF106804-5301


MCKENZIE, NISTANTRACIE04/21/2021100053557   C
 187.00  BAILS/FINES C782VRP3CM301


STOUGHTON AREA SCHOOL DISTRICTLISA04/21/2021100053558   C
 1,000.00  RENT1502


AKALE, CONSTANCE NTRACIE04/21/2021100053559   C
 98.80  BAILS/FINES BF107063-5301


JENNIFER04/21/2021100053560   C
 380.00  YARD WASTE FEES1202


JENNIFER04/21/2021100053561   C
 140.00  YARD WASTE FEES1202


GAZSO, CYNTHIATRACIE04/21/2021100053562   C
 20.00  PARKING FINES 38407302


GOODMAN, DEBRA SUETRACIE04/21/2021100053563   C
 124.00  DMV FEES 804WBC303


LYDON, CARRIE/CORYLYDIA04/21/2021100053564   C
 22.00  32199DOG
 35.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE-166989914


57.00 


DONOHUE, JESSICALYDIA04/21/2021100053565   C
 17.00  32200DOG
 35.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE-166999914


52.00 


SWICK, MICHAELLYDIA04/21/2021100053566   C
 22.00  32201DOG


HART, JIM/KIMLYDIA04/21/2021100053567   C
 21.00  32202DOG
 21.00  32203DOG


42.00 


HARVEY, JAMIDESIRE04/21/2021100053568   C
 40.00  BUILDING PERMITS401
 40.00  BUILDING PERMITS401


80.00 


ANDERSON, MICHAELDESIRE04/21/2021100053569   C
 40.00  BUILDING PERMITS401


BENRUD, JOSLYN/DAVIDLYDIA04/21/2021100053570   C
 22.00  32204DOG
 21.00  32205DOG


43.00 


KLEIN, BRANDONKATIE04/21/2021100053571   C
 98.80  BAILS/FINES BE675465-0301
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HAGEL, JASONKATIE04/21/2021100053572   C
 184.00  DMV FEES TRANSFER MH5753303


JENSEN, WILLIAMKATIE04/21/2021100053573   C
 98.80  BAILS/FINES BE675489-3301


TAYLOR, LUKEKATIE04/21/2021100053574   C
 341.00  DMV FEES ALD 9498303


ONE COMMUNITY BANK DEBBIE04/21/2021100053575   C
 2,212.87  0000003850MR


OLSON, CARLA DEBBIE04/21/2021100053576   C
 4,965.84  0511-052-7311-5/7056-15SPEC


HEITKE, PETER & KERI DEBBIE04/21/2021100053577   C
 300.00  0511-082-7160-2/7048-10SPEC


HUNT, STEVEN & ANDREA DEBBIE04/21/2021100053578   C
 400.00  0511-082-7044-3/7048-10SPEC


TASTE OF STOUGHTONHOLLY04/22/2021100053579   C
 10.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE901
 30.00  MISC LICENSES906


40.00 


PUGH, VADIMTRACIE04/22/2021100053581   C
 25.00  BAILS/FINES BB058277-2301


BOUCHER, BRIGITTE   WEIER, JUSTINLYDIA04/22/2021100053582   C
 22.00  32206DOG
 35.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE-167009914


57.00 


PREFERRED TITLE DEBBIE04/22/2021100053583   C
 35.00  SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REQUEST907


ROCHE, ERICDESIRE04/22/2021100053584   C
 40.00  BUILDING PERMITS401


COOK, MATTHEW ALVIS, JAIMELYDIA04/22/2021100053585   C
 17.00  32207DOG
 35.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE-167019914


52.00 


PREFERRED TITLE DEBBIE04/22/2021100053586   C
 210.00  SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REQUEST907


MACDONALD, RICHARD/ANITALYDIA04/22/2021100053587   C
 22.00  32208DOG


MALLING, VIKTRACIE04/22/2021100053588   C
 20.00  PARKING FINES 38454302


SOKOLIK, BRANDONTRACIE04/22/2021100053589   C
 20.00  PARKING FINES 38260302


POLZIN, JOSHUATRACIE04/23/2021100053590   C
 20.00  PARKING FINES32399302


HERSHBERGER, MICHAEL TRACIE04/23/2021100053591   C
 337.00  DMV FEES ALD9499303


HERSHBERGER, MICHAEL TRACIE04/23/2021100053592   C
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 15.00  K-9 DONATIONS LTEE308


BELLEFEUILLE, TRACYTRACIE04/23/2021100053593   C
 20.00  PARKING FINES 38406302


ROATCH, SARAHTRACIE04/23/2021100053594   C
 379.50  DMV FEES ALD9500303


NELSONKIMBERLY04/23/2021100053595   C
 160.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


MILLAMKIMBERLY04/23/2021100053596   C
 230.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


PELLETTKIMBERLY04/23/2021100053597   C
 30.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


ORMONDKIMBERLY04/23/2021100053598   C
 200.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


KIDDERKIMBERLY04/23/2021100053599   C
 100.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


BRIETZMANKIMBERLY04/23/2021100053600   C
 150.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


PELLETTKIMBERLY04/23/2021100053601   C
 50.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


POGGEMILLERKIMBERLY04/23/2021100053602   C
 8.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


SIMEKIMBERLY04/23/2021100053603   C
 12.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


HAWKINSONKIMBERLY04/23/2021100053604   C
 20.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


KLUGKIMBERLY04/23/2021100053605   C
 8.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


UTKEKIMBERLY04/23/2021100053606   C
 115.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


ELSNERKIMBERLY04/23/2021100053607   C
 55.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


MILLAMKIMBERLY04/23/2021100053608   C
 90.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


KIMBERLY04/23/2021100053609   C
 602.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


GRYTTENHOLM, GENE TRACIE04/23/2021100053610   C
 132.00  DMV FEES 794XAE303


FALCH, TABITHALYDIA04/23/2021100053611   C
 17.00  32209DOG
 35.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE-167029914


52.00 


BUSCH, DIANELYDIA04/23/2021100053612   C
 22.00  32210DOG
 35.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE-167039914


57.00 
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SKOMINAS, SANDRALISA04/23/2021100053613   C
 124.00  BAILS/FINES301


VALHMU, TAFIKA-KENANLISA04/23/2021100053614   C
 174.00  BAILS/FINES301


3 RIVERSLISA04/23/2021100053615   C
 8,652.35  3 RIVERS EMS DEPOSIT3RIV


MONROE, SHARONDAKATIE04/23/2021100053616   C
 289.00  DMV FEES TITLE ALD9501303


FURNAURI INCKATIE04/23/2021100053617   C
 20.00  PARKING FINES 38414302


BAIRD, JOSEPHKATIE04/23/2021100053618   C
 250.00  BAILS/FINES C7821884G1301


AMERICAN TRANSMISSION CO DEBBIE04/23/2021100053628   C
 250.00  DONATION 9901


3 RIVERSLISA04/23/2021100053629   C
 1,178.84  3 RIVERS EMS DEPOSIT3RIV


HEMENWAY, BIMINILISA04/23/2021100053630   C
 20.00  PARKING FINES302


ALLEN, AMYLISA04/23/2021100053632   C
 20.00  PARKING FINES302


KEGEL, STACYLISA04/23/2021100053633   C
 20.00  PARKING FINES302


CRAWFORD, LENNY & RAYCHELTRACIE04/24/2021100053619   C
 200.00  DMV FEES ALD9502303


CRAWFORD, LENNY & RAYCHELTRACIE04/24/2021100053620   C
 124.50  DMV FEES ALD9502303


HENDRICKSON, MELISSA KTRACIE04/24/2021100053621   C
 220.00  DMV FEES AKD1803303


HENDRICKSON, MELISSA KTRACIE04/24/2021100053622   C
 5.25  DMV FEES AKD1803303


LEE, JASONTRACIE04/24/2021100053623   C
 297.00  DMV FEES ALD9503303


PAGEL, DONALD TRACIE04/24/2021100053624   C
 183.00  DMV FEES PJ1502303
 239.00  DMV FEES PJ1502303


422.00 


MAHAFFEY, JACOBTRACIE04/24/2021100053625   C
 324.50  DMV FEES AGW3498303


POTTER, SUSANKATIE04/24/2021100053626   C
 337.06  DMV FEES TITLE ALD9504303


REYES, EDUARDOKATIE04/25/2021100053627   C
 436.00  DMV FEES TITLE ALD9505303


MCMILLAN, DAWNLISA04/26/2021100053631   C
 136.60  BAILS/FINES301


KIM SPIERINGJUDY04/26/2021100053634   C
 149.00  BAILS/FINES BG7105044 301
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KIM SPIERINGJUDY04/26/2021100053635   C
 0.20  BAILS/FINES BG7105044301


LINEHAN, DANIELCANDEE04/26/2021100053636   C
 25.00  MISC LICENSES-BEE LICENSE906


WENDIGOHOLLY04/26/2021100053637   C
 200.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-BEER901
 500.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-LIQ901
 40.00  LIQUOR AND MALT BEVERAGE-PUB901


740.00 


JENNIFER04/26/2021100053638   C
 850.00  YARD WASTE FEES1202


JENNIFER04/26/2021100053639   C
 130.00  YARD WASTE FEES1202


TROTTER, FREDERICKCANDEE04/26/2021100053640   C
 75.00  OPERATORS/PROVISIONAL902


KLEIN, MARKCANDEE04/26/2021100053641   C
 75.00  OPERATORS/PROVISIONAL902


BLEILER, KRIS & KIM CALLIESCANDEE04/26/2021100053642   C
 100.00  FOOD PANTRY501


LIGGETT, JOSEPH & SARAHCANDEE04/26/2021100053643   C
 50.00  FOOD PANTRY501


AMERICAN FAMILY BLACKBAUD GIVING FUNCANDEE04/26/2021100053644   C
 250.00  FOOD PANTRY501


JENNIFER04/26/2021100053645   C
 200.00  YARD WASTE FEES1202


PERFORMANCE EXTERIORSDESIRE04/26/2021100053646   C
 50.00  BUILDING PERMITS401


PERFORMANCE EXTERIORSDESIRE04/26/2021100053647   C
 50.00  BUILDING PERMITS401


WAUNAKEE REMODELINGDESIRE04/26/2021100053648   C
 40.00  BUILDING PERMITS401


REGO, DEANNALYDIA04/26/2021100053649   C
 17.00  32211DOG
 35.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE-167049914


52.00 


SHIMON, LISALYDIA04/26/2021100053650   C
 17.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE-167059914


HYE, WILLIAMCANDEE04/26/2021100053651   C
 50.00  OPERATORS/PROVISIONAL902


KWIK TRIP #967CANDEE04/26/2021100053652   C
 75.00  OPERATORS/PROVISIONAL902


KWIK TRIP #967CANDEE04/26/2021100053653   C
 75.00  OPERATORS/PROVISIONAL902


KWIK TRIP #967CANDEE04/26/2021100053654   C
 75.00  OPERATORS/PROVISIONAL902
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KWIK TRIP #967CANDEE04/26/2021100053655   C
 50.00  OPERATORS/PROVISIONAL902


OPERA HOUSE DEPOSIT DEBBIE04/26/2021100053656   C
 (90.00) TICKET SALES601
 100.00  TICKET SALES601
 (210.00) TICKET SALES601
 (70.00) TICKET SALES601
 140.00  TICKET SALES601
 120.00  TICKET SALES601
 (100.00) TICKET SALES601
 (44.00) TICKET SALES601
 (140.00) TICKET SALES601
 (315.00) TICKET SALES601
 (270.00) TICKET SALES601
 350.00  TICKET SALES601
 (105.00) TICKET SALES601
 (70.00) TICKET SALES601
 40.00  TICKET SALES601
 (120.00) TICKET SALES601
 (60.00) TICKET SALES601
 (130.00) TICKET SALES601
 70.00  TICKET SALES601
 (70.00) TICKET SALES601
 (80.00) TICKET SALES601
 (720.00) TICKET SALES601
 (45.00) TICKET SALES601
 (100.00) TICKET SALES601
 (105.25) SALES TAX 9901
 (293.42) CONV FEE/CC/SHIPPING 9901
 800.00  MEMBERSHIP FEE 9901
 2,638.10  DONATIONS 9901
 258.10  CUSTOMER CREDIT 9901


1,378.53 


KWIK TRIP #967CANDEE04/26/2021100053657   C
 50.00  OPERATORS/PROVISIONAL902


KWIK TRIP #967CANDEE04/26/2021100053658   C
 50.00  OPERATORS/PROVISIONAL902


VEUM, BARBDEBBIE04/26/2021100053659   C
 1,305.58  0000003865MR


JENKS, DAN DEBBIE04/26/2021100053660   C
 1,216.63  0000003868MR


HELSTAD, RICKDEBBIE04/26/2021100053661   C
 1,216.63  0000003867MR


MOOERS, KEIRSTYNDEBBIE04/26/2021100053662   C
 290.00  WARRANT 1220219901


ZAEMISCH, RICHARD DEBBIE04/26/2021100053663   C
 500.00  0511-052-7289-4/7056-20SPEC


ROBERT & INEZ TOEPFER FAMILY TRDEBBIE04/26/2021100053664   C
 250.00  0511-052-5204-2/7056-15SPEC


ROBERT & INEZ TOEPFER FAMILY TR DEBBIE04/26/2021100053665   C
 250.00  0511-052-5201-2/7056-15SPEC


LARSON, HEATHERJUDI04/27/2021100053666   C
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 22.00  32213DOG
 35.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE 67069914


57.00 


MCINTYRE, DONTRELLEDESIRE04/27/2021100053667   C
 75.00  BUILDING PERMITS401
 50.00  PLUMBING PERMIT403
 50.00  ELECTRICAL PERMIT402


175.00 


PARKER, SCOTTDESIRE04/27/2021100053668   C
 75.00  BUILDING PERMITS401
 75.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-ZONING405


150.00 


ROSS, JAMESLYDIA04/27/2021100053669   C
 35.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE-166949914
 17.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE-166959914


52.00 


JENNIFER04/27/2021100053671   C
 30.00  ELECTRONIC RECYCLING FEE1205


HOMESTEAD TITLE DEBBIE04/27/2021100053673   C
 35.00  SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REQUEST907


CHICAGO TITLE DEBBIE04/27/2021100053674   C
 35.00  SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REQUEST907


DICKSON-BAURES, AARONLYDIA04/27/2021100053676   C
 17.00  32214DOG
 35.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE-167079914


52.00 


COMMUNITY LIVING CONNECTIONS DEBBIE04/27/2021100053677   C
 600.00  0000003870MR


51 WEST LLC DEBBIE04/27/2021100053678   C
 777.87  0000003844MR


JACOBSON, MARYLISA04/27/2021100053679   C
 404.00  BAILS/FINES301


NGUYEN,KYLEKATIE04/27/2021100053680   C
 98.80  BAILS/FINES BF106905-1301


TESTTRACIE04/28/2021100053681   C
 0.01  K-9 DONATIONS308


TITLE CEALRING & ESCROW DEBBIE04/28/2021100053682   C
 35.00  SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REQUEST907


3 RIVERSLISA04/28/2021100053683   C
 309.28  3 RIVERS EMS DEPOSIT3RIV


HUND, LAURELLYDIA04/28/2021100053684   C
 22.00  32216DOG
 22.00  32215DOG


44.00 


MONAHAN, ALEC STEVENSELLNER04/28/2021100053685   C
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 10.00  BAILS/FINES  BF105642-5301


WALDNER SUSANNESELLNER04/28/2021100053686   C
 24.00  DMV FEES RV94988 RENEWEL303
 145.00  DMV FEES 485531 RENEWEL303


169.00 


STOUGHTON UTILITIES DEBBIE04/28/2021100053687   C
 437,266.00  DUE TO WATER UTILITY9901
 225,995.00  DUE TO ELECT UTILITY 9901
 220,000.00  DUE TO EQUIP REPLACE FUND 9901
 14.06  TO CORRECT RECT 1000533599901


883,275.06 


BOB PEYERSELLNER04/28/2021100053688   C
 20.00  PARKING FINES 38408302


HOLMES, KARISELLNER04/28/2021100053689   C
 361.46  DMV FEES TITLE 966RT303


DIMEO, RACHELSELLNER04/28/2021100053690   C
 220.00  DMV FEES TITLE ALD9509303


DIMEO, RACHELSELLNER04/28/2021100053691   C
 172.00  DMV FEES TITLE ALD9509303


HOWEN, TAYLORSELLNER04/28/2021100053692   C
 352.00  DMV FEES ALD9506303


BRABENDER, THOMASSELLNER04/28/2021100053693   C
 297.00  DMV FEES TITLE AL9507303
 17.00  K-9 DONATIONS308


314.00 


RAYES MORANCHEL, ADANSELLNER04/28/2021100053694   C
 296.50  DMV FEES ALD9508303


BOHN, LARRYSELLNER04/28/2021100053695   C
 122.00  DMV FEES PLATES303


HILGER, JENNIFERSELLNER04/28/2021100053696   C
 20.00  PARKING FINES 38405302


NARF, ARYKATRACIE04/29/2021100053697   C
 10.00  BAILS/FINES BE675482-3301


FERGUSON, RANDALLTRACIE04/29/2021100053698   C
 122.00  DMV FEES AFX4981303


GRAHN, ALLEN, LTRACIE04/29/2021100053699   C
 443.96  DMV FEES 967RT303


ORMOND, SUSANDESIRE04/29/2021100053700   C
 40.00  BUILDING PERMITS401


R.A. HEATING & AIR CONDITIONING INC.DESIRE04/29/2021100053701   C
 50.00  HEATING PERMIT (HVAC)404


FREY CONSTRUCTION & HOME IMPROVEMENTDESIRE04/29/2021100053702   C
 253.28  BUILDING PERMITS401
 75.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-ZONING405


328.28 
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DORR, RODNEYTRACIE04/29/2021100053703   C
 251.46  DMV FEES 968RT303


LAKESTONE PROPERTIESDESIRE04/29/2021100053704   C
 50.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-DRIVEWAY405
 336.90  ELECTRICAL PERMIT402
 336.90  HEATING PERMIT (HVAC)404
 336.90  PLUMBING PERMIT403
 135.00  BUILDING PERMITS-EROSION401
 40.00  BUILDING PERMITS-OCCUPANCY401
 1,078.08  BUILDING PERMITS-PLN RVW401
 40.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-DILHR SL405
 75.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-ZONING405
 2,100.00  TREE PLANTINGS - DEVELOPER1206


4,528.78 


GREAT AMERICAN HOME IMPROVEMENTDESIRE04/29/2021100053705   C
 50.00  BUILDING PERMITS401


R.A. HEATING & AIR CONDITIONING INC.DESIRE04/29/2021100053706   C
 50.00  HEATING PERMIT (HVAC)404


BENJAMIN PLUMBING, INCDESIRE04/29/2021100053707   C
 50.00  PLUMBING PERMIT403


FELDCO FACTORY DIRECT, LLCDESIRE04/29/2021100053708   C
 40.00  BUILDING PERMITS401


LANDMARK SERVICES COOPERATIVEDESIRE04/29/2021100053709   C
 50.00  HEATING PERMIT (HVAC)404
 50.00  ELECTRICAL PERMIT402


100.00 


SDS BUILDERS LLCDESIRE04/29/2021100053710   C
 50.00  ELECTRICAL PERMIT402
 50.00  PLUMBING PERMIT403
 80.00  BUILDING PERMITS401


180.00 


FELDCO FACTORY DIRECT, LLCDESIRE04/29/2021100053711   C
 40.00  BUILDING PERMITS401


MONONA PLUMBING & FIRE PROTECTION, IDESIRE04/29/2021100053712   C
 85.00  PLUMBING PERMIT403


LANDMARK HEATING & COOLINGDESIRE04/29/2021100053713   C
 50.00  HEATING PERMIT (HVAC)404


HELM MECHANICALDESIRE04/29/2021100053715   C
 150.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-ZONING405


SCHROETER, ROSEDESIRE04/29/2021100053716   C
 50.00  PLUMBING PERMIT403


CONSTANT, ANDREWDESIRE04/29/2021100053717   C
 75.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-ZONING405


MARTINSON, KATLYNDESIRE04/29/2021100053718   C
 75.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT405
 25.00  MISC LICENSES906


100.00 
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VENTURINO, JOHNDESIRE04/29/2021100053719   C
 50.00  ELECTRICAL PERMIT402
 75.00  BUILDING PERMITS401


125.00 


MEYER, JEANDESIRE04/29/2021100053720   C
 75.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-ZONING405


DANE COUNTY FENCE & DECK COMPANYDESIRE04/29/2021100053721   C
 75.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-ZONING405


JEWELL, LUCASDESIRE04/29/2021100053722   C
 50.00  ELECTRICAL PERMIT402
 115.20  BUILDING PERMITS401
 75.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-ZONING405
 30.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-DRIVEWAY405


270.20 


WENDT, REXDESIRE04/29/2021100053723   C
 75.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-ZONING405


ZUPAN, NICHOLASDESIRE04/29/2021100053724   C
 50.00  HEATING PERMIT (HVAC)404
 50.00  ELECTRICAL PERMIT402


100.00 


SPROUL, DAVIDDESIRE04/29/2021100053725   C
 75.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-ZONING405


EVERSON EXCAVATING LLCDESIRE04/29/2021100053726   C
 50.00  PLUMBING PERMIT403


SMYTH, BRENDADESIRE04/29/2021100053727   C
 75.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-ZONING405


CUNNINGHAM, JEFFDESIRE04/29/2021100053728   C
 40.00  BUILDING PERMITS401
 40.00  BUILDING PERMITS401
 100.00  BUILDING PERMITS401


180.00 


WILLIAM HUTCHINSJUDY04/29/2021100053729   C
 308.00  DMV FEES ALD9510303


JAMES TOWLEJUDY04/29/2021100053730   C
 98.80  BAILS/FINES BF106896-6301


GERALD CHATJUDY04/29/2021100053731   C
 132.00  DMV FEES 332YFD303


DAVIS, FREDERICK AJOE04/29/2021100053732   C
 95.00  BAILS/FINES  32782301
 95.00  BAILS/FINES 31635301
 55.00  BAILS/FINES 31634301


245.00 


DAVIS, FREDERICK AJOE04/29/2021100053733   C
 40.00  BAILS/FINES 31634 301


STRANDLIE, SUSANJUDI04/30/2021100053734   C
 17.00  32217DOG
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 35.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE 67089914


52.00 


NICHOLS, SARAHJUDI04/30/2021100053735   C
 17.00  32218DOG
 35.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE 67099914


52.00 


SMITHBACK, TAMMYTRACIE04/30/2021100053736   C
 147.00  DMV FEES RL2679303


GALLAGHER TRUCKINGTRACIE04/30/2021100053737   C
 113.50  DMV FEES DR39470303


CHAT, JONATRACIE04/30/2021100053738   C
 132.00  DMV FEES AEA6387303


RAMSDEN, NICHOLASTRACIE04/30/2021100053739   C
 314.75  DMV FEES SL9922303


PETKOVSEK,LAWRENCETRACIE04/30/2021100053740   C
 341.00  DMV FEES ALD9511303


SEIS, JAESTRACIE04/30/2021100053741   C
 337.00  DMV FEES ALD9512303


3 RIVERSLISA04/30/2021100053745   C
 2,614.71  3 RIVERS EMS DEPOSIT3RIV


3 RIVERSLISA04/30/2021100053746   C
 6,696.63  3 RIVERS EMS DEPOSIT3RIV


WROLSTAD, DARRELL & JUDITHDEBBIE04/30/2021100053747   C
 257.16  0611-323-4385-3/7045-05SPEC


BRS FINANCIAL DEBBIE04/30/2021100053748   C
 525.00  0000003871MR


STOUGHTON HAIRSTYLING DEBBIE04/30/2021100053749   C
 600.00  0000003869MR


DANE COUNTYLISA04/30/2021100053750   C
 92.06  PERSONAL PROPERTY CHARGEBACK9901


FITZPATRICK SELECTDEBBIE04/30/2021100053751   C
 35.00  SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REQUEST907


OEPRA HOUSE DEPOSIT DEBBIE04/30/2021100053760   C
 (90.00) TICKET SALES601
 90.00  TICKET SALES601
 (70.00) TICKET SALES601
 70.00  TICKET SALES601
 105.00  TICKET SALES601
 (25.00) TICKET SALES601
 150.00  GIFT CERTIFICATES 9901
 (140.00) TICKET SALES601
 270.00  TICKET SALES601
 90.00  TICKET SALES601
 (80.00) TICKET SALES601
 140.00  TICKET SALES601
 (70.00) TICKET SALES601
 (30.00) TICKET SALES601
 (150.00) TICKET SALES601
 (105.00) TICKET SALES601
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 43.75  TICKET SALES601
 80.00  TICKET SALES601
 120.00  TICKET SALES601
 (60.00) TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 325.00  TICKET SALES601
 (70.00) TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 24.46  SALES TAX 9901
 (106.31) CONV FEE/SHIPPING/CC FEE9901
 225.00  MEMBERSHIP FEE 9901
 760.56  DONATIONS 9901
 226.62  CUSTOMER CREDIT 9901


1,724.08 


25.00 100-00000-48543-30900000 PAUL KRABY MEMORIAL
1,000.00 100-00000-48220-41900000 RENTAL INCOME


490.53 100-00000-48130-10100000 INTEREST - ASSESSMENTS
607.80 100-00000-48112-41600000 INTEREST ON TAXES


4,500.00 100-00000-46750-32453600 RECREATION
200.00 100-00000-46750-32453500 RECREATION
33.00 100-00000-46750-32452200 RECREATION
490.00 100-00000-46750-32450800 RECREATION
190.00 100-00000-46750-32450000 RECREATION


9.00 100-00000-46610-30300000 NEWSLETTER
2,140.00 100-00000-44150-31600000 MISC. LICENSE


900.00 100-00000-44120-31600000 CIGARETTE
1,100.00 100-00000-44111-31600000 OPERATORS
9,900.00 100-00000-44110-31600000 LIQUOR & MALT BEVERAGE


12,988.80 100-00000-43533 STATE AID - STREETS
251,345.32 100-00000-43531 STATE ROAD ALLOTMENT


6,600.00 100-00000-42321-16100000 TREE PLANTINGS - DEVELOPER
220,000.00 100-00000-25900 DUE TO EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND
225,995.00 100-00000-25800 DUE TO ELEC UTILITY
437,266.00 100-00000-25600 DUE TO WATER UTILITY
12,573.70 100-00000-22210 COURT FINES
1,150.00 100-00000-22111 DANE COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE
1,524.00 100-00000-22110 DOG LICENSE
9,314.69 100-00000-21575 DEFERRED COMPENSATION


14.06 100-00000-21560 INSURANCE PAYABLE
5,202.11 100-00000-21113 MEAL SITE REVENUES


290.00 100-00000-21105 PAYABLE TO OTHERS
101.12 100-00000-13010 VISION


7,587.28 100-00000-13010 UFDSAL
1,066.46 100-00000-13010 UFDBEN
3,768.57 100-00000-13010 RET HE


20,740.80 100-00000-13010 QUARTZ
1,853.93 100-00000-13010 QUART1
1,317.80 100-00000-13010 LIFE I


28.90 100-00000-13010 LGSHLD
76.88 100-00000-13010 HR
799.17 100-00000-13010 FSAYC
777.87 100-00000-13010 DVOR
88.95 100-00000-13010 DELTA
21.71 100-00000-13010 AFLAC
464.10 100-00000-12330 DELINQUENT PERS PROP TAXES


2,397.57 100-00000-12330 DELINQUENT PERS PROP TAXES
1,369.50 100-00000-12320 DELINQUENT SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS


*** TOTAL BY GL DISTRIBUTION ***


1,674,181.65 Total of 617 Receipts 







RECEIPT REGISTER FOR CITY OF STOUGHTON 39/41Page:05/18/2021 07:36 AM
User: JAMIN
DB: Stoughton


Post Date from 04/01/2021 - 04/30/2021   Completed Receipts


 AmountReceived OfWkstnCashierDateReceipt #   
  Distribution   Description


(210.00)245-00000-46742-50221004 TICKET SALES
100.00 245-00000-46742-50221001 TICKET SALES
(70.00)245-00000-26500-50222003 PREPAID TICKET REVENUE
(60.00)245-00000-26500-50222002 PREPAID TICKET REVENUE
634.72 245-00000-21108 GIFT CERTIFICATES - OPERA HOUSE
(80.79)245-00000-21104 SALES TAX PAYABLE - O.H.
131.76 243-00000-48114 DIVIDENDS


2,550.00 242-00000-46110 MISC. REVENUE
60,000.00 241-00000-48500-70100000 DONATIONS-BRYANT


250.00 236-00000-48550 DONATIONS
2,961.03 234-00000-48550 DONATIONS
1,000.00 232-00000-48516 DONATIONS - ANNEX RENOVATIONS


30.00 232-00000-48513 DONATIONS - LOAN CLOSET
100.00 231-00000-48561 DONATIONS - SENIORS IN NEED


12,268.11 227-00000-48500 DONATIONS
58,730.42 224-00000-13010 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE


100.00 223-00000-48550-22317002 DONATIONS-PICKLEBALL
2,486.02 223-00000-42190 IMPACT FEE - IMPROVEMENTS


417.80 223-00000-13010 911
869.38 217-00000-48500 DONATIONS - DESIGNATED


1,830.23 217-00000-48500 DONATIONS - DESIGNATED
38.92 215-00000-46710 FINES


7,599.27 207-00000-13010 KPW3
1,444.00 207-00000-13010 KPW2


7.48 100-55500-50210 TELEPHONE
(1,045.57)100-55300-50344-32400000 OPERATING EXPENSES-ACTIVE NET
2,170.00 100-55300-48527 AARON HUTCHINS SCHOLARSHIP FUND
1,887.00 100-55300-46752-32457400 REC INSTRUCTION FEES
1,955.00 100-55300-46752-32456700 REC INSTRUCTION FEES


156.00 100-55300-46752-32456600 REC INSTRUCTION FEES
2,652.99 100-55300-46752-32456500 REC INSTRUCTION FEES
1,422.01 100-55300-46752-32455900 REC INSTRUCTION FEES


919.76 100-55300-46752-32455800 REC INSTRUCTION FEES
450.00 100-55300-46752-32455400 REC INSTRUCTION FEES
775.24 100-55300-46752-32455100 REC INSTRUCTION FEES


1,295.00 100-55300-46752-32455000 REC INSTRUCTION FEES
800.00 100-55300-46750-32453600 RECREATION
445.00 100-55300-46750-32453500 RECREATION
485.00 100-55300-46750-32451700 RECREATION
140.00 100-55300-46750-32450800 RECREATION


1,310.00 100-55300-46750-32450300 RECREATION
180.00 100-55300-46750-32450000 RECREATION
70.00 100-55200-46720 PARK RESERVATIONS


3,970.00 100-54910-46540 CEMETERY FEES
3,983.11 100-54600-48505 DONATIONS - CENTER


219.93 100-54600-43790 COUNTY FUNDING - OUTREACH
75.00 100-53300-46430 STREET OPENING
120.00 100-53300-46309 ELECTRONIC RECYCLING FEES


7,965.00 100-53300-43545 RECYCLING GRANT
5,555.00 100-52400-44900 MISC


368.24 100-52400-44340 FIRE PROTECTION FEES
2,268.25 100-52400-44330 HEATING
2,758.25 100-52400-44320 PLUMBING
3,118.25 100-52400-44310 ELECTRICAL


12,082.35 100-52400-44300 BUILDING
19,818.56 100-52100-46290 MVD FEES


53.00 100-52100-46210 POLICE DEPT FEES
2,160.00 100-52100-45130 PARKING FINES
1,233.72 100-52100-43521 STATE GRANTS-POLICE


910.00 100-51510-46150 SPECIAL ASSESSMENT ADMIN FEES
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58,730.42 224 STORM SEWER FUND
3,003.82 223 PARK DEVELOPMENT FUND
2,699.61 217 LIBRARY SPECIAL GIFT FUND


38.92 215 LIBRARY FUND
9,043.27 207 TID #7 FUND


1,331,043.19 100 GENERAL FUND
*** TOTAL BY FUND ***


1,674,181.65 TOTAL - ALL GL NUMBERS:            


41.11 603-52300-50340-30100000 OPERATING EXPENSES
67,866.66 603-00000-13016 AMBULANCE RECEIVEABLES-3 RIVERS
2,212.87 411-00000-13010 RENTMC
1,725.00 411-00000-13010 RENT A
9,197.64 411-00000-13010 RENT
4,675.00 300-58200-50620-41700000 INTEREST


85,000.00 300-58100-50610-41700000 PRINCIPAL
169.28 270-00000-48112 INTEREST ON TAXES


15,067.75 270-00000-42100 CURB, GUTTER, EARTHWORK
74.01 252-00000-48541 DONATIONS- POLICE DEPT.
666.91 247-00000-41210 ROOM TAXES
32.68 245-55190-50340-50210211 OPERATING EXPENSES
500.00 245-00000-48500-50221046 DONATIONS


3,398.66 245-00000-48500-50210211 DONATIONS
1,025.00 245-00000-46920-50210211 MEMBERSHIPS
(399.73)245-00000-46745-50210211 REVENUE-FEES
360.00 245-00000-46742-50221528 TICKET SALES
140.00 245-00000-46742-50221527 TICKET SALES


(140.00)245-00000-46742-50221525 TICKET SALES
(25.00)245-00000-46742-50221523 TICKET SALES
43.75 245-00000-46742-50221522 TICKET SALES
(70.00)245-00000-46742-50221518 TICKET SALES


(150.00)245-00000-46742-50221515 TICKET SALES
120.00 245-00000-46742-50221513 TICKET SALES
(70.00)245-00000-46742-50221512 TICKET SALES
325.00 245-00000-46742-50221511 TICKET SALES
70.00 245-00000-46742-50221509 TICKET SALES
80.00 245-00000-46742-50221507 TICKET SALES
105.00 245-00000-46742-50221506 TICKET SALES


(105.00)245-00000-46742-50221505 TICKET SALES
(100.00)245-00000-46742-50221044 TICKET SALES


40.00 245-00000-46742-50221043 TICKET SALES
(70.00)245-00000-46742-50221042 TICKET SALES
(80.00)245-00000-46742-50221041 TICKET SALES


(120.00)245-00000-46742-50221039 TICKET SALES
(120.00)245-00000-46742-50221037 TICKET SALES
(70.00)245-00000-46742-50221035 TICKET SALES
350.00 245-00000-46742-50221033 TICKET SALES
140.00 245-00000-46742-50221032 TICKET SALES
(80.00)245-00000-46742-50221030 TICKET SALES
120.00 245-00000-46742-50221028 TICKET SALES
70.00 245-00000-46742-50221026 TICKET SALES
(44.00)245-00000-46742-50221019 TICKET SALES


(105.00)245-00000-46742-50221015 TICKET SALES
(765.00)245-00000-46742-50221014 TICKET SALES
(70.00)245-00000-46742-50221012 TICKET SALES


(130.00)245-00000-46742-50221011 TICKET SALES
(60.00)245-00000-46742-50221010 TICKET SALES


(140.00)245-00000-46742-50221007 TICKET SALES
(100.00)245-00000-46742-50221006 TICKET SALES
(585.00)245-00000-46742-50221005 TICKET SALES







RECEIPT REGISTER FOR CITY OF STOUGHTON 41/41Page:05/18/2021 07:36 AM
User: JAMIN
DB: Stoughton


Post Date from 04/01/2021 - 04/30/2021   Completed Receipts


 AmountReceived OfWkstnCashierDateReceipt #   
  Distribution   Description


1,674,181.65 TOTAL - ALL FUNDS:                 


67,907.77 603 EMS
13,135.51 411 BUILDING MAINTENANCE FUND
89,675.00 300 DEBT SERVICE FUND
15,237.03 270 SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS


74.01 252 K9 FUND
666.91 247 TOURISM FUND


3,635.29 245 OPERA HOUSE FUND
131.76 243 FIRE PENSION FUND


2,550.00 242 FIRE DEPT SPECIAL FUND
60,000.00 241 EMS TRUST FUND


250.00 236 TREE COMMISSION
2,961.03 234 FOOD PANTRY
1,030.00 232 SENIOR CENTER SPECIAL FUND


100.00 231 SENIORS IN NEED
12,268.11 227 EMS TRUCK FUND







Approved by State Board of Accounts for the Stoughton City, 2014


FUND: ALL FUNDS
CASH AND INVESTMENT ACCOUNTS


CASH SUMMARY BY FUND FOR STOUGHTON CITY 1/2Page: 05/18/2021 07:34 AM
User: JAMIN
DB: Stoughton


FROM 01/01/2021 TO 04/30/2021


Ending
Balance


04/30/2021
Total 


Credits 
Total 


Debits 


Beginning
Balance


01/01/2021DescriptionFund


6,114,941.66 27,701,325.00 18,749,050.54 15,067,216.12 GENERAL FUND100


237,223.65 513,073.36 382,258.79 368,038.22 TID #3 FUND203


316,952.75 256,967.76 306,545.10 267,375.41 TID #4 FUND204


(5,770.72)113,523.83 36,999.57 70,753.54 TID #5 FUND205


691,853.64 134,316.83 143,189.55 682,980.92 TID #6 FUND206


922,017.71 341,870.42 609,911.75 653,976.38 TID #7 FUND207


93,096.72 123,316.34 28,917.32 187,495.74 TID #8 FUND208


(1,526.77)9,899.74 5,600.00 2,772.97 SAFETY BUILDING FUND212


393,348.19 314,857.13 649,079.83 59,125.49 LIBRARY FUND215


281,836.07 3,568.13 41,662.52 243,741.68 LIBRARY SPECIAL GIFT FUND217


16,610.75 0.00 1.41 16,609.34 FIRE EQUIPMENT FUND221


484,344.12 5,400.00 4,295.32 485,448.80 PARK DEVELOPMENT FUND223


188,256.29 370,835.64 494,946.34 64,145.59 STORM SEWER FUND224


24,044.74 1,364.29 1,108.47 24,300.56 CEMETERY FUND225


87,251.10 0.00 12,276.93 74,974.17 EMS TRUCK FUND227


131,675.47 105,387.81 100,013.38 137,049.90 EMS EQUIPMENT FUND228


8,689.18 0.00 0.23 8,688.95 SENIOR CENTER WOOD SHOP229


11,740.59 2,766.82 3,809.52 10,697.89 TOWNSHIP OUTREACH FUND230


54,780.71 4,414.27 7,309.77 51,885.21 SENIORS IN NEED231


83,734.00 285.00 1,523.54 82,495.46 SENIOR CENTER SPECIAL FUND232


334,847.76 25,444.79 57,172.17 303,120.38 FOOD PANTRY234


10,998.10 5,520.17 16,548.77 (30.50)LANDMARKS235


5,232.53 0.00 250.13 4,982.40 TREE COMMISSION236


3,542.92 0.00 0.10 3,542.82 STOUGHTON ARTS COUNCIL239


79,294.77 1,529.34 62,565.67 18,258.44 EMS TRUST FUND241


39,082.93 4,965.70 4,453.09 39,595.54 FIRE DEPT SPECIAL FUND242


879,351.37 1,179.39 3,259.92 877,270.84 FIRE PENSION FUND243


127,746.87 255,389.76 383,136.63 0.00 OPERA HOUSE FUND245


6,778.37 0.00 0.62 6,777.75 OPERA HOUSE REPAIR FUND246


26,593.29 10,310.89 12,124.13 24,780.05 TOURISM FUND247


56,830.37 4,000.00 22,897.67 37,932.70 REVOLVING LOAN FUND248


601,036.37 269,649.42 800,830.36 69,855.43 REFUSE FUND249


159,354.77 46,777.11 100,000.00 106,131.88 SICK LEAVE FUND250


12,137.10 2,036.12 485.36 13,687.86 K9 FUND252


512,637.51 0.00 512,637.51 0.00 AFFORDABLE HOUSING FUND253


4,852.99 6,448.63 8,000.05 3,301.57 REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY261


532,207.12 149,774.51 334,848.97 347,132.66 SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS270


743,620.94 4,141,557.12 4,493,923.45 391,254.61 DEBT SERVICE FUND300


2,219,516.93 327,504.71 371,076.68 2,175,944.96 CONSTRUCTION FUND400


490,769.31 546,913.66 303,962.21 733,720.76 CAPITAL OUTLAY FUND410


579,321.30 9,029.46 63,640.85 524,709.91 BUILDING MAINTENANCE FUND411


319,549.21 236,088.68 279,377.83 276,260.06 EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND412
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FUND: ALL FUNDS
CASH AND INVESTMENT ACCOUNTS


CASH SUMMARY BY FUND FOR STOUGHTON CITY 2/2Page: 05/18/2021 07:34 AM
User: JAMIN
DB: Stoughton


FROM 01/01/2021 TO 04/30/2021


Ending
Balance


04/30/2021
Total 


Credits 
Total 


Debits 


Beginning
Balance


01/01/2021DescriptionFund


94,447.58 698.00 0.00 95,145.58 TECHNOLOGY FUND413


159,413.09 304,263.62 266,430.61 197,246.10 EMS603


18,134,263.35 36,352,253.45 29,676,122.66 24,810,394.14 TOTAL - ALL FUNDS







CHECK RECONCILIATION REPORT FOR STOUGHTON CITY
1/2Page: 


05/18/2021 07:33 AM
User: JAMIN
DB: Stoughton


Statement Date: 04/30/2021


AppAmountVendor NameVendor CodeCheck Num Check Date


Bank 3 - US BANK


*** OUTSTANDING CHECKS ***


AP77.00 SUSAN STRANDLIE00119768933 08/27/2020
AP200.00 KELSEY MILES00639668994 09/10/2020
AP40.00 ERIC OLSEN00725469271 10/15/2020
AP70.00 NATHAN GATES00731069627 12/10/2020
AP75.00 SUSAN STRANDLIE00119769683 12/10/2020
PR1,667.34 WEGNER, SCOTT9996169840 12/29/2020
AP52.37 BRIAN OR KARRON CONGER00733869762 12/31/2020
AP19.25 ALFRED OR MARILYN SEIER00137669818 12/31/2020
AP15.95 LEAH ZAHREN00732669839 12/31/2020
AP199.96 TODD OR NOELLE VAN DE KREEKE00734969918 01/07/2021
AP17.00 CHERYL ERICKSON00735669947 01/14/2021
AP89.31 MATTHEW OR KRISTINE HORABIK00436669960 01/14/2021
AP14.99 BRICE WALKER00738770067 01/21/2021
AP276.48 TOWN OF MADISON 00585570168 02/04/2021
AP26.00 RANDI STILLER00739970209 02/11/2021
AP7,504.00 SOUTH CENTRAL LIBRARY SYSTEM00082770340 02/25/2021
AP77.00 SUSAN STRANDLIE00119770347 02/25/2021
AP110.00 FBINAA WISCONSIN CHAPTER00586270418 03/11/2021
AP126.00 ANNE PAPPADAKIS00741070435 03/11/2021
AP12,926.69 US BANK CORPORATE PAYMENT SYSTEMS0046921835(E) 03/26/2021
AP14.86 HILLARY GRANT00741770526 04/01/2021
AP21,754.71 NORTH SHORE BANK FSB00066270543 04/01/2021
AP138.00 UWHC00281070558 04/01/2021
AP127.50 PICK-N-SAVE00070670583 04/08/2021
AP17,471.91 US BANK CORPORATE PAYMENT SYSTEMS0046921849(E) 04/09/2021
AP2,375.00 HAMACHER LAWN CARE SERVICE LLC00284570623 04/15/2021
AP168.82 ROLF HANSEN00743970624 04/15/2021
AP80.00 MATC00519770637 04/15/2021
AP299.95 TRUCK SPECIALTY & DETAIL00520370667 04/15/2021
AP35.00 UWHC00281070669 04/15/2021
AP838.00 XYLEM WATER SOLUTIONS U.S.A. INC.00345770678 04/15/2021
AP1,171.94 DANE COUNTY TREASURER - LAND C00028670695 04/22/2021
AP300.00 CHRISTINA DOLLHAUSEN00572770697 04/22/2021
AP70.00 CHARLES ERICKSON00584070701 04/22/2021
AP50.00 FIRST LUTHERAN CHURCH00122470704 04/22/2021
AP70.00 ANNE JONES00491570714 04/22/2021
AP2,090.49 LAKESIDE INTERNATIONAL LLC00478270720 04/22/2021
AP50.00 LAKEVIEW CHURCH00122570721 04/22/2021
AP70.00 MARTIN LAMERS00517870722 04/22/2021
AP70.00 JENNIFER LAPORTE00731170724 04/22/2021
AP80.00 CORINNE MC GEEVER00491470728 04/22/2021
AP250.00 BLAINE MCQUINN00744070730 04/22/2021
AP17.38 BARBARA NATVIG-GOWAN00744670732 04/22/2021
AP300.00 NAVSURFWARCENDIV CRANE00302370733 04/22/2021
AP327.27 PERFORMANCE FOODSERVICE TPC00629570738 04/22/2021
AP695.37 PRIZEPROMOS00072170739 04/22/2021
AP70.00 CATHY RIGDON00076070744 04/22/2021
AP8,681.00 STAINLESS & REPAIR INC00742270748 04/22/2021
AP70.00 ROBERT STECHSCHULTE00583970749 04/22/2021
AP70.00 LAURA STOKSTAD00657170750 04/22/2021
AP77.00 SUSAN STRANDLIE00119770754 04/22/2021
AP77.00 AARON TECHE00089570759 04/22/2021
AP70.00 KRISTY THALACKER00125070760 04/22/2021
AP50.00 UNITED METHODIST CHURCH00122370763 04/22/2021
AP27.40 ANDREW JOHNSON0013211817(E) 04/29/2021
AP19.58 ALEX MATHISON0062241818(E) 04/29/2021
AP117.50 KATIE MUNLEY0074501819(E) 04/29/2021
AP19.58 JOE SHERVEY0074341820(E) 04/29/2021
AP19.58 JUDY WALLANDER0074351821(E) 04/29/2021
AP4,399.92 3 RIVERS BILLING INC00254170770 04/29/2021
AP1,722.00 5 ALARM00010070771 04/29/2021
AP76.53 AIRGAS USA LLC00011170772 04/29/2021
AP15.00 CARISSA ALT00745470773 04/29/2021
AP516.00 BOARDMAN & CLARK  LLP00527470774 04/29/2021
AP14,053.00 BS&A SOFTWARE00470870775 04/29/2021
AP15.00 MIYAH CARBAJAL00745570776 04/29/2021
AP1,660.83 DANE COUNTY CLERK00027170777 04/29/2021
AP290.00 DANE COUNTY CLERK OF COURTS00286970778 04/29/2021
AP705.00 DUCKSOUP SIGNS & DESIGN00153870779 04/29/2021
AP42.00 FOSDAL BAKERY LLC00036570780 04/29/2021
AP331.33 GALL'S INC00038670781 04/29/2021







CHECK RECONCILIATION REPORT FOR STOUGHTON CITY
2/2Page: 


05/18/2021 07:33 AM
User: JAMIN
DB: Stoughton


Statement Date: 04/30/2021


AppAmountVendor NameVendor CodeCheck Num Check Date


Bank 3 - US BANK


AP599.97 HANSON ELECTRONICS00043170782 04/29/2021
AP73.00 HANSON PEST MANAGEMENT 2 INC00700170783 04/29/2021
AP300.00 COURTNEY HARTMAN00745370784 04/29/2021
AP799.50 JEFFERSON FIRE & SAFETY INC00048870785 04/29/2021
AP128.83 KROGER00572070786 04/29/2021
AP404.69 NATIONAL GOVERNMENT SERVICES00421270787 04/29/2021
AP2,350.25 NO SHORTS ELECTRIC LLC00133970788 04/29/2021
AP102.00 O'BRION AGENCY LLC00218670789 04/29/2021
AP20.00 QUADIENT INC00711170790 04/29/2021
AP150.00 SAUK COUNTY SHERIFF'S DEPARTMENT00745170791 04/29/2021
AP17,283.06 STAFFORD ROSENBAUM LLP00213970792 04/29/2021
AP384.00 STATE BAR OF WISCONSIN00745270793 04/29/2021
AP4,747.00 STREICHER'S00087570794 04/29/2021
AP18.38 TOTAL WATER TREATMENT SYS INC00091670795 04/29/2021
AP409.65 UHC MEDICARE COMPLETE00744370796 04/29/2021
AP160.00 WISCONSIN MEDICAL SUPPLIES LLC00744770797 04/29/2021


133,626.12 Totals: 87
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User: JAMIN
DB: Stoughton


Page: 1/14


CR Amount DR Amount GL DescriptionGL NumberDescriptionJournalPost Date


Ref Num1: '7131'   JE04/01/2021
GL Trx #: 140462


220,000.00DUE TO EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND100-00000-25900DUE TO EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND
220,000.00PRIMARY CHECKING100-00000-11100PRIMARY CHECKING


220,000.00PRIMARY CHECKING412-00000-11100PRIMARY CHECKING
220,000.00DUE FROM GENERAL FUND412-00000-15100DUE FROM GENERAL FUND


440,000.00440,000.00


Ref Num1: '7142'   JE04/01/2021
GL Trx #: 140736


1,500.00ADMINISTRATION EXPENSE603-52300-50325-30100000TO RECORD ADMIN FEES FROM EMS 
1,500.00EMS ADMINISTRATION100-00000-47440TO RECORD ADMIN FEES FROM EMS 
1,500.00PRIMARY CHECKING603-00000-11100TO RECORD ADMIN FEES FROM EMS 


1,500.00PRIMARY CHECKING100-00000-11100TO RECORD ADMIN FEES FROM EMS 


3,000.003,000.00


Ref Num1: '7141'   JE04/01/2021
GL Trx #: 140739


2,435.44RENT EXPENSE603-52300-50316-30100000TO RECORD RENT PAYMENT FROM EMS 
2,435.44RENT INCOME - UTILITY BUILDING411-00000-48200TO RECORD RENT PAYMENT FROM EMS 
2,435.44PRIMARY CHECKING603-00000-11100TO RECORD RENT PAYMENT FROM EMS 


2,435.44PRIMARY CHECKING411-00000-11100TO RECORD RENT PAYMENT FROM EMS 


4,870.884,870.88


Ref Num1: '7184'   JE04/01/2021
GL Trx #: 141900


39,313.00FIRE - BREATHING & STORAGE TANKS410-57220-50820-21033000FIRE - BREATHING & STORAGE TANKS
39,313.00FIRE - BREATHING AIR COMPRESSOR & TANK412-57190-50820-20023000FIRE - BREATHING AIR COMPRESSOR & TANK
39,313.00PRIMARY CHECKING410-00000-11100PRIMARY CHECKING


39,313.00PRIMARY CHECKING412-00000-11100PRIMARY CHECKING


78,626.0078,626.00


Ref Num1: '7154'   JE04/02/2021
GL Trx #: 140749


2,578.66EQUIP MAINTENANCE- STORMWATER224-53300-50336-50600000MECHANICAL WORK DONE ON STORMWATER EQUIP
2,578.66PRIMARY CHECKING224-00000-11100MECHANICAL WORK DONE ON STORMWATER EQUIP


2,578.66PRIMARY CHECKING100-00000-11100MECHANICAL WORK DONE ON STORMWATER EQUIP
2,578.66OPERATING EXPENSES100-53300-50340-42200000MECHANICAL WORK DONE ON STORMWATER EQUIP


5,157.325,157.32
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CR Amount DR Amount GL DescriptionGL NumberDescriptionJournalPost Date


Ref Num1: '7156'   JE04/02/2021
GL Trx #: 140750


2,170.18EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE100-52200-50240-31900000MECHANICAL WORK DONE ON FIRE EQUIPMENT
2,170.18OPERATING EXPENSES100-53300-50340-42200000MECHANICAL WORK DONE ON FIRE EQUIPMENT


2,170.182,170.18


Ref Num1: '7155'   JE04/02/2021
GL Trx #: 140751


3,324.60OPERATING EXPENSES100-53300-50340-31300000MECHANICAL WORK DONE ON SNOW EQUIPMENT
3,324.60OPERATING EXPENSES100-53300-50340-42200000MECHANICAL WORK DONE ON SNOW EQUIPMENT


3,324.603,324.60


Ref Num1: '7157'   JE04/02/2021
GL Trx #: 140752


114.54VEHICLE EXPENSE100-52100-50330-31100000MECHANICAL WORK DONE ON POLICE EQUIPMENT
114.54OPERATING EXPENSES100-53300-50340-42200000MECHANICAL WORK DONE ON POLICE EQUIPMENT


114.54114.54


Ref Num1: '7158'   JE04/02/2021
GL Trx #: 140753


957.74EQUIPMENT REPAIRS100-55200-50350-31500000MECHANICAL WORK DONE ON PARK EQUIPMENT
957.74OPERATING EXPENSES100-53300-50340-42200000MECHANICAL WORK DONE ON PARK EQUIPMENT


957.74957.74


Ref Num1: '7159'   JE04/02/2021
GL Trx #: 140754


3,723.26OPERATING EXPENSES100-53300-50340-31200000MECHANICAL WORK  ON ST MAINTENANCE EQUIP
3,723.26OPERATING EXPENSES100-53300-50340-42200000MECHANICAL WORK  ON ST MAINTENANCE EQUIP


3,723.263,723.26


Ref Num1: '7164'   CDJE04/02/2021
GL Trx #: 140835


30.00EBC DEDUCTIONS100-00000-21520TO RECORD WHAT EBC TOOK -9/21/18 PAYROLL
30.00PRIMARY CHECKING100-00000-11100TO RECORD WHAT EBC TOOK -9/21/18 PAYROLL


30.0030.00


Ref Num1: '7163'   JE04/05/2021
GL Trx #: 140834


3,303.42PRIMARY CHECKING100-00000-11100TO RECORD VINING SPARKS WIRE PAYMENT
1,656.00ACCRUED INTEREST RECEIVABLE100-00000-12530TO RECORD VINING SPARKS WIRE PAYMENT
1,647.42INTEREST100-00000-48110-41600000TO RECORD VINING SPARKS WIRE PAYMENT


3,303.423,303.42
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Ref Num1: '7166'   JE04/06/2021
GL Trx #: 140976


15.00PARKING FINES100-52100-45130REALLOCATE RECEIPT 100053182-KOCH
15.00COURT FINES100-00000-22210REALLOCATE RECEIPT 100053182-KOCH


15.0015.00


Ref Num1: '7165'   JE04/06/2021
GL Trx #: 140977


500.00DONATIONS- KITCHEN FUND100-54600-48503REALLOCATE TO DONATION ACCOUNT PER CM
500.00DONATIONS - CENTER100-54600-48505REALLOCATE TO DONATION ACCOUNT PER CM


500.00500.00


Ref Num1: '7169'   JE04/07/2021
GL Trx #: 140979


512,637.51PRIMARY CHECKING253-00000-11100PRIMARY CHECKING
512,637.51TRANSFER IN - TIF #3253-00000-49223TRANSFER IN - TIF #3


512,637.51TRANSFER TO OTHER FUND203-59204-50930TRANSFER TO OTHER FUND
512,637.51PRIMARY CHECKING203-00000-11100PRIMARY CHECKING


1,025,275.021,025,275.02


Ref Num1: '7171'   JE04/08/2021
GL Trx #: 141172


15,000.00REV LOAN FUND RECEIVABLE248-00000-13501REV LOAN FUND RECEIVABLE
15,000.00TIF CONTRIBUTION248-00000-48100TIF CONTRIBUTION


15,000.0015,000.00


Ref Num1: '7174'   JE04/12/2021
GL Trx #: 141173


591.90MISC EXPENSES100-51900-50300TO RECORD ALDI REFUNDED TAXES
591.90TAXES RECEIVABLE100-00000-13070TO RECORD ALDI REFUNDED TAXES


591.90591.90


Ref Num1: '7172'   JE04/12/2021
GL Trx #: 141898


0.46INTEREST224-00000-48110INTEREST
0.46RECEIVABLES-PRIOR YEAR224-00000-13012RECEIVABLES-PRIOR YEAR


0.460.46
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Ref Num1: '7175'   JE04/13/2021
GL Trx #: 141254


3,241.10PRIMARY CHECKING100-00000-11100TO RECORD VINING SPARKS WIRE PAYMENT
1,354.00ACCRUED INTEREST RECEIVABLE100-00000-12530TO RECORD VINING SPARKS WIRE PAYMENT
1,887.10INTEREST100-00000-48110-41600000TO RECORD VINING SPARKS WIRE PAYMENT


3,241.103,241.10


Ref Num1: '7176'   JE04/14/2021
GL Trx #: 141284


253.51MISC EXPENSES100-51900-50300WRITE OFF DEL PP & CHARGEBACKS R-37-2019
253.51DELINQUENT PERS PROP TAXES100-00000-12330WRITE OFF DEL PP & CHARGEBACKS R-37-2019


253.51253.51


Ref Num1: '7179'   CRJE04/15/2021
GL Trx #: 141810


225,506.19PRIMARY CHECKING100-00000-11100TO RECORD LOTTERY CREDIT SETTLEMENT
225,506.19TAXES RECEIVABLE100-00000-13070TO RECORD LOTTERY CREDIT SETTLEMENT


225,506.19225,506.19


Ref Num1: '7178'   CRJE04/16/2021
GL Trx #: 141809


30.00PRIMARY CHECKING100-00000-11100TO RECORD WHAT EBC TOOK 4/16/21 PAYROLL
30.00EBC DEDUCTIONS100-00000-21520TO RECORD WHAT EBC TOOK 4/16/21 PAYROLL


30.0030.00


Ref Num1: '7180'   JE04/19/2021
GL Trx #: 141811


61,984.47ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE224-00000-13010MARCH STORMWATER REVENUE
61,984.47STORMWATER USER FEES224-00000-46300MARCH STORMWATER REVENUE


2,167.78OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS-3224-53300-50217-50600000MARCH STORMWATER REVENUE
1,086.27OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS-3224-53300-50217-50600000MARCH STORMWATER REVENUE


3,254.05ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE224-00000-13010MARCH STORMWATER REVENUE


65,238.5265,238.52


Ref Num1: '7181'   JE04/20/2021
GL Trx #: 141812


20.00COURT FINES100-00000-22210REALLOCATE RECEIPT 100053490-BYRNE
20.00PARKING FINES100-52100-45130REALLOCATE RECEIPT 100053490-BYRNE


20.0020.00
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Ref Num1: '7182'   JE04/20/2021
GL Trx #: 141896


3,303.42PRIMARY CHECKING100-00000-11100TO RECORD VINING SPARKS WIRE PAYMENT
1,406.00ACCRUED INTEREST RECEIVABLE100-00000-12530TO RECORD VINING SPARKS WIRE PAYMENT
1,897.42INTEREST100-00000-48110-41600000TO RECORD VINING SPARKS WIRE PAYMENT


3,303.423,303.42


Ref Num1: '7183'   JE04/21/2021
GL Trx #: 141897


2,016.25DOG LICENSE100-00000-22110TO RECORD CITY SHARE OF DOG LICENSE
2,016.25DOG100-00000-44210TO RECORD CITY SHARE OF DOG LICENSE


2,016.252,016.25


Ref Num1: '7186'   JE04/21/2021
GL Trx #: 141901


5,600.00TRANSFER TO PS BUILDING100-59500-50932TRANSFER FROM GENERAL FUND
5,600.00PRIMARY CHECKING100-00000-11100TRANSFER FROM GENERAL FUND


5,600.00PRIMARY CHECKING212-00000-11100TRANSFER FROM GENERAL FUND
5,600.00TRANSFER IN - GENERAL FUND212-00000-49210TRANSFER FROM GENERAL FUND


11,200.0011,200.00


Ref Num1: '7188'   JE04/21/2021
GL Trx #: 141902


9,137.78PRIMARY CHECKING412-00000-11100TRANSFER FROM WISC TO CHECKING
9,137.78WISC INVESTMENT FUND412-00000-11302TRANSFER FROM WISC TO CHECKING


9,137.789,137.78


Ref Num1: '7187'   JE04/21/2021
GL Trx #: 141903


1,105.48PRIMARY CHECKING225-00000-11100TRANSFER FROM WISC TO CHECKING
1,105.48WISC INVESTMENT FUND225-00000-11302TRANSFER FROM WISC TO CHECKING


1,105.481,105.48


Ref Num1: '7185'   JE04/21/2021
GL Trx #: 141904


175,000.00PRIMARY CHECKING204-00000-11100TRANSFER FROM WISC TO CHECKING
175,000.00WISC INVESTMENT FUND204-00000-11302TRANSFER FROM WISC TO CHECKING


175,000.00175,000.00
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Ref Num1: '7189'   JE04/21/2021
GL Trx #: 141905


176.38PRIMARY CHECKING224-00000-11100TRANSFER FROM WISC TO CHECKING
176.38WISC DEBT PROCEEDS224-00000-11303TRANSFER FROM WISC TO CHECKING


141,162.01PRIMARY CHECKING300-00000-11100TRANSFER FROM WISC TO CHECKING
141,162.01WISC DEBT PROCEEDS300-00000-11303TRANSFER FROM WISC TO CHECKING


217,354.91PRIMARY CHECKING400-00000-11100TRANSFER FROM WISC TO CHECKING
217,354.91WISC DEBT PROCEEDS400-00000-11303TRANSFER FROM WISC TO CHECKING


145,739.61PRIMARY CHECKING410-00000-11100TRANSFER FROM WISC TO CHECKING
145,739.61WISC DEBT PROCEEDS410-00000-11303TRANSFER FROM WISC TO CHECKING


504,432.91504,432.91


Ref Num1: '7191'   CRJE04/23/2021
GL Trx #: 142168


12,031.91PRIMARY CHECKING248-00000-11100TO RECORD WWBIC Q3 RLF PAYMENT
329.78INTEREST - RLF 248-00000-48108GREEN ROAD POTTERY


2,253.67REV LOAN FUND RECEIVABLE248-00000-13501GREEN ROAD POTTERY
281.97INTEREST - RLF 248-00000-48108VIKING BREW PUB


2,420.76REV LOAN FUND RECEIVABLE248-00000-13501VIKING BREW PUB
83.34INTEREST - RLF 248-00000-48108GEMINI GAMES


725.25REV LOAN FUND RECEIVABLE248-00000-13501GEMINI GAMES
210.58INTEREST - RLF 248-00000-48108MC SQUARED LLC


2,484.71REV LOAN FUND RECEIVABLE248-00000-13501MC SQUARED LLC
345.50INTEREST - RLF 248-00000-48108FOSDAL BAKERY


2,627.47REV LOAN FUND RECEIVABLE248-00000-13501FOSDAL BAKERY
268.88INTEREST - RLF 248-00000-48108MERSHONIAN CIDERY


12,031.9112,031.91


Ref Num1: '7192'   CRJE04/23/2021
GL Trx #: 142291


0.40PRIMARY CHECKING100-00000-11100CORRECT RECEIPT 100053614 - VALHMU
0.40COURT FINES100-00000-22210CORRECT RECEIPT 100053614 - VALHMU


0.400.40


Ref Num1: '7205'   CDJE04/27/2021
GL Trx #: 142528


136.60COURT FINES100-00000-22210REFUND - BF106771-0 - GNIECH MCMILLAN
136.60PRIMARY CHECKING100-00000-11100REFUND - BF106771-0 - MCMILLAN, DAWN


136.60136.60
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Ref Num1: '7193'   CDJE04/28/2021
GL Trx #: 142298


537.50MVD FEES100-52100-46290CHARGEBACK-KEMPPAINEN - SJ2271
537.50PRIMARY CHECKING100-00000-11100CHARGEBACK-KEMPPAINEN - SJ2271


537.50537.50


Ref Num1: '7194'   JE04/28/2021
GL Trx #: 142299


220,000.00DUE FROM GENERAL FUND412-00000-15100DUE FROM GENERAL FUND
220,000.00DUE TO ELEC UTILITY412-00000-25800DUE TO ELEC UTILITY


220,000.00220,000.00


Ref Num1: '7197'   CDJE04/30/2021
GL Trx #: 142519


233.00MISC OUTSIDE SERVICES100-51510-50200RECORD EBC FEE
233.00PRIMARY CHECKING100-00000-11100RECORD EBC FEE


233.00233.00


Ref Num1: '7198'   JE04/30/2021
GL Trx #: 142520


72.06OFFICE SUPPLIES100-51510-50310TO RECORD COPIER USAGE
198.53OPERATING EXPENSES - PLANNING DEPARTMENT100-56300-50340-20600000TO RECORD COPIER USAGE
70.91OPERATING EXPENSES - PLANNING DEPARTMENT100-56300-50340-32200000TO RECORD COPIER USAGE
14.18OPERATING EXPENSES - PLANNING DEPARTMENT100-56300-50340-41900000TO RECORD COPIER USAGE


629.70OFFICE SUPPLIES100-51510-50310TO RECORD COPIER USAGE
61.08OPERATING EXPENSES100-51440-50340-40700000TO RECORD COPIER USAGE
18.54ADS & PUBLICATIONS100-55300-50315-32400000TO RECORD COPIER USAGE


194.40OFFICE SUPPLIES100-51510-50310-40800000TO RECORD COPIER USAGE
5.64OPERATING EXPENSES-MISC EVENT EXPENSES245-55190-50346-50200000TO RECORD COPIER USAGE


5.64PRIMARY CHECKING245-00000-11100TO RECORD COPIER USAGE
5.64PRIMARY CHECKING100-00000-11100TO RECORD COPIER USAGE


5.64OFFICE SUPPLIES100-51510-50310-40800000TO RECORD COPIER USAGE


640.98640.98


Ref Num1: '7196'   CRJE04/30/2021
GL Trx #: 142521


206.69PRIMARY CHECKING100-00000-11100TO RECORD UNITED WAY PAYMENT
206.69UNITED WAY DONATIONS100-55400-48524TO RECORD UNITED WAY PAYMENT


206.69206.69
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Ref Num1: '7199'   JE04/30/2021
GL Trx #: 142522


109.60OPERATING EXPENSES100-51200-50340-31700000TO RECORD MONTHLY POSTAGE USAGE
5.48OPERATING EXPENSES100-51440-50340-40700000TO RECORD MONTHLY POSTAGE USAGE


44.13OPERATING EXPENSES100-52100-50340-30800000TO RECORD MONTHLY POSTAGE USAGE
50.73OPERATING EXPENSES100-54600-50340-30300000TO RECORD MONTHLY POSTAGE USAGE
50.73OPERATING EXPENSES100-54600-50340-30400000TO RECORD MONTHLY POSTAGE USAGE
50.73OPERATING EXPENSES100-54600-50340-30500000TO RECORD MONTHLY POSTAGE USAGE
50.71OPERATING EXPENSES100-54600-50340-50400000TO RECORD MONTHLY POSTAGE USAGE
69.36ADS & PUBLICATIONS100-55300-50315-32400000TO RECORD MONTHLY POSTAGE USAGE
33.35POSTAGE100-51510-50211-40800000TO RECORD MONTHLY POSTAGE USAGE


179.79OFFICE SUPPLIES100-51510-50310TO RECORD MONTHLY POSTAGE USAGE
246.10OPERATING EXPENSES - PLANNING DEPARTMENT100-56300-50340-20600000TO RECORD MONTHLY POSTAGE USAGE
87.90OPERATING EXPENSES - PLANNING DEPARTMENT100-56300-50340-32200000TO RECORD MONTHLY POSTAGE USAGE
17.58OPERATING EXPENSES - PLANNING DEPARTMENT100-56300-50340-41900000TO RECORD MONTHLY POSTAGE USAGE


1,010.31OFFICE SUPPLIES100-51510-50310-40800000TO RECORD MONTHLY POSTAGE USAGE
1.02OPERATING EXPENSES-MISC EVENT EXPENSES245-55190-50346-50200000TO RECORD MONTHLY POSTAGE USAGE


1.02PRIMARY CHECKING245-00000-11100TO RECORD MONTHLY POSTAGE USAGE
1.02PRIMARY CHECKING100-00000-11100TO RECORD MONTHLY POSTAGE USAGE


1.02OFFICE SUPPLIES100-51510-50310-40800000TO RECORD MONTHLY POSTAGE USAGE
19.38FOOD PANTRY EXPENSES234-55100-50724TO RECORD MONTHLY POSTAGE USAGE


19.38PRIMARY CHECKING234-00000-11100TO RECORD MONTHLY POSTAGE USAGE
19.38PRIMARY CHECKING100-00000-11100TO RECORD MONTHLY POSTAGE USAGE


19.38OFFICE SUPPLIES100-51510-50310-40800000TO RECORD MONTHLY POSTAGE USAGE
0.51OPERATING EXPENSES231-54600-50340TO RECORD MONTHLY POSTAGE USAGE


0.51PRIMARY CHECKING231-00000-11100TO RECORD MONTHLY POSTAGE USAGE
0.51PRIMARY CHECKING100-00000-11100TO RECORD MONTHLY POSTAGE USAGE


0.51OFFICE SUPPLIES100-51510-50310-40800000TO RECORD MONTHLY POSTAGE USAGE
3.82OFFICE SUPPLIES603-52300-50310-30100000TO RECORD MONTHLY POSTAGE USAGE


3.82PRIMARY CHECKING603-00000-11100TO RECORD MONTHLY POSTAGE USAGE
3.82PRIMARY CHECKING100-00000-11100TO RECORD MONTHLY POSTAGE USAGE


3.82OFFICE SUPPLIES100-51510-50310-40800000TO RECORD MONTHLY POSTAGE USAGE
6.05OFFICE SUPPLIES100-51510-50310-40900000TO RECORD MONTHLY POSTAGE USAGE
6.05OFFICE SUPPLIES100-51510-50310-41100000TO RECORD MONTHLY POSTAGE USAGE
2.02OFFICE SUPPLIES100-53300-50310-31200000TO RECORD MONTHLY POSTAGE USAGE


1,059.771,059.77


Ref Num1: '7207'   CDJE04/30/2021
GL Trx #: 142529


61.63OUTSIDE SERVICES/BANK FEES100-51510-50216-41600000TO RECORD BANK FEE -WISC
61.63PRIMARY CHECKING100-00000-11100TO RECORD BANK FEE -WISC


61.6361.63
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Ref Num1: '7206'   CDJE04/30/2021
GL Trx #: 142530


2,537.61US BANK - CC245-00000-11102RECORD OH CREDIT CARD DEPOSITS
2,537.61PRIMARY CHECKING245-00000-11100RECORD OH CREDIT CARD DEPOSITS


2,537.612,537.61


Ref Num1: '7208'   JE04/30/2021
GL Trx #: 142531


384.36WISC LTD 100-00000-11301TO RECORD MONTHLY INTEREST
384.36INTEREST100-00000-48110-41600000TO RECORD MONTHLY INTEREST


384.36384.36


Ref Num1: '7210'   JE04/30/2021
GL Trx #: 142533


0.20US BANK - CC245-00000-11102TO RECORD INTEREST - O.H.
0.20INTEREST245-00000-48110-50200000TO RECORD INTEREST - O.H.


0.200.20


Ref Num1: '7211'   JE04/30/2021
GL Trx #: 142534


251.85OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS-2245-55190-50216-50200000TO RECORD MERCHANT FEES -O.H.
251.85US BANK - CC245-00000-11102TO RECORD MERCHANT FEES -O.H.


251.85251.85


Ref Num1: '7215'   JE04/30/2021
GL Trx #: 142538


8,865.20COURT FINES100-00000-22210TO RECORD CITY SHARE OF COURT REVENUE
2,667.93COURT PENALTIES/COSTS100-51200-45100TO RECORD CITY SHARE OF COURT REVENUE
6,197.27COURT PENALTIES/COSTS100-00000-45100TO RECORD CITY SHARE OF COURT REVENUE


8,865.208,865.20


Ref Num1: '7216'   JE04/30/2021
GL Trx #: 142539


12.90WISC DEBT PROCEEDS206-00000-11303TO RECORD MONTHLY DEBT INTEREST
12.90INTEREST206-00000-48110TO RECORD MONTHLY DEBT INTEREST


3.71WISC DEBT PROCEEDS400-00000-11303TO RECORD MONTHLY DEBT INTEREST
3.71INTEREST400-00000-48110TO RECORD MONTHLY DEBT INTEREST


2.49WISC DEBT PROCEEDS410-00000-11303TO RECORD MONTHLY DEBT INTEREST
2.49INTEREST410-00000-48110TO RECORD MONTHLY DEBT INTEREST


2.41WISC DEBT PROCEEDS300-00000-11303TO RECORD MONTHLY DEBT INTEREST
2.41INTEREST300-00000-48110TO RECORD MONTHLY DEBT INTEREST


21.5121.51
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Ref Num1: '7217'   JE04/30/2021
GL Trx #: 142540


171.30WISC INVESTMENT FUND100-00000-11302TO RECORD MONTHLY WISC INTEREST EARNED
171.30INTEREST100-00000-48110-41600000TO RECORD MONTHLY WISC INTEREST EARNED


4.20WISC INVESTMENT FUND203-00000-11302TO RECORD MONTHLY WISC INTEREST EARNED
4.20INTEREST203-00000-48110TO RECORD MONTHLY WISC INTEREST EARNED


10.95WISC INVESTMENT FUND204-00000-11302TO RECORD MONTHLY WISC INTEREST EARNED
10.95INTEREST204-00000-48110TO RECORD MONTHLY WISC INTEREST EARNED


7.50WISC INVESTMENT FUND207-00000-11302TO RECORD MONTHLY WISC INTEREST EARNED
7.50INTEREST207-00000-48110TO RECORD MONTHLY WISC INTEREST EARNED


4.80WISC INVESTMENT FUND217-00000-11302TO RECORD MONTHLY WISC INTEREST EARNED
4.80INTEREST217-00000-48110TO RECORD MONTHLY WISC INTEREST EARNED


0.30WISC INVESTMENT FUND221-00000-11302TO RECORD MONTHLY WISC INTEREST EARNED
0.30INTEREST221-00000-48110TO RECORD MONTHLY WISC INTEREST EARNED


10.20WISC INVESTMENT FUND223-00000-11302TO RECORD MONTHLY WISC INTEREST EARNED
10.20INTEREST223-00000-48110TO RECORD MONTHLY WISC INTEREST EARNED


0.60WISC INVESTMENT FUND225-00000-11302TO RECORD MONTHLY WISC INTEREST EARNED
0.01INTEREST225-00000-48109TO RECORD MONTHLY WISC INTEREST EARNED
0.59INTEREST - BAILEY SISTER ACCOUNT225-00000-48110TO RECORD MONTHLY WISC INTEREST EARNED


1.80WISC INVESTMENT FUND227-00000-11302TO RECORD MONTHLY WISC INTEREST EARNED
1.80INTEREST227-00000-48110TO RECORD MONTHLY WISC INTEREST EARNED


2.40WISC INVESTMENT FUND228-00000-11302TO RECORD MONTHLY WISC INTEREST EARNED
2.40INTEREST228-00000-48110TO RECORD MONTHLY WISC INTEREST EARNED


0.60WISC INVESTMENT FUND231-00000-11302TO RECORD MONTHLY WISC INTEREST EARNED
0.60INTEREST231-00000-48110TO RECORD MONTHLY WISC INTEREST EARNED


0.30WISC INVESTMENT FUND232-00000-11302TO RECORD MONTHLY WISC INTEREST EARNED
0.30INTEREST232-00000-48110TO RECORD MONTHLY WISC INTEREST EARNED


4.80WISC INVESTMENT FUND234-00000-11302TO RECORD MONTHLY WISC INTEREST EARNED
4.80INTEREST234-00000-48110TO RECORD MONTHLY WISC INTEREST EARNED


0.60WISC INVESTMENT FUND242-00000-11302TO RECORD MONTHLY WISC INTEREST EARNED
0.60INTEREST242-00000-48110TO RECORD MONTHLY WISC INTEREST EARNED


18.30WISC INVESTMENT FUND243-00000-11302TO RECORD MONTHLY WISC INTEREST EARNED
18.30INTEREST243-00000-48110TO RECORD MONTHLY WISC INTEREST EARNED


11.10WISC INVESTMENT FUND270-00000-11302TO RECORD MONTHLY WISC INTEREST EARNED
11.10INTEREST270-00000-48110TO RECORD MONTHLY WISC INTEREST EARNED


36.90WISC INVESTMENT FUND400-00000-11302TO RECORD MONTHLY WISC INTEREST EARNED
36.90INTEREST400-00000-48110TO RECORD MONTHLY WISC INTEREST EARNED


11.40WISC INVESTMENT FUND411-00000-11302TO RECORD MONTHLY WISC INTEREST EARNED
11.40INTEREST411-00000-48110TO RECORD MONTHLY WISC INTEREST EARNED


8.10WISC INVESTMENT FUND412-00000-11302TO RECORD MONTHLY WISC INTEREST EARNED
8.10INTEREST412-00000-48110TO RECORD MONTHLY WISC INTEREST EARNED


306.15306.15
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Ref Num1: '7218'   JE04/30/2021
GL Trx #: 142758


15,067.75DEFERRED SPEC ASSESSMENTS-CURG270-00000-26200TO RECORD APRIL ACTIVITY 
15,067.75SPEC ASSMTS RECVABLE-C & G270-00000-12601TO RECORD APRIL ACTIVITY 


15,067.7515,067.75


Ref Num1: '7234'   JE04/30/2021
GL Trx #: 142759


3.44LOCAL GOVT INVESTMENT POOL100-00000-11305TO RECORD LGIP INTEREST
3.44INTEREST100-00000-48110-41600000TO RECORD LGIP INTEREST


8.28LOCAL GOVT INVESTMENT POOL400-00000-11305TO RECORD LGIP INTEREST
8.28INTEREST400-00000-48110TO RECORD LGIP INTEREST


11.7211.72


44.13100-52100-50340-30800000OPERATING EXPENSES
114.54100-52100-50330-31100000VEHICLE EXPENSE
537.50100-52100-46290MVD FEES


5.00100-52100-45130PARKING FINES
845.41100-51900-50300MISC EXPENSES


6.05100-51510-50310-41100000OFFICE SUPPLIES
6.05100-51510-50310-40900000OFFICE SUPPLIES


846.28100-51510-50310-40800000OFFICE SUPPLIES
377.85100-51510-50310OFFICE SUPPLIES


61.63100-51510-50216-41600000OUTSIDE SERVICES/BANK FEES
33.35100-51510-50211-40800000POSTAGE


233.00100-51510-50200MISC OUTSIDE SERVICES
66.56100-51440-50340-40700000OPERATING EXPENSES


109.60100-51200-50340-31700000OPERATING EXPENSES
2,667.93100-51200-45100COURT PENALTIES/COSTS
5,991.04100-00000-48110-41600000INTEREST
1,500.00100-00000-47440EMS ADMINISTRATION
6,197.27100-00000-45100COURT PENALTIES/COSTS
2,016.25100-00000-44210DOG


220,000.00100-00000-25900DUE TO EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND
9,006.40100-00000-22210COURT FINES
2,016.25100-00000-22110DOG LICENSE


100-00000-21520EBC DEDUCTIONS
226,098.09100-00000-13070TAXES RECEIVABLE


4,416.00100-00000-12530ACCRUED INTEREST RECEIVABLE
253.51100-00000-12330DELINQUENT PERS PROP TAXES


3.44100-00000-11305LOCAL GOVT INVESTMENT POOL
171.30100-00000-11302WISC INVESTMENT FUND
384.36100-00000-11301WISC LTD 


13,101.52100-00000-11100PRIMARY CHECKING
TOTALS:


2,849,500.312,849,500.31
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0.01225-00000-48109INTEREST
1,104.88225-00000-11302WISC INVESTMENT FUND


1,105.48225-00000-11100PRIMARY CHECKING
2,578.66224-53300-50336-50600000EQUIP MAINTENANCE- STORMWATER
3,254.05224-53300-50217-50600000OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS-3


0.46224-00000-48110INTEREST
61,984.47224-00000-46300STORMWATER USER FEES


0.46224-00000-13012RECEIVABLES-PRIOR YEAR
58,730.42224-00000-13010ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE


176.38224-00000-11303WISC DEBT PROCEEDS
2,402.28224-00000-11100PRIMARY CHECKING


10.20223-00000-48110INTEREST
10.20223-00000-11302WISC INVESTMENT FUND


0.30221-00000-48110INTEREST
0.30221-00000-11302WISC INVESTMENT FUND


4.80217-00000-48110INTEREST
4.80217-00000-11302WISC INVESTMENT FUND


5,600.00212-00000-49210TRANSFER IN - GENERAL FUND
5,600.00212-00000-11100PRIMARY CHECKING


7.50207-00000-48110INTEREST
7.50207-00000-11302WISC INVESTMENT FUND


12.90206-00000-48110INTEREST
12.90206-00000-11303WISC DEBT PROCEEDS


10.95204-00000-48110INTEREST
174,989.05204-00000-11302WISC INVESTMENT FUND


175,000.00204-00000-11100PRIMARY CHECKING
512,637.51203-59204-50930TRANSFER TO OTHER FUND


4.20203-00000-48110INTEREST
4.20203-00000-11302WISC INVESTMENT FUND


512,637.51203-00000-11100PRIMARY CHECKING
5,600.00100-59500-50932TRANSFER TO PS BUILDING


31.76100-56300-50340-41900000OPERATING EXPENSES - PLANNING DEPARTMENT
158.81100-56300-50340-32200000OPERATING EXPENSES - PLANNING DEPARTMENT
444.63100-56300-50340-20600000OPERATING EXPENSES - PLANNING DEPARTMENT


206.69100-55400-48524UNITED WAY DONATIONS
87.90100-55300-50315-32400000ADS & PUBLICATIONS


957.74100-55200-50350-31500000EQUIPMENT REPAIRS
50.71100-54600-50340-50400000OPERATING EXPENSES
50.73100-54600-50340-30500000OPERATING EXPENSES
50.73100-54600-50340-30400000OPERATING EXPENSES
50.73100-54600-50340-30300000OPERATING EXPENSES


500.00100-54600-48505DONATIONS - CENTER
500.00100-54600-48503DONATIONS- KITCHEN FUND


12,868.98100-53300-50340-42200000OPERATING EXPENSES
3,324.60100-53300-50340-31300000OPERATING EXPENSES
3,723.26100-53300-50340-31200000OPERATING EXPENSES


2.02100-53300-50310-31200000OFFICE SUPPLIES
2,170.18100-52200-50240-31900000EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE
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11.40411-00000-11302WISC INVESTMENT FUND
2,435.44411-00000-11100PRIMARY CHECKING


39,313.00410-57220-50820-21033000FIRE - BREATHING & STORAGE TANKS
2.49410-00000-48110INTEREST


145,737.12410-00000-11303WISC DEBT PROCEEDS
106,426.61410-00000-11100PRIMARY CHECKING


48.89400-00000-48110INTEREST
8.28400-00000-11305LOCAL GOVT INVESTMENT POOL


217,351.20400-00000-11303WISC DEBT PROCEEDS
36.90400-00000-11302WISC INVESTMENT FUND


217,354.91400-00000-11100PRIMARY CHECKING
2.41300-00000-48110INTEREST


141,159.60300-00000-11303WISC DEBT PROCEEDS
141,162.01300-00000-11100PRIMARY CHECKING


11.10270-00000-48110INTEREST
15,067.75270-00000-26200DEFERRED SPEC ASSESSMENTS-CURG


15,067.75270-00000-12601SPEC ASSMTS RECVABLE-C & G
11.10270-00000-11302WISC INVESTMENT FUND


512,637.51253-00000-49223TRANSFER IN - TIF #3
512,637.51253-00000-11100PRIMARY CHECKING


1,520.05248-00000-48108INTEREST - RLF 
15,000.00248-00000-48100TIF CONTRIBUTION


4,488.14248-00000-13501REV LOAN FUND RECEIVABLE
12,031.91248-00000-11100PRIMARY CHECKING


6.66245-55190-50346-50200000OPERATING EXPENSES-MISC EVENT EXPENSES
251.85245-55190-50216-50200000OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS-2


0.20245-00000-48110-50200000INTEREST
2,285.96245-00000-11102US BANK - CC


2,544.27245-00000-11100PRIMARY CHECKING
18.30243-00000-48110INTEREST


18.30243-00000-11302WISC INVESTMENT FUND
0.60242-00000-48110INTEREST


0.60242-00000-11302WISC INVESTMENT FUND
19.38234-55100-50724FOOD PANTRY EXPENSES


4.80234-00000-48110INTEREST
4.80234-00000-11302WISC INVESTMENT FUND


19.38234-00000-11100PRIMARY CHECKING
0.30232-00000-48110INTEREST


0.30232-00000-11302WISC INVESTMENT FUND
0.51231-54600-50340OPERATING EXPENSES


0.60231-00000-48110INTEREST
0.60231-00000-11302WISC INVESTMENT FUND


0.51231-00000-11100PRIMARY CHECKING
2.40228-00000-48110INTEREST


2.40228-00000-11302WISC INVESTMENT FUND
1.80227-00000-48110INTEREST


1.80227-00000-11302WISC INVESTMENT FUND
0.59225-00000-48110INTEREST - BAILEY SISTER ACCOUNT
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2,348,859.532,348,859.53GRAND TOTAL:


1,500.00603-52300-50325-30100000ADMINISTRATION EXPENSE
2,435.44603-52300-50316-30100000RENT EXPENSE


3.82603-52300-50310-30100000OFFICE SUPPLIES
3,939.26603-00000-11100PRIMARY CHECKING


39,313.00412-57190-50820-20023000FIRE - BREATHING AIR COMPRESSOR & TANK
8.10412-00000-48110INTEREST


220,000.00412-00000-25800DUE TO ELEC UTILITY
412-00000-15100DUE FROM GENERAL FUND


9,129.68412-00000-11302WISC INVESTMENT FUND
268,450.78412-00000-11100PRIMARY CHECKING


2,435.44411-00000-48200RENT INCOME - UTILITY BUILDING
11.40411-00000-48110INTEREST





		1 - April Bank Reconciliation

		2 - April Receipts Register

		3 - April Cash Summary by Fund

		4 - April Check Reconciliation

		5 - April Manual JE Report






100-59200-50930


2021 BUDGET 100,000$                       


AMENDMENT REASON
10/27/2020 Liquor License Revocation Legal Fees (3,105)$                          
2/9/2021 RDA Grant Writing Services (675)$                             


4/30/2021 96,220$                         


CONTINGENCY ACCOUNT EARMARKED


AMENDMENT REASON
10/27/2020 Liquor License Revocation Legal Fees (5,792)$                          Remaining from 2020
2/9/2021 RDA Grant Writing Services (1,825)$                          


AVAILABLE BALANCE @ 4/30/21 88,603$                         





		2021






2021 2020
2021 YTD BALANCE AVAILABLE % BDGT % BDGT


DESCRIPTION AMENDED BUDGET 04/30/21 BALANCE USED USED
Fund 100 - GENERAL FUND
REVENUES 14,128,439 10,468,310 3,660,129 74.09                                 74.69                                    
EXPENDITURES 14,119,684 7,526,309 6,692,138 53.30 52.87


2021 2020
2021 YTD BALANCE AVAILABLE % BDGT % BDGT


DESCRIPTION AMENDED BUDGET 04/30/21 BALANCE USED USED
Fund 100 - GENERAL FUND


Revenues
TAXES 10,214,770 9,485,619 729,151 92.86                                 92.76                                    
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 187,000 10,200 176,800 5.45                                   4.15                                       
INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUES 2,393,631 561,517 1,832,114 23.46                                 21.58                                    
LICENSES & PERMITS 200,500 71,821 128,679 35.82                                 29.13                                    
FINES, FORFEITS & PENALTIES 147,000 49,479 97,521 33.66                                 30.95                                    
PUBLIC CHARGES FOR SERVICE 571,199 139,738 431,461 24.46                                 23.93                                    
INTERGOVERNMENTAL CHARGES 82,000 38,000 44,000 46.34                                 50.00                                    
MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 332,339 111,936 220,403 33.68                                 51.44                                    
TOTAL REVENUES 14,128,439 10,468,310 3,660,129 74.09                                 74.69                                    


Provided explanations for increases and decreases of $5,000 or more
YTD BALANCE YTD BALANCE


FUND ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION 04/30/21 04/30/20 Change
100 41110 PROPERTY TAXES 9,462,065$                             9,383,714$                       78,351$                            
100 41320 SHA PILOT 23,554$                                  23,797$                            (244)$                                
100 42321 TREE PLANTINGS - DEVELOPER 10,200$                                  2,700$                              7,500$                              Simply more activity through 4/30/21 compared to same time last year. 
100 43521 STATE GRANTS-POLICE 2,681$                                     -$                                   2,681$                              
100 43531 STATE ROAD ALLOTMENT 502,691$                                437,122$                          65,568$                            Determined by State - Represents 2nd of four payments
100 43533 STATE AID - STREETS 25,978$                                  25,865$                            112$                                  
100 43790 COUNTY FUNDING - OUTREACH 13,529$                                  12,563$                            965$                                  
100 43791 DANE COUNTY GRANTS 8,599$                                     -$                                   8,599$                              Reclassified in 2021 from account 48501
100 44110 LIQUOR & MALT BEVERAGE 14,300$                                  9,666$                              4,634$                              
100 44111 OPERATORS 2,040$                                     1,345$                              695$                                  
100 44120 CIGARETTE 1,300$                                     1,200$                              100$                                  
100 44150 MISC. LICENSE 3,235$                                     1,980$                              1,256$                              
100 44210 DOG 2,016$                                     609$                                  1,408$                              


100 44300 BUILDING 20,099$                                  11,390$                            8,709$                              


100 44310 ELECTRICAL 6,550$                                     5,499$                              1,051$                              
100 44320 PLUMBING 5,240$                                     2,904$                              2,336$                              
100 44330 HEATING 4,390$                                     5,710$                              (1,320)$                             


Simply more activity through 4/30/21 compared to same time last year. 140 transactions in 2021 
averaging $144 versus 97 transactions in 2020 averaging $117.


INCOME STATEMENT FOR STOUGHTON CITY - GENERAL FUND
PERIOD ENDING 04/30/2021                                              


REVENUE REPORT FOR STOUGHTON CITY - GENERAL FUND
PERIOD ENDING 04/30/2021                                              


Notes
Based on 2020 levy amount







Provided explanations for increases and decreases of $5,000 or more
YTD BALANCE YTD BALANCE


FUND ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION 04/30/21 04/30/20 Change Notes
100 44340 FIRE PROTECTION FEES 736$                                        1,983$                              (1,246)$                             
100 44900 MISC 11,915$                                  15,702$                            (3,787)$                             
100 45100 COURT PENALTIES/COSTS 29,197$                                  32,155$                            (2,959)$                             
100 45130 PARKING FINES 20,282$                                  15,816$                            4,466$                              
100 46110 MISC. REVENUE 833$                                        20$                                    813$                                  
100 46150 SPECIAL ASSESSMENT ADMIN FEES 2,520$                                     2,485$                              35$                                    
100 46210 POLICE DEPT FEES 167$                                        993$                                  (825)$                                
100 46220 FIRE DEPT FEES 88,018$                                  86,892$                            1,127$                              


100 46290 MVD FEES 12,488$                                  2,877$                              9,612$                              


100 46309 ELECTRONIC RECYCLING FEES 810$                                        1,030$                              (220)$                                
100 46312 INSPECTION-MOW/SNOW CHARGES 133$                                        1,870$                              (1,737)$                             
100 46430 STREET OPENING 4,049$                                     9,602$                              (5,553)$                             Decrease is mainly due to $9,100 TDS permits by this time last year
100 46435 YARD WASTE SITE FEES 8,040$                                     2,930$                              5,110$                              More activity in 2021 due to relaxed COVID restrictions and mild weather thus far 
100 46540 CEMETERY FEES 6,585$                                     965$                                  5,620$                              More activity in 2021 due to relaxed COVID restrictions
100 46590 TAXABLE CRAFT SALES -$                                         60$                                    (60)$                                   
100 46595 MISC TAXABLE SALES -$                                         (131)$                                131$                                  
100 46610 NEWSLETTER 154$                                        156$                                  (2)$                                     
100 46720 PARK RESERVATIONS 175$                                        1,245$                              (1,070)$                             
100 46750 RECREATION 10,386$                                  13,151$                            (2,765)$                             
100 46752 REC INSTRUCTION FEES 13,420$                                  16,590$                            (3,170)$                             
100 46757 CABLE - TAXABLE SALES -$                                         33$                                    (33)$                                   
100 46759 VIDEO PRODUCTION SERVICES -$                                         150$                                  (150)$                                
100 47410 SEWER UTILITY ADMINISTRATION 7,700$                                     7,700$                              -$                                   
100 47420 ELECTRIC UTILITY ADMINISTRATIO 17,700$                                  17,700$                            -$                                   
100 47430 WATER UTILITY ADMINISTRATION 6,600$                                     6,600$                              -$                                   
100 47440 EMS ADMINISTRATION 6,000$                                     -$                                   6,000$                              


100 48110 INTEREST 6,898$                                     62,902$                            (56,005)$                           


100 48111 INTEREST: LONG TERM INVESTMENT -$                                         9,902$                              (9,902)$                             
100 48112 INTEREST ON TAXES 658$                                        327$                                  330$                                  
100 48113 REBATE 3,093$                                     4,540$                              (1,447)$                             
100 48130 INTEREST - ASSESSMENTS 491$                                        37$                                    454$                                  
100 48220 RENTAL INCOME 8,000$                                     4,000$                              4,000$                              
100 48221 RENTAL INCOME 2,475$                                     -$                                   2,475$                              
100 48420 INSURANCE- REBATE 14,297$                                  14,616$                            (319)$                                
100 48500 DONATIONS 7$                                            3,000$                              (2,993)$                             
100 48501 DC NUTRITION CONTRACT -$                                         8,599$                              (8,599)$                             Reclassified in 2021 to account 43791
100 48503 DONATIONS- KITCHEN FUND 4,064$                                     6,243$                              (2,179)$                             


Timing issue between when DMV's share is transferred out - Balance as of 5/20/21 is similar to last 
year


This amount was not budgeted in 2020


This decrease was anticipated to due to reduced rates - We reduced the 21 budget by $78,000 
because of this







Provided explanations for increases and decreases of $5,000 or more
YTD BALANCE YTD BALANCE


FUND ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION 04/30/21 04/30/20 Change Notes


100 48504 DONATIONS - TOWNSHIPS 7,750$                                     14,750$                            (7,000)$                             Have only received donation from the Town of Dunn thus far


100 48505 DONATIONS - CENTER 13,616$                                  12,752$                            864$                                  
100 48509 DONATIONS - SPECIAL GIFT (FOUNDATION) -$                                         38,000$                            (38,000)$                           The Senior Center has not yet received the Bryant Founding funding for 2021
100 48519 FSAYC CONTRIBUTION 27,976$                                  9,639$                              18,337$                            Billing methodology has changed - This variance will be reduced over the next two months
100 48523 DANE COUNTY DONATIONS 2,398$                                     3,197$                              (799)$                                
100 48524 UNITED WAY DONATIONS 293$                                        419$                                  (127)$                                
100 48527 AARON HUTCHINS SCHOLARSHIP FUND 2,170$                                     -$                                   
100 48540 POLICE SAFETY CAMP -$                                         5,000$                              (5,000)$                             Only occurs in even years
100 48541 DONATIONS- POLICE DEPT. 17,600$                                  29,690$                            (12,090)$                           Less in Bryant Foundation donations thus far in 2021
100 48543 PAUL KRABY MEMORIAL 150$                                        -$                                   150$                                  


10,468,310$                           10,392,252$                    73,888$                            


Property Taxes 78,351$                            
Interest Income (65,907)$                           
State Aids 65,568$                            
Building Permits 8,709$                              
Other Fees 14,789$                            
Donations (62,090)$                           
FSAYC Contribution 18,337$                            
EMS Admin Fee 6,000$                              
Other 10,131$                            


73,888$                            


Margin 04/30/21 04/30/20 4/30/19
Actual Revenues 10,468,310$                           10,392,252$                    10,408,690$                    
Less: Transfers (4,440,136)$                           (4,520,613)$                     (4,180,052)$                     


6,028,174$                             5,871,639$                       6,228,638$                       


Actual Expenditures 7,526,309$                             7,363,791$                       6,956,952$                       
Less: Transfers (4,440,136)$                           (4,520,613)$                     (4,180,052)$                     


3,086,173$                             2,843,178$                       2,776,900$                       
2,942,001$                             3,028,461$                       3,451,738$                       


Calculated 4/30 Margin 48.80% 51.58% 55.42%


12/31/19 Ending Margin 3.23%
12/31/20 Ending Margin 2.47%
12/31/20 Ending Margin (Less: CARES Funding) 1.19%


TOTAL REVENUE CHANGE SUMMARY







2021 2020 2020
2021 YTD BALANCE AVAILABLE % BDGT % BDGT % BDGT


DESCRIPTION AMENDED BUDGET 04/30/21 BALANCE USED 04/30/21 USED 04/30/20 USED 12/31/20 Notes
LEGISLATIVE 46,505                                    12,014                 34,491                25.83 28.41 101.68
JUDICIAL 62,924                                    23,191                 39,733                36.86 36.87 96.43


LEGAL 140,000                                  36,396                 103,604             26.00 22.13 91.38
Increase is mainly due to the $5,000 retainer fee paid 
relating to NAFA


MAYOR 102,636                                  37,426                 65,210                36.46 33.65 97.99
CLERK 201,950                                  58,722                 143,228             29.08 27.05 97.73


ELECTION 20,000                                    15,399                 4,601                  76.99 40.67 124.46
Budget for 2021 is significantly less resulting in a larger 
percentage used - YTD appears reasonable


FINANCE DIRECTOR 632,564                                  223,115               409,449             35.27 30.99 95.71
3 pay period month in April 2021 and this did not occur 
until May in 2020


ASSESSOR 44,200                                    32,000                 12,200                72.40 78.08 100.61
Second installment received by this time in 2020, but has 
not been invoiced yet in 2021


HR/RISK MANAGEMENT 196,575                                  58,579                 137,996             29.80 29.61 97.42
OTHER GENERAL GOVERNMENT 92,700                                    55,497                 37,203                59.87 60.89 66.10
INSURANCE 289,296                                  232,896               155,163             80.50 78.75 79.19
LAW ENFORCEMENT 3,230,169                               988,829               2,241,340          30.61 27.80 98.77
FIRE PROTECTION 555,527                                  140,101               415,426             25.22 23.67 99.65


INSPECTION 97,523                                    29,304                 68,220                30.05 24.14 87.87
3 pay period month in April 2021 and this did not occur 
until May in 2020


CITY BUILDINGS 260,655                                  67,903                 192,752             26.05 20.98 72.17


This increase was expected due to the custodial positions, 
which were not filled by this time in 2020 and 3 pay 
period month in April 2021 and this did not occur until 
May in 2020


HIGHWAY & STREET MAINT/CONST 1,230,888                               420,293               810,595             34.15 29.44 101.61


Increase is mainly due to the 3 pay period month in April 
2021 and this did not occur until May in 2020. Also noted 
an increase in Operating Expenses, but nothing 
individually significant was noted. Overall budget to 
actual appears reasonable through 4/30/21.


SNOW REMOVAL 68,000                                    61,851                 6,149                  90.96 82.16 97.01
There were a number of large snow events in 2021 and a 
late purchase of $19,000 for salt was made in April 2021.


EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR STOUGHTON CITY - GENERAL FUND (EXCLUDING TRANSFERS)                     
PERIOD ENDING 04/30/20201                                                     







2021 2020 2020
2021 YTD BALANCE AVAILABLE % BDGT % BDGT % BDGT


DESCRIPTION AMENDED BUDGET 04/30/21 BALANCE USED 04/30/21 USED 04/30/20 USED 12/31/20 Notes


EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR STOUGHTON CITY - GENERAL FUND (EXCLUDING TRANSFERS)                     
PERIOD ENDING 04/30/20201                                                     


SIGNS AND MARKINGS 18,000                                    6,345                   11,655                35.25 28.95 120.76
Noted a $3,400 expenditure for a pole knocked down in a 
car accident - Reimbursement for this will be sought.


STREET LIGHTING 118,000                                  22,032                 95,968                18.67 20.73 77.91
SENIOR CENTER 600,861                                  183,053               417,808             30.47 29.55 99.37


CEMETERY 36,000                                    6,182                   29,818                17.17 13.70 92.56
Nothing significant noted - Budget to actual appears 
reasonable through 4/30/21.


COMMUNITY COMMITMENT 5,000                                       1,500                   3,500                  30.00 0.00 98.43
Simply no expenditures last year by this time - Dollar 
amounts are immaterial


PARKS 289,856                                  55,159                 234,697             19.03 14.05 82.37
Increase is mainly due to the 3 pay period month in April 
2021 and this did not occur until May in 2020. Overall 
budget to actual appears reasonable through 4/30/21.


RECREATION PROGRAMS & EVENTS 348,950                                  58,605                 290,345             16.79 24.88 64.51


The first couple months of 2020 had expenditures for ski 
and basketball programs as well as $8,000 in gym fees. 
These types of expenditures were not incurred thus far in 
2021 due to COVID.


YOUTH CENTER 167,082                                  43,076                 124,006             25.78 27.25 90.29
IT/MEDIA SERVICES 379,249                                  125,659               253,590             33.13 32.63 88.30
PLANNING 294,038                                  87,152                 206,886             29.64 31.14 118.28
TOTAL EXPENDITURES -  FUND 100 9,529,148                               3,082,279           6,545,632          32.35 30.09 95.14







2021 YTD BALANCE AVAILABLE % BDGT
DESCRIPTION AMENDED BUDGET 04/30/2021 BALANCE USED


INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUES 265,097                       16,002                                249,095                              6.04
PUBLIC CHARGES FOR SERVICE 10,700                         580                                      10,120                                5.42
MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 100                              4                                          96                                        4.12
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 632,350                       632,350                              -                                       100.00
TOTAL REVENUES 908,247                       648,936                              259,311                              71.45 71.38 this time last year


GENERAL OPERATING EXPENSES 908,251                       297,184                              611,067                              32.72
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 908,251                       297,184                              611,067                              32.72 32.28 this time last year


NET REVENUES/EXPENDITURES (4)                                 351,752                              (351,756)                            


REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR STOUGHTON CITY - LIBRARY FUND 215                                 
PERIOD ENDING 04/30/2021                                 







2021 YTD BALANCE AVAILABLE % BDGT
DESCRIPTION AMENDED BUDGET 04/30/2021 BALANCE USED


INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUES -                               -                                       -                                       
PUBLIC CHARGES FOR SERVICE 925,274                       257,546                              667,728                              27.83
MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 5,000                           5,575                                  (575)                                    111.50
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 195,000                       195,000                              -                                       100.00
TOTAL REVENUES 1,125,274                   458,121                              667,153                              40.71


GENERAL OPERATING EXPENSES 1,112,103                   160,831                              951,272                              14.46
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,112,103                   160,831                              951,272                              14.46


NET REVENUES/EXPENDITURES 13,171                         297,290                              (284,119)                            


REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR STOUGHTON CITY - OPERA HOUSE FUND 245                              
PERIOD ENDING 04/30/2021                                 







2021 YTD BALANCE AVAILABLE % BDGT
DESCRIPTION AMENDED BUDGET 04/30/2021 BALANCE USED


MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 15,250                         5                                          15,245                                0.03
INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUES -                               -                                       -                                       0.00
PUBLIC CHARGES FOR SERVICE 695,800                       121,254                              574,546                              17.43 Only invoiced through March at this point
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES -                               -                                       -                                       
TOTAL REVENUES 711,050                       121,259                              589,791                              17.05


AMBULANCE 588,017                       172,898                              415,119                              29.40
TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS 100,000                       100,000                              -                                       100.00
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 688,017                       272,898                              415,119                              39.66


NET REVENUES/EXPENDITURES 23,033                         (151,639)                            174,672                              


PERIOD ENDING 04/30/2021                                 
REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR STOUGHTON CITY - EMS FUND 603





		2021 GF Revenues

		2021 GF Expenditures

		Lib, EMS, OH






FUND 204 - TIF No. 4 PROJECT # BUDGET AMOUNT SPENT Remaining
TIF 4 Downtown Improvements 20070 15,000$                           (14,733)$          14,088$          REMAINING IS IN ADDITION TO THE 12/31/20 RETAINAGE


FUND 206 - TIF No. 6 PROJECT # BUDGET AMOUNT SPENT Remaining
2019 - Glacier Moraine 19049 395,000$                        (36,329)$          395,000$        REMAINING IS IN ADDITION TO THE 12/31/20 RETAINAGE


FUND 208 - TIF No. 8 PROJECT # BUDGET AMOUNT SPENT Remaining
Pedestrian Bridge Construction 21003 475,103$                        -$                  475,103$        
Riverbank Restoration 21004 211,600$                        -$                  211,600$        
Riverfront Trail and Amenities 21005 242,379$                        -$                  242,379$        
2019 - RDA - Public Works Environmental Testing/Remediation 19043 50,000$                           1,524$              48,476$          
Pedestrian Bridge Design 20071 84,750$                           66,812$            17,938$          


1,063,832$                     68,336$            995,496$        


FUND 224 - Storm Water PROJECT # BUDGET AMOUNT SPENT Remaining
2021 Street Construction 21401 124,500$                        -$                  124,500$        
2021 Street Engineering 21404 13,250$                           -$                  13,250$          
Rear Mount Boom Cutter 21008 35,000$                           -$                  35,000$          
2018 Street Projects 18401 5,000$                             (8,775)$             5,000$            REMAINING IS IN ADDITION TO THE 12/31/20 RETAINAGE
2019 Street Projects 19401 5,000$                             (11,917)$          5,000$            REMAINING IS IN ADDITION TO THE 12/31/20 RETAINAGE
2020 Street Projects 20401 10,000$                           (5,117)$             10,000$          REMAINING IS IN ADDITION TO THE 12/31/20 RETAINAGE


192,750$                        (25,809)$          192,750$        


FUND 410 - Capital Outlay PROJECT # BUDGET AMOUNT SPENT Remaining
#23 Backhoe (John Deere) 21012 119,000$                        -$                  119,000$        
#27 Toro 5900 21013 95,000$                           103,507$          (8,507)$           SALVAGE WILL ELIMINATE THIS OVERAGE
ADA Pathways 21014 30,000$                           -$                  30,000$          
Eastside Park Restroom Update/Partitions 21015 25,000$                           -$                  25,000$          
Hollywood Kwik Release Bases 21016 3,000$                             -$                  3,000$            
Racetrack Scoreboards 21017 11,000$                           7,986$              3,014$            
Racetrack Shelter Roof/Siding 21018 40,000$                           -$                  40,000$          
Trash Receptacles 21019 5,000$                             -$                  5,000$            
Bike Rack Initiative 21020 4,613$                             -$                  4,613$            
Bjoin Park Prairie 21021 18,000$                           -$                  18,000$          
Nordic Ridge Inclusive Playground 21001 152,350$                        29,630$            122,721$        
Racetrack Park Master Plan 21022 30,000$                           7,332$              22,668$          
Rotary Park - Restrooms and Accessible Pathways 21023 289,428$                        3,085$              286,343$        
CAD Interface Router to County 21024 6,000$                             -$                  6,000$            
Community Camera Interface     21025 5,000$                             -$                  5,000$            
Digital Forensic computer hardware    21026 5,000$                             4,300$              700$                
FirstNet Phones 21027 7,000$                             -$                  7,000$            
Police Gas Masks 21028 10,000$                           9,828$              172$                COMPLETE
Portable Radios 21029 28,000$                           28,302$            (302)$              


MASTER CIP BUDGET TO ACTUAL TRACKING 4/30/21







FUND 204 - TIF No. 4 PROJECT # BUDGET AMOUNT SPENT Remaining
Badger Book 21030 31,500$                           -$                  31,500$          
Computers & Peripherals 21031 6,000$                             3,287$              2,713$            
Computer Replacement 21032 10,000$                           -$                  10,000$          
Breathing Air Compressor & Storage Tanks  21033 55,000$                           42,723$            12,277$          
Knox Key Secure 21034 4,398$                             -$                  4,398$            
MDC Installation 21035 11,940$                           -$                  11,940$          
Art Scuplture - USH 51/138 at Cummins 21036 15,000$                           -$                  15,000$          
Opera House - Tuck Pointing 21037 40,000$                           -$                  40,000$          
Boilers/Circulation Pumps 21038 70,000$                           -$                  70,000$          
Sr Ctr - Annex Roof Repair - Cedar Shake 21039 65,000$                           -$                  65,000$          
City Hall - Retiling Main Floor 16027 18,500$                           -$                  18,500$          
2018 Public Works Facility 17039 12,000$                           -$                  12,000$          
Bjoin Park Tennis Court Resurfacing 18047 9,093$                             -$                  9,093$            
2019 - Subdivision & Platting/Zoning Code Update 19004 37,500$                           -$                  37,500$          
2019 - Recreation - Nordic Ridge Park Furnishings 19007 4,428$                             4,428$              -$                COMPLETE
Landmarks - Local Downtown Historic District 20039 13,000$                           -$                  13,000$          
ADA Drinking/Bottle Filling Bjoin, VL, Lowell, RT 20044 15,000$                           -$                  15,000$          
Opera House - Seal Parking Lot   20053 25,000$                           -$                  25,000$          
Body Camera Replacement 20054 4,726$                             -$                  4,726$            
ADA Transition Plan 20062 2,200$                             -$                  2,200$            
Bike Rack Initiative 20063 2,931$                             -$                  2,931$            
High School Baseball Diamond Light Removal 20064 15,228$                           17,923$            (2,695)$           COMPLETE


1,351,835$                     262,330$          1,089,505$    


FUND 400 - Construction Fund PROJECT # BUDGET AMOUNT SPENT Remaining
2021 Preventative Maintenance 21402 180,000$                        2,416$              177,584$        
RD PII Dam Removal - Engineering 21009 / 20075 44,546$                           8,711$              35,835$          
RD PII River Restoration 21007 100,000$                        -$                  100,000$        
RD PII T, U, P Design (RDA to Water St) 21006 / 20076 148,913$                        -$                  148,913$        
RD PII WW Park - Engineering 21010 / 20065 103,585$                        52,287$            51,298$          
2021 Engineering Tech Position Timesheet 80,000$                           25,299$            54,701$          
2021 Jefferson Street Bridge Deck 21011 60,000$                           -$                  60,000$          
2021 Sidewalk Projects 21403 60,000$                           -$                  60,000$          
2021 Street Construction 21401 904,000$                        -$                  904,000$        
2021 Street Engineering 21404 69,158$                           45,445$            23,713$          
2018 Street Projects 18401 16,425$                           (28,065)$          16,425$          REMAINING IS IN ADDITION TO THE 12/31/20 RETAINAGE
2019 Street Projects 19401/19405 40,000$                           (85,827)$          40,000$          REMAINING IS IN ADDITION TO THE 12/31/20 RETAINAGE
2020 DOT HWY 51 Project 20001 40,000$                           1,633$              38,367$          
2020 Street Projects 20401 26,000$                           (39,057)$          26,000$          REMAINING IS IN ADDITION TO THE 12/31/20 RETAINAGE
Jefferson Street Bridge Engineering 20405 26,208$                           -$                  26,208$          


1,898,835$                     (17,158)$          1,763,044$    


FUND 411 - Building Maint. Fund PROJECT # BUDGET AMOUNT SPENT Remaining
Garage Door Opener Controller Changeout 21040 2,000$                             -$                  2,000$            
City Hall-Boiler Replacement 21041 35,000$                           -$                  35,000$          
City Hall-Drive Thru Area 21042 20,000$                           -$                  20,000$          
Depot-Carport Roof Replacement 21002 20,000$                           8,715$              11,285$          







FUND 204 - TIF No. 4 PROJECT # BUDGET AMOUNT SPENT Remaining
Depot-Exterior Wood Replacement & Paint 21044 35,000$                           -$                  35,000$          
EMS-Rooftop Unit #4 21045 20,000$                           -$                  20,000$          
PSB-Generator 5 Year Preventative Maintenance 21046 5,000$                             -$                  5,000$            
PSB-Parking Lot Patch and Seal Coat 21047 5,000$                             -$                  5,000$            
PSB-Replace RTU #4-Carrier Rooftop unit 21048 30,000$                           -$                  30,000$          
Sr Ctr Annex-Replace 4 Fan Coil & condensing units 21049 7,500$                             -$                  7,500$            
Library Tuckpointing 21050 5,000$                             -$                  5,000$            
Library Fire Alarm-Replace Notifier Panel 21051 5,000$                             -$                  5,000$            
Sr Ctr Fire Panel Replacement 21052 20,000$                           -$                  20,000$          
Install VAV Unit 17022 2,500$                             -$                  2,500$            
Power House Bldg - Repair & Reroof 18010 50,000$                           -$                  50,000$          
Power House Bldg - Tuck Point 18011 65,000$                           -$                  65,000$          
Parking Deck Repair 19057 150,000$                        -$                  150,000$        
City Hall - Landscaping 20012 10,757$                           -$                  10,757$          
PSB - Landscaping 20016 14,270$                           -$                  14,270$          
Sr Ctr - Landscaping Restoration 20018 11,373$                           -$                  11,373$          
Youth Center - HVAC Control System 20019 20,000$                           -$                  20,000$          


533,400$                        8,715$              524,685$        


FUND 412 - Equip. Replacement Fund PROJECT # BUDGET AMOUNT SPENT Remaining
#47 Pickup Truck (Chevy) 21043 33,000$                           29,658$            3,342$            
Body Camera Replacement 21053 5,000$                             1,117$              3,883$            
Radar Replacements x 2 21054 4,000$                             -$                  4,000$            
Radio System Base Unit Replacement 21055 6,000$                             -$                  6,000$            
Squad #273 21056 42,000$                           35,941$            6,059$            
Squad #277 21057 35,000$                           -$                  35,000$          
Squad Car Video/Laptop Replace 21058 3,000$                             -$                  3,000$            
Taser Replacement 21059 4,800$                             4,745$              55$                  COMPLETE
Rear Accessible Van 21060 10,000$                           -$                  10,000$          
Camera Replacement 21061 22,500$                           20,454$            2,046$            
DVR Replacement 21062 14,000$                           2,977$              11,023$          
Tripod Replacement (2008) 21063 5,200$                             4,996$              204$                
Van Tricaster to WIN10 21064 22,000$                           24,140$            (2,140)$           SALVAGE WILL ELIMINATE THIS OVERAGE
Personal Protective Equipment 21065 42,900$                           18,208$            24,692$          
Portable Radios 21066 25,000$                           10,522$            14,478$          
Tire Replacement 21067 6,120$                             -$                  6,120$            
Personal Protective Equipment 19062 1,725$                             -$                  1,725$            
Skid Pak for ATV 19064 10,000$                           8,681$              1,319$            
Car 1 Command Car    20024 7,500$                             8,204$              (704)$              
ParaTech Air Bag System    20026 20,500$                           -$                  20,500$          
Rear Accessible Van N/A 8,000$                             -$                  8,000$            


328,245$                        169,643$          158,602$        


FUND 413 - Technology Fund PROJECT # BUDGET AMOUNT SPENT Remaining
Network upgrades 21068 25,000$                           698$                  24,302$          





		Master Summary for Dept Heads






FINANCE MINUTES 
May 11, 2021 @ 6:00 p.m.  
GoToMeeting 


Call to Order: 
Schumacher called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 


Present: 
Schumacher, Reeves, Doom, Hirsch and Mayor Swadley. Engelberger joined at 6:15 p.m. 


Absent and Excused: 
Neigum  


Also Present: 
Finance Director Friedl, Clerk Licht and Alder Hundt 


Communications: 
None 


Reports: None 


Approval of the April 27, 2021 Finance Committee Minutes 
Motion by Reeves, second by Doom to approve the minutes. Motion carried 5-0. 


Discussion and possible action regarding the City collaborating with MadREP, Madison Development 
Corporation and regional Counties and Municipalities to participate in funding through the US EDA 
to establish a Revolving Loan Fund 
Madrep presented. The committee/Madrep stated they were leaning more towards the private 
option. If the City went the private venture route, we could only opt into city projects. Finance Director 
Friedl stated that he would add this to the list of ARPA options.  
 
Resolution approving the agreement relating to an Urban Service Area Amendment, Tax Incremental 
District Evaluation and Amendment of Pre-Annexation Agreement between the City of Stoughton 
and Fifty One West LLC  
Motion by Engelberger, second by Doom to recommend that council approve a Resolution approving the 
agreement relating to an Urban Service Area Amendment, Tax Incremental District Evaluation and Amendment 
of Pre-Annexation Agreement between the City of Stoughton and Fifty One West LLC. Motion carried 6-0. 
 
Resolution authorizing the proper City official(s) to enter into an agreement with Ehlers to undertake 
a financial analysis of the project pro forma for a portion of the 51 West Subdivision 
Motion by Reeves, second by Doom to recommend that council approve a Resolution authorizing the 
proper City official(s) to enter into an agreement with Ehlers to undertake a financial analysis of the 
project pro forma for a portion of the 51 West Subdivision. Motion carried 6-0. 
 
Resolution Authorizing the Issuance and Establishing Parameters for the Sale of Not to Exceed 
$2,350,000 General Obligation Promissory Notes, Series 2021A 
Dave Farris of Ehlers presented the parameters of the bond sale. Motion by Engelberger, second by 
Reeves to recommend that council approve a resolution Authorizing the Issuance and Establishing 







Parameters for the Sale of Not to Exceed $2,350,000 General Obligation Promissory Notes, Series 
2021A. Motion carried 6-0. 
 
 
Resolution Designating Officials Authorized to Declare Official Intent Under Reimbursement Bond 
Regulations 
Finance Director Friedl noted that the only change in was updating his official title. Motion by Reeves, second by 
Engelberger to recommend that council approve a Resolution Designating Officials Authorized to Declare Official 
Intent Under Reimbursement Bond Regulations. Motion carried 6-0. 


 


FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS  


- Waiving of certain licenses and fees 
- Funding of key fob cost at the Youth Center 
- Future Treatment of Costs Eligible for Special Assessments 
- Riverfront Purchase and Developer Agreement 


 


Adjournment: 
Motion by Reeves, second by Engelberger to adjourn at 6:54 p.m. Motion carried 6-0. 


 


Respectfully Submitted, 


Holly Licht, City Clerk  
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Executive summary 
 


May 6, 2021 


 


City Council 


City of Stoughton 


207 S Forrest St 
Stoughton, WI 53589 
 
 
We have completed our audit of the financial statements of the City of Stoughton (the "City”) for the year 


ended December 31, 2020, and have issued our report thereon dated May 6, 2021. This letter presents 


communications required by our professional standards. 


Your audit should provide you with confidence in your financial statements. The audit was performed 


based on information obtained from meetings with management, data from your systems, knowledge of 


your City’s operating environment and our risk assessment procedures. We strive to provide you clear, 


concise communication throughout the audit process and of the final results of our audit. 


Additionally, we have included information on key risk areas the City of Stoughton should be aware of in 


your strategic planning. We are available to discuss these risks as they relate to your organization’s 


financial stability and future planning. 


If you have questions at any point, please connect with us: 


­ Carla Gogin, Partner: carla.gogin@bakertilly.com or +1 (608) 240 2460 


­ Vasvi Joshi, Senior Manager: vasvi.joshi@bakertilly.com or +1 (608) 240 2453 


 


Sincerely, 


Baker Tilly US, LLP 


 


Carla A. Gogin, CPA 


 


Vasvi Joshi, CPA 


  



mailto:carla.gogin@bakertilly.com

mailto:vasvi.joshi@bakertilly.com





 


Baker Tilly US, LLP, trading as Baker Tilly, is an independent member of Baker Tilly International. Baker Tilly International Limited is an English company. Baker Tilly 
International provides no professional services to clients. Each member firm is a separate and independent legal entity, and each describes itself as such. Baker Tilly US, LLP is 
not Baker Tilly International’s agent and does not have the authority to bind Baker Tilly International or act on Baker Tilly International’s behalf. None of Baker Tilly International, 
Baker Tilly US, LLP nor any of the other member firms of Baker Tilly International has any liability for each other’s acts or omissions. The name Baker Tilly and its associated 
logo is used under license from Baker Tilly International Limited. 
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THIS COMMUNICATION IS INTENDED SOLELY FOR THE INFORMATION AND USE OF THOSE CHARGED WITH 


GOVERNANCE, AND, IF APPROPRIATE, MANAGEMENT, AND IS NOT INTENDED TO BE AND SHOULD NOT BE USED BY 


ANYONE OTHER THAN THESE SPECIFIED PARTIES. 
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Responsibilities 


Our responsibilities 


As your independent auditor, our responsibilities include: 


­ Planning and performing the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 


statements are free from material misstatement. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance. 


­ Assessing the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 


error. Included in that assessment is a consideration of the City’s internal control over financial 


reporting. 


­ Performing appropriate procedures based upon our risk assessment. 


­ Evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 


accounting estimates made by management. 


­ Forming and expressing an opinion based on our audit about whether the financial statements 


prepared by management, with the oversight of the City Council:  


­ Are free from material misstatement 


­ Present fairly, in all material respects and in accordance with accounting principles generally 


accepted in the United States of America 


 


We are also required to communicate significant matters related to our audit that are relevant to the 


responsibilities of the City Council, including:  


­ Qualitative aspects of City’s accounting practice including policies, accounting estimates and financial 


statement disclosures 


­ Significant difficulties encountered 


­ Disagreements with management 


­ Corrected and uncorrected misstatements 


­ Internal control matters 


­ Significant estimates 


­ Other findings or issues arising from the audit 


 


Management's responsibilities 


Management Auditor 


 


Prepare and fairly present the 
financial statements 


Our audit does not relieve management or the city 
council of their responsibilities 


 


Establish and maintain effective 
internal control over financial 
reporting  


An audit includes consideration of internal control 
over financial reporting, but not an expression of 
an opinion on those controls 


 


Provide us with written 
representations at the conclusion of 
the audit 


See Appendix B for a copy of management's 
representations 







 


 


 


 


 


Audit status
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Audit status 


Significant changes to the audit plan 


There were no significant changes made to either our planned audit strategy or to the significant risks and 


other areas of emphasis identified during the performance of our risk assessment procedures.  


 







 


 


 


 


 


Audit approach and results 
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Audit approach and results 


Planned scope and timing 


Audit focus 


Based on our understanding of the City and environment in which you operate, we focused our audit on 


the following key areas: 


­ Key transaction cycles 


­ Areas with significant estimates 


­ Implementation of new accounting standards 


­ Areas of complexity and additional compliance requirement including TIF Districts 


 


Our areas of audit focus were informed by, among other things, our assessment of materiality. Materiality 


in the context of our audit was determined based on specific qualitative and quantitative factors combined 


with our expectations about the City’s current year results. 


 


Key areas of focus and significant findings 


Significant risks of material misstatement 


A significant risk is an identified and assessed risk of material misstatement that, in the auditor’s 


professional judgment, requires special audit consideration. Within our audit, we focused on the following 


areas below. 


Significant risk areas Testing approach Conclusion 


Management override of 
controls 


Incorporate unpredictability into 
audit procedures, emphasize 
professional skepticism and 
utilize audit team with industry 
expertise 


Procedures identified provided 
sufficient evidence for our audit 
opinion 


Improper revenue recognition 
due to fraud 


Confirmation or validation of 
certain revenues supplemented 
with detailed predictive analytics 
based on non-financial data and 
substantive testing of related 
receivables 


Procedures identified provided 
sufficient evidence for our audit 
opinion 


 


  







 


City of Stoughton | 2020 Audit  5/6/2021 
© 2020 Baker Tilly US, LLP  Page | 10 


Other key areas of emphasis 


We also focused on other areas that did not meet the definition of a significant risk, but were determined 


to require specific awareness and a unique audit response.  


Other key areas of emphasis Testing approach  


Cash and investments Revenues and 
receivables 


General disbursements 


Payroll Pension and OPEB 
liabilities 


Long-term debt 


Capital assets including 
infrastructure 


Net position calculations Financial reporting and required 
disclosures 


 


Internal control matters 


We considered the City’s internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our audit 


procedures for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the financial statements. We are not expressing 


an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control.  


Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph 


and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or 


significant deficiencies and, therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were 


not identified. 


A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 


management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 


detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. 


A material weakness is a deficiency or combination of deficiencies in internal control such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be 
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal 
control that we consider to be material weaknesses.  
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Other comments and recommendations 


Prior Year Point 


- Collateral for Bank Deposits (Per 12/31/08 Letter)  


Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 40 requires disclosures about various 


risks associated with the city’s deposits and investments. These disclosures can be found in Note IV.A of 


the financial statements.  


One of the required disclosures is custodial credit risk. Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a 


financial institution failure, the city’s deposits may not be returned. To address this risk, the city has 


collateral agreements with its primary bank to cover deposits in excess of the FDIC limits. However, a 


portion of the city’s deposits and investments was exposed to custodial credit risk because the collateral 


was insufficient to cover all city deposits. In addition, the current collateral agreement in place with the 


city’s primary bank allows for the collateral to be held in the trust department of this bank. GASB No. 40 


states that this type of custodial arrangement exposes the city to greater risk than if the collateral was 


held by an independent third party custodian. 


We recommend that the city evaluate its current collateral situation to determine if adjustments are 


desired. 


Status December 31, 2020 


A total of $3,158,520 of deposits and investments were exposed to some level of custodial credit risk as 


of December 31, 2020. 


 


Informational Points 


- Decentralized Cash Collections 


As part of our annual audit process, we focus our efforts on the primary accounting systems, internal 


controls, and procedures used by the city. This is in keeping with our goal to provide an audit opinion 


which states that the financial statements of the city are correct in all material respects. 


In some cases, the primary system of accounting procedures and controls of the city are supported by 


smaller systems which are decentralized, and reside within a department or outside location. Specifically, 


for the City of Stoughton, there are departments that collect cash and periodically remit those collections 


to city hall. Examples include the recreation department and senior center, among others. 


Generally, the more centralized a function is, the easier it is to design and implement accounting controls 


that provide some level of checks and balances. That is because you are able to divide certain tasks over 


the people available to achieve some segregation of duties. For those tasks that are decentralized, it is 


usually very difficult to provide for proper segregation of duties. Therefore, with one person being involved 


in most or all aspects of a transaction, you lose the ability to rely on the controls to achieve the 


safeguarding of assets and reliability of financial records. 


As auditors, we are required to communicate with you on a variety of topics. We believe it is appropriate 


to make sure that you are informed about the risks that can occur with decentralized cash collections. 


 


 


 


 







 


City of Stoughton | 2020 Audit  5/6/2021 
© 2020 Baker Tilly US, LLP  Page | 12 


- Controls Over Information Technology 


As part of our audit, we evaluated the information technology controls as they relate to financially 


significant applications. Our procedures primarily focused on documenting and evaluating general 


computer controls, including: 


- Logical access to data and applications 


- Change and incident management 


- Systems development and deployment 


- Data backup and recovery 


The following points contain suggestions for strengthening internal controls in these areas. 


- Passwords should be changed every 90 days, require a minimum of 6 characters, require strong 


(complex) passwords, and password history should be remembered so users can’t reuse recent 


(3-6) previous passwords. Additionally, users should lock after 3-5 failed login attempts. 


We recommend that a designated employee review the risks and these potential controls and determine 


whether additional controls should be implemented. This determination should take into consideration a 


cost / benefit analysis.  
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Required communications 


Qualitative aspect of accounting practices 


­ Accounting policies: Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting 


policies. In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter, we have advised management about 


the appropriateness of accounting policies and their application. The significant accounting policies 


used by City are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. No new accounting policies were 


adopted and the application of existing accounting policies was not changed during 2020. We noted 


no transactions entered into by the City during the year for which accounting policies are controversial 


or for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus or diversity in practice. 


­ Accounting estimates: Accounting estimates, including fair value estimates, are an integral part of the 


financial statements prepared by management and are based on management's knowledge and 


experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting 


estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements, the 


degree of subjectivity involved in their development and because of the possibility that future events 


affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The following estimates are of most 


significance to the financial statements: 


 


Estimate Management’s process to 
determine  


Baker Tilly’s conclusions 
regarding reasonableness 


Net pension 
liability and 
related deferrals 


Evaluation of information provided 
by the Wisconsin Retirement 
System 


Reasonable in relation to the 
financial statements as a whole 


Allowance for 
doubtful 
accounts 


Evaluation of historical revenues 
and loss levels with the analysis on 
collectability of individual amounts 


Reasonable in relation to the 
financial statements as a whole 


Firemen’s net 
pension liability 
and related 
deferrals 


Key assumptions set by 
management with the assistance of 
a third party actuary 


Reasonable in relation to the 
financial statements as a whole 


Depreciation Evaluate estimated useful life of the 
asset and original acquisition value 


Reasonable in relation to the 
financial statements as a whole 


 


There have been no significant changes made by management to either the processes used to 


develop the particularly sensitive accounting estimates, or to the significant assumptions used to 


develop the estimates, noted above.  


 


­ Financial statement disclosures: The disclosures in the financial statements are neutral, consistent 


and clear. 


 


Significant difficulties encountered during the audit 


We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management and completing our audit 
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Other audit findings or issues 


We encountered no other audit findings or issues that require communication at this time. 


We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing 


standards, with management each year prior to retention as the City’s auditors. However, these 


discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a 


condition to our retention. 


Disagreements with management 


Professional standards define a disagreement with management as a matter, whether or not resolved to 


our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing matter that could be significant to 


the financial statements or the auditors' report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements 


arose during the course of our audit.  


Uncorrected misstatements and corrected misstatements 


Professional standards require us to accumulate misstatements identified during the audit, other than 


those that are clearly trivial, and to communicate accumulated misstatements to management. The 


schedule within the Appendix summarizes the uncorrected misstatements that we presented to 


management, other than those that are clearly trivial, that, in our judgment, may not have been detected 


except through our auditing procedures. In our judgment, none of the uncorrected misstatements, either 


individually or in the aggregate, indicate matters that could have had a significant effect on the 


Company’s financial reporting process. 


Management has determined that the effects of the uncorrected misstatements are immaterial, both 


individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements as a whole. The uncorrected misstatements 


or the matters underlying them could potentially cause future period financial statements to be materially 


misstated, even though, in our judgment, such uncorrected misstatements are immaterial to the financial 


statements under audit. 


Significant unusual transactions 


There have been no significant transactions that are outside the normal course of business for the City or 


that otherwise appear to be unusual due to their timing, size or nature. 


Other information in documents containing audited consolidated financial statements 


The City’s audited financial statements are “general purpose” financial statements. General purpose 


financial statements consist of the basic financial statements that can be used by a broad group of people 


for a broad range of activities. Once we have issued our audit report, we have no further obligation to 


update our report for events occurring subsequent to the date of our report. The City can use the audited 


financial statements in other client prepare documents, such as official statements related to the issuance 


of debt, without our acknowledgement. Unless we have been engaged to perform services in connection 


with any subsequent transaction requiring the inclusion of our audit report, as well as to issue an auditor’s 


acknowledgment letter, we have neither read the document nor performed subsequent event procedures 


in order to determine whether or not our report remains appropriate. 


Management’s consultations with other accountants 


In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting 


matters. Management informed us that, and to our knowledge, there were no consultations with other 


accountants regarding auditing or accounting matters. 
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Written communications between management and Baker Tilly 


The Appendix includes copies of other material written communications, including a copy of the 


management representation letter. 


Compliance with laws and regulations 


We did not identify any non-compliance with laws and regulations during our audit.  


Fraud 


We did not identify any known or suspected fraud during our audit.  


Going concern 


Pursuant to professional standards, we are required to communicate to you, when applicable, certain 


matters relating to our evaluation of the City’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable 


period of time but no less than 12 months from the date the financial statements are issued or available to 


be issued, including the effects on the financial statements and the adequacy of the related disclosures, 


and the effects on the auditor's report. No such matters or conditions have come to our attention during 


our engagement.  


Independence 


We are not aware of any relationships between Baker Tilly and the City that, in our professional judgment, 


may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence. 


Related parties 


We did not have any significant findings or issues arise during the audit in connection with the City’s 


related parties.  


Other matters 


We applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information (RSI) that supplements 


the basic financial statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding the 


methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s 


responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our 


audit of the basic financial statements. We did not audit the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide 


any assurance on the RSI. 


We were engaged to report on the supplementary information which accompanies the financial 


statements but is not RSI. With respect to the supplementary information, we made certain inquiries of 


management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to determine 


that the information complies with [accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 


America or the modified cash basis of accounting], the method of preparing it has not changed from the 


prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial 


statements. We compared and reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying accounting 


records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves. 
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Nonattest services 


The following nonattest services were provided by Baker Tilly: 


- Financial statement preparation 


- Compiled TIF financial statements 


- Compiled regulatory reports 


- Maintenance of capital asset records 


- Impact fee services 


 


In addition, we prepared GASB No. 34 conversion entries which are summarized in the “Reconciliation of 


the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Net Position” and the “Reconciliation of 


the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the 


Statement of Activities” in the financial statements. 


None of these nonattest services constitute an audit under generally accepted auditing standards, 


including Government Auditing Standards. 
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Accounting changes relevant to the City of 


Stoughton 
Future accounting standards update 


GASB 
statement 
number 


Description Potentially 
impacts 


you 


Effective date 


87 Leases  
 


12/31/22* 


91 Conduit Debt  
 


12/31/22* 


92 Omnibus 2020 
 


12/31/22* 


93 Replacement of Interfund Bank Offered 
Rates 


 
12/31/22* 


94 Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships 
and Availability Payment Arrangements 


 
12/31/23 


96 Subscription-Based Information Technology 
Arrangements 


 
12/31/23 


97 Certain Component Unit Criteria, and 
Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred 
Compensation Plans 


 
12/31/22 


 


*The statements listed above through Statement No. 93 had their required effective dates postponed by 


one year with the issuance of Statement No. 95, Postponement of Effective Dates of Certain Authoritative 


Guidance, with the exception of Statement No. 87 which was postponed by one and a half years. The 


effective date reflected above is the required revised implementation date.  


Further information on upcoming GASB pronouncements. 


Preparing for the new lease standard 


GASB’s new single model for lease accounting will be effective soon. This standard will require 
governments to identify and evaluate contracts that convey control of the right to use another entity’s 
nonfinancial asset as specified in the contract for a period of time in an exchange or exchange-like 
transaction. Contracts meeting the criteria for control, term and other items within the standard will result 
in recognizing a right to use asset and lease liability or a receivable and deferred inflow of resources. 


 
  



https://www.bakertilly.com/insights/gasb-update-for-public-sector-organizations
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We recommend the City review this standard and start planning now as to how this will affect your 
financial reporting. We recommend that you begin by completing an inventory of all contracts that might 
meet the definition of a lease. The contract listing should include key terms of the contracts such as: 
 
­ Description of contract 


­ Underlying asset  


­ Contract term  


­ Options for extensions and terminations  


­ Service components, if any 


­ Dollar amount of lease  


 
In addition, the City should begin to establish a lease policy to address the treatment of common lease 
types, including a dollar threshold for each lease. We are available to discuss this further and help you 
develop an action plan.  
 
Learn more about GASB 87. 
 


Planning for the new conduit debt reporting 


Conduit debt includes arrangements where there are three separate parties involved including a third 


party that is obligated for payment, a debt holder or lender and an issuing party which is often a 


government. This standard provides additional criteria for identifying and classifying conduit debt with the 


intent of providing consistency in how the debt is recorded and reported in governmental financial 


statements. The City should identify any existing debt arrangements involving third-party obligors and 


evaluate how those arrangements will be reported under the new standard in order to determine the 


potential impact of this standard on future financial reporting. 


 



https://www.bakertilly.com/insights/government-accounting-standards-board-gasb-new-lease
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Trending challenges and opportunities for 


organizations  
Management and governing bodies must keep the future in mind as they evaluate strategies to achieve 


future growth. Keeping a balance between risk and sustainability is key, and organizations need to think 


beyond their immediate needs to their long-term goals. Economic uncertainty, coupled with key risk areas 


and fast-paced technology change, make strategic planning complex. Begin the discussion with your 


management team to find your path to your future. 


 


   


Turning toward recovery and growth 


Many organizations are focusing on the strategic restart and ramp up of their 


operations.  


With great uncertainty about what recovery will look like–or how long it will 


take–it is essential for your organization to understand the scenarios you may 


face and plan your path back to growth. 


We can help you chart a way forward that will enhance and maximize your 


value, minimize further disruption and keep your workforce safe.  


Recommendation 


Follow our road map to reopen, recover and reset.  


 


   


Compliance with federal awards 


Challenge 


The COVID-19 crisis has had a significant effect on the nation, 


including recipients of federal awards resulting from various 


congressional acts. Federal funding adds an increased level of 


scrutiny and brings new challenges around compliance, reporting 


and administration.  


Finance and spending departments are operating in 


unprecedented times as they manage and administer these funds 


while also remaining economically viable, maintaining operations 


and adapting to the “new normal.”  


Recommendation 


Learn more about compliance for federal funds obtained for 
pandemic response efforts. 


 


  



https://www.bakertilly.com/insights/a-road-map-to-reopen-recover-and-reset

https://www.bakertilly.com/specialties/single-audits-and-federal-awards-compliance-audits
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Recession proofing measures 


Challenge 


Ever aware of the need to balance the needs of diverse 


constituents against constrained revenue streams and conflicting 


priorities, public leaders strive to effectively deploy scarce 


resources while maintaining the highest levels of accountability and 


transparency. 


In times of crisis, additional challenges emerge to maintain 


essential services, ensure citizen safety, protect their workforce 


and jumpstart programs to mitigate negative local economic 


impacts–all while focusing on planning for long-term effects of 


revenue shortages and the subsequent recovery.  


Developing strategic clarity, aligning resources with priorities, 


strengthening performance, optimizing processes and leveraging 


technology are imperative.  


Recommendation 


Learn about proactive measures to insulate your organization from financial hardship and to optimize your 
organization’s performance. 
 


   


Recruiting and hiring 


Challenge 


Public sector entities in need of key workforce personnel, such as 
city or county managers and administrators, city or county 
attorneys, fire chiefs, police chiefs and other departmental 
directors, may find themselves in an unenviable position during a 
pandemic.  
 
Organizations need the talent, but a pandemic can disrupt 
essential business processes and cause apprehension about 
access to desirable candidates. 
 
Hiring leaders should proactively discuss what-if scenarios, 
evaluate short-term and long-term hiring priorities, and plan for 
situations where immediate recruitment is imperative. 
 
Recommendation 


Learn the key considerations and actions for recruiting and hiring in a crisis. 
  



https://www.bakertilly.com/insights/recession-proofing-six-actions-governments-and-not-for-profits-should-take

https://www.bakertilly.com/specialties/public-sector-performance-optimization

https://www.bakertilly.com/specialties/public-sector-performance-optimization

https://www.bakertilly.com/insights/recruiting-and-hiring-challenges-during-the-covid-19-pandemic
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Risk assessment 


Challenge  


Organizations today manage ever-expanding priorities in a 
constantly evolving, disruptive risk environment. Undetected risks, 
insufficient internal controls and inefficient business processes may 
negatively impact not only the entity but also its workforce and the 
community at large. 
 
Risk assessment and internal audit prove essential to identifying 


top risks and the appropriateness of response in order to: 


– Manage risk and compliance 


– Enhance governance and strategy 


– Optimize operations 


– Gain assurance around key functions and processes that 


contribute toward meeting organizational goals 


Recommendation 
 
Learn about the key considerations for the risk assessment process and internal audit planning. 
 


   


Economic development 


Challenge 


In today’s complex economic landscape, communities face the 
daunting challenge of rebuilding their local economies. Restoring the 
momentum of economic expansion and investment to enhance quality 
of life for residents and produce long-term financial gain for the 
community is at the forefront of concerns.  
 
Whether attracting growth to maximize opportunity built around 
community strengths or accounting for the many unknowns caused by 
major disruptions, a robust economic development strategy is 
essential to recovery. 
 
Recommendation 


Learn about the advantages of creating an economic development 
strategic plan and the framework to follow. 
 


  



https://www.bakertilly.com/insights/internal-audit-risk-assessments-and-annual-audit-planning

https://www.bakertilly.com/insights/municipal-economic-development-strategic-planning

https://www.bakertilly.com/insights/municipal-economic-development-strategic-planning
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Harnessing data and analytics for strategic insight and     


decision-making 


 


Challenge 


In crisis and recovery, organizations are investing in advanced analytic solutions to help them not only 


make better decisions faster and more consistently, but also to improve operational efficiency and 


performance. Of all the business analytics available, advanced analytic solutions should be at the top of 


your priority list given the impact it can have on your business. 


Recommendation 


Learn more about data & analytics strategy and roadmaps, MDM and data process re-engineering, AI 


strategy, data visualization and other digital and analytic capabilities. 


 


   


Information technology and cybersecurity 


 


Challenge 


While return-to-work scenarios are being developed, it is likely that remote workforces will remain a reality 


for many organizations in the short- to mid-term. Though many organizations have been able to adapt on 


a short-term basis, some will not be prepared for long-term operation on a remote and virtual basis. 


Organizations should increase monitoring of invasive cyber events, given the likely increase in hackers 


sending out fake emails, website links and ransomware attacks – and also consider: 


― Adequacy of IT controls and security 


― Performance of remote infrastructure supporting operations 


― Improvements to remote applications for communication, collaboration and workflow 


― Alternatives for data entry, work and information flow 


Recommendation 


Learn more about information technology and cybersecurity, including System & Organization Controls 


reporting.  



https://www.bakertilly.com/specialties/data-and-analytics

https://www.bakertilly.com/specialties/data-and-analytics

https://www.bakertilly.com/specialties/information-technology-cybersecurity

https://www.bakertilly.com/specialties/information-technology-cybersecurity

https://www.bakertilly.com/specialties/system-and-organization-controls-soc-reporting

https://www.bakertilly.com/specialties/system-and-organization-controls-soc-reporting
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 CITY OF STOUGHTON 


207 S Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 
(608) 873-6677     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


May 6, 2021 


Baker Tilly US, LLP 
P.O.Box 7398 
Madison, WI 73707-7398 


Dear Baker Tilly US, LLP: 


We are providing this letter in connection with your audit of the financial statements of the City of Stoughton as of 
December 31, 2020 and for the year then ended for the purpose of expressing  opinions as to whether the financial 
statements present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the 
business-type activities,  each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Stoughton 
and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We confirm that we are responsible for the fair 
presentation of the previously mentioned financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. We are also responsible for adopting sound accounting policies, 
establishing and maintaining internal control over financial reporting, and preventing and detecting fraud. 


Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material. Items are 
considered material, regardless of size, if they involve an omission or misstatement of accounting information that, 
in the light of surrounding circumstances, makes it probable that the judgment of a reasonable person relying on 
the information would be changed or influenced by the omission or misstatement. An omission or misstatement that 
is monetarily small in amount could be considered material as a result of qualitative factors. 


We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, the following representations made to you during your audit. 


Financial Statements 


1) We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement letter. 


2) The financial statements referred to above are fairly presented in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. We have engaged you to advise us in fulfilling that 
responsibility. The financial statements include all properly classified funds of the primary government 
required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America to be included in the 
financial reporting entity.  


3) We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control 
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 







 


 


4) We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control to 
prevent and detect fraud. 


5) Significant assumptions we used in making accounting estimates, if any, are reasonable. 


6) All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America require adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted 
or disclosed. No other events, including instances of noncompliance, have occurred subsequent to the 
financial statement date and through the date of this letter that would require adjustment to or disclosure 
in the aforementioned financial statements. 


7) All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the financial 
statements. 


8) We believe the effects of the uncorrected financial statement misstatements listed here are immaterial, 
both individually and in the aggregate, to the basic financial statements as a whole. The city chose not to 
record postemployment benefit liabilities and related deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of 
resources and expenses/expenditures for Governmental activities, Business-type activities, Water Utility, 
Wastewater Utility, Electric Utility, EMS and Storm sewer enterprise funds. The liabilities, deferred inflows 
of resources, deferred outflows of resources and expenses/expenditures are understated and net position 
is overstated for each opinion unit. Amounts are listed in attached summary. 


9) There are no known or possible litigation, claims, and assessments whose effects should be considered 
when preparing the financial statements. There are no unasserted claims or assessments that our lawyer 
has advised us are probable of assertion and must be disclosed in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. 


10) Guarantees, whether written or oral, under which the City is contingently liable, if any, have been properly 
recorded or disclosed. 


Information Provided 


11) We have provided you with: 


a) Access to all information, of which we are aware, that is relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements, such as financial records and related data, documentation, 
and other matters. 


b) Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit. 


c) Unrestricted access to persons within the entity from whom you determined it necessary to obtain 
audit evidence. 


d) Minutes of the meetings of City Council or summaries of actions of recent meetings for which minutes 
have not yet been prepared. 


12) We have not completed an assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be materially 
misstated as a result of fraud. 


13) We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud that affects the entity and involves: 


a) Management, 


b) Employees who have significant roles in internal control, or 







 


 


c) Others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements. 


14) We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the entity received in 
communications from employees, former employees, regulators, or others. 


15) We have no knowledge of known instances of noncompliance or suspected noncompliance with 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, or grant agreements, or abuse, whose effects should be 
considered when preparing financial statements. 


16) There are no known related parties or related party relationships and transactions of which we are aware. 


Other 


17) There have been no communications from regulatory agencies concerning noncompliance with, or 
deficiencies in, financial reporting practices. 


18) We have a process to track the status of audit findings and recommendations. 


19) We have identified to you any previous financial audits, attestation engagements, and other studies 
related to the audit objectives and whether related recommendations have been implemented. 


20) The City has no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or classification of assets, 
liabilities, or equity. 


21) We are responsible for compliance with federal, state, and local laws, regulations, and provisions of 
contracts and grant agreements applicable to us, including tax or debt limits, debt contracts, and IRS 
arbitrage regulations; and we have identified and disclosed to you all federal, state, and local laws, 
regulations and provisions of contracts and grant agreements that we believe have a direct and material 
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts or other financial data significant to the audit 
objectives, including legal and contractual provisions for reporting specific activities in separate funds. 


22) There are no: 


a) Violations or possible violations of budget ordinances, federal, state, and local laws or regulations 
(including those pertaining to adopting, approving and amending budgets), provisions of contracts and 
grant agreements, tax or debt limits, and any related debt covenants whose effects should be 
considered for disclosure in the financial statements or as a basis for recording a loss contingency, or 
for reporting on noncompliance, except those already disclosed in the financial statement, if any. 


b) Other liabilities or gain or loss contingencies that are required to be accrued or disclosed by 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 


c) Nonspendable, restricted, committed, or assigned fund balances that were not properly authorized and 
approved. 


d) Rates being charged to customers other than the rates as authorized by the applicable authoritative 
body. 


e) Violations of restrictions placed on revenues as a result of bond resolution covenants such as revenue 
distribution or debt service funding.  







 


 


23) In regards to the nonattest services performed by you listed below, we have 1) accepted all management 
responsibility; 2) designated an individual with suitable skill, knowledge, or experience to oversee the 
services; 3) evaluated the adequacy and results of the services performed, and 4) accepted responsibility 
for the results of the services. 


a) Financial statement preparation 


b) Compiled TIF financial statements 


c) Compiled regulatory reports 


d) Maintenance of capital asset records 


e) Impact fee services 


None of these nonattest services constitute an audit under generally accepted auditing standards, 
including Government Auditing Standards. 


24) The City of Stoughton has satisfactory title to all owned assets, and there are no liens or encumbrances 
on such assets nor has any asset been pledged as collateral. 


25) The City of Stoughton has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that would have a material 
effect on the financial statement in the event of noncompliance. 


26) There are no component units that should be disclosed in the financial statements. There are no joint 
ventures with an equity interest, and we have properly disclosed all other joint ventures and other related 
organizations. 


27) The financial statements properly classify all funds and activities. 


28) All funds that meet the quantitative criteria in GASB Statement No. 34 and No. 37 for presentation as 
major are identified and presented as such and all other funds that are presented as major are particularly 
important to financial statement users. 


29) Components of net position (net investment in capital assets; restricted; and unrestricted) and 
components of fund balance (nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned) are 
properly classified and, if applicable, approved. 


30) The City of Stoughton has no derivative financial instruments such as contracts that could be assigned to 
someone else or net settled, interest rate swaps, collars or caps. 


31) Provisions for uncollectible receivables, if any, have been properly identified and recorded. 


32) Expenses have been appropriately classified in or allocated to functions and programs in the statement of 
activities, and allocations have been made on a reasonable basis. 


33) Revenues are appropriately classified in the statement of activities within program revenues and general 
revenues. 


34) Interfund, internal, and intra-entity activity and balances have been appropriately classified and reported. 


35) Deposits and investments are properly classified, valued, and disclosed (including risk disclosures, 
collateralization agreements, valuation methods, and key inputs, as applicable). 







 


 


36) Capital assets, including infrastructure and intangible assets, are properly capitalized, reported, and, if 
applicable, depreciated/amortized. Any known impairments have been recorded and disclosed. 


37) Tax-exempt bonds issued have retained their tax-exempt status. 


38) We have appropriately disclosed the City of Stoughton's policy regarding whether to first apply restricted 
or unrestricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and 
unrestricted net position are available and have determined that net position were properly recognized 
under the policy. We have also disclosed our policy regarding which resources (that is, restricted, 
committed, assigned or unassigned) are considered to be spent first for expenditures for which more than 
one resource classification is available. 


39) We acknowledge our responsibility for the required supplementary information (RSI). The RSI is 
measured and presented within prescribed guidelines and the methods of measurement and presentation 
have not changed from those used in the prior period. We have disclosed to you any significant 
assumptions and interpretations underlying the measurement and presentation of the RSI. 


40) With respect to the supplementary information, (SI): 


a) We acknowledge our responsibility for presenting the SI in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America, and we believe the SI, including its form and 
content, is fairly presented in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America. The methods of measurement and presentation of the SI have not changed from 
those used in the prior period, and we have disclosed to you any significant assumptions or 
interpretations underlying the measurement and presentation of the supplementary information. 


b) If the SI is not presented with the audited financial statements, we will make the audited financial 
statements readily available to the intended users of the supplementary information no later than the 
date we issue the supplementary information and the auditor's report thereon. 


41) We assume responsibility for, and agree with, the information provided by the Wisconsin Retirement 
System as audited by the Legislative Audit Bureau relating to the net pension asset/liability and related 
deferred outflows and deferred inflows and have adequately considered the reasonableness of the 
amounts and disclosures used in the financial statements and underlying accounting records. We also 
assume responsibility for the census data that has been reported to the plan. 


42) We have implemented GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, and believe that all activities that 
meet the criteria for presentation as fiduciary activities have been identified and presented as such. In 
addition, we believe that all required disclosures and other accounting considerations have been 
identified and properly classified in the financial statements in compliance with the Standard. 


43) We have implemented GASB Statement No. 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, including Direct 
Borrowings and Direct Placements, and believe that all direct borrowings, direct placements, lines of 
credit or debt default clauses have been identified and properly disclosed in the financial statements in 
compliance with the Standard. 


44) We have implemented GASB Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a 
Construction Period, and believe that all required disclosures and accounting considerations have been 
identified and properly classified in the financial statements in compliance with the Standard. 
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Uncorrected misstatements 
The city has one uncorrected financial statement misstatement as the result of not implementing GASB 
Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than 
Pensions. Had this standard been implemented the following would have been recorded. 
 


Financial statement effects – debit (credit) to financial statement total: 


Opinion unit Total 
assets/ 
deferred 
outflows 


Total 
liabilities/ 
deferred 
inflows 


Total net 
position/ 
fund 
balances 


Total 
expense/ 
expenditures 


Change in 
net position/ 
fund 
balances 


Governmental activities 175,491 (948,860) 773,369 30,344 30,344 


Business-type activities 61,390 (275,958) 214,568 20,759 20,759 


Water 11,504 (50,214) 38,710 4,003 4,003 


Wastewater 11,923 (52,041) 40,119 4,149 4,149 


Electric 34,512 (150,643) 116,131 12,010 12,010 


Remaining funds 3,452 (23,059) 19,607 597 597 
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As part of our audit of your financial statements, we are providing communications to you throughout the 


audit process. Auditing requirements provide for two-way communication and are important in assisting 


the auditor and you with more information relevant to the audit. 


As this past audit is concluded, we use what we have learned to begin the planning process for next 


year’s audit. It is important that you understand the following points about the scope and timing of our 


next audit: 


a. We address the significant risks of material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, through 


our detailed audit procedures. 


b. We will obtain an understanding of the five components of internal control sufficient to assess the 


risk of material misstatement of the financial statements whether due to error or fraud, and to 


design the nature, timing and extent of further audit procedures. We will obtain a sufficient 


understanding by performing risk assessment procedures to evaluate the design of controls 


relevant to an audit of financial statements and to determine whether they have been 


implemented. We will use such knowledge to:  


­ Identify types of potential misstatements. 


­ Consider factors that affect the risks of material misstatement. 


­ Design tests of controls, when applicable, and substantive procedures. 


c. We will not express an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting or 


compliance with laws, regulations and provisions of contracts or grant programs.  


d. The concept of materiality recognizes that some matters, either individually or in the aggregate, 


are important for fair presentation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted 


accounting principles while other matters are not important. In performing the audit, we are 


concerned with matters that, either individually or in the aggregate, could be material to the 


financial statements. Our responsibility is to plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 


assurance that material misstatements, whether caused by errors or fraud, are detected. 


Our audit will be performed in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 


of America  


We are very interested in your views regarding certain matters. Those matters are listed here: 


a. We typically will communicate with your top level of management unless you tell us otherwise. 


b. We understand that the governing board has the responsibility to oversee the strategic direction 


of your organization, as well as the overall accountability of the entity. Management has the 


responsibility for achieving the objectives of the entity. 


c. We need to know your views about your organization’s objectives and strategies, and the related 


business risks that may result in material misstatements. 


d. We anticipate that the City will receive an unmodified opinion on its financial statements. 


e. Which matters do you consider warrant particular attention during the audit, and are there any 


areas where you request additional procedures to be undertaken? 


f. Have you had any significant communications with regulators or grantor agencies? 


g. Are there other matters that you believe are relevant to the audit of the financial statements? 
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Also, is there anything that we need to know about the attitudes, awareness and actions of the governing 


body concerning: 


a. The entity’s internal control and its importance in the entity, including how those charged with 


governance oversee the effectiveness of internal control? 


b. The detection or the possibility of fraud? 


We also need to know if you have taken actions in response to developments in financial reporting, laws, 


accounting standards, governance practices, or other related matters, or in response to previous 


communications with us. 


With regard to the timing of our audit, here is some general information. If necessary, we may do 


preliminary financial audit work during the months of October-December, and sometimes early in January. 


Our final financial fieldwork is scheduled during the spring to best coincide with your readiness and report 


deadlines. After fieldwork, we wrap up our financial audit procedures at our office and may issue drafts of 


our report for your review. Final copies of our report and other communications are issued after approval 


by your staff. This is typically 6-12 weeks after final fieldwork, but may vary depending on a number of 


factors.  


Keep in mind that while this communication may assist us with planning the scope and timing of the audit, 


it does not change the auditor’s sole responsibility to determine the overall audit strategy and the audit 


plan, including the nature, timing and extent of procedures necessary to obtain sufficient appropriate audit 


evidence. 


We realize that you may have questions on what this all means, or wish to provide other feedback. We 


welcome the opportunity to hear from you. 







 


 


 


 


 


Appendix E: Audit results 







City of Stoughton
General fund results


Summarized income statement
Actual Final budget Variance


     Revenues and other financing sources 14,122,878$          14,156,164$          (33,286)$                


     Expenditures and other financing uses 13,895,497            14,162,314            266,817                 


        Net change in fund balance 227,381$               (6,150)$                  233,531$               


Fund balance category definitions
     Nonspendable - amounts cannot be spent either because they are not in spendable form or because


          legal or contractual requirements require them to be maintained in tact.


     Restricted - amounts that can be spent only for the specific purposes stipulated by an external source.
     Committed - amounts constrained for specific purposes that are internally imposed through formal
          action of the governing body.


     Assigned - spendable amounts that are intended to be used for specific purposes that are not


          considered restricted or committed.


     Unassigned - residual amounts that have not been classified within other categories above.


$1,458,338 


$-


$-


$1,090,151 


$4,482,473 


$7,030,962 


$1,394,058 


-


-


1,160,595 


4,248,928 


$6,803,581 


 $-  $1,000,000  $2,000,000  $3,000,000  $4,000,000  $5,000,000  $6,000,000  $7,000,000  $8,000,000


Nonspendable


Restricted


Committed


Assigned


Unassigned


Total


General fund - fund balance by category2019 2020


© 2021 Baker Tilly US, LLP
Source: current and prior year financial statement information and other benchmark information as noted. Page 40    







City of Stoughton
General fund - fund balance trends


Fund balance policy:
       Maintain unassigned general fund balance within a range of 20-25% of general fund annual budgeted expenditures.


       The unassigned balance at year end was $4,251,818 or 30.13% of 2020 general fund budgeted expenditures.


       The includes deficit fund balances for Opera House ($228,519) and Landmarks ($2,136). 


Other reference values
     GFOA recommends a minimum of no less than 2 months (16.7%) of general fund expenditures.


     Median reference value generated from 2016 - 2019 Baker Tilly municipal client data for population ranges
         from 10,000 to 17,500.
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© 2021 Baker Tilly US, LLP
Source: current and prior year financial statement information and other benchmark information as noted. Page 41    







City of Stoughton
General obligation debt


Debt management policy:
     The City has a debt policy to maintain total outstanding general obligation debt at 4% or 
        less of equalized value. The City's outstanding general obligation debt was at 2.9%.
     Legal debt margin capacity (5% of the city's total equalized value).


Actual percentage of debt limit at 12/31/20: 58%


Total debt outstanding by type at 12/31/2020
General obligation Revenue Debt Total


City 34,544,683$               -$                    34,544,683$          
Utility 2,135,530                   10,601,472         12,737,002$          


     Total 36,680,213$               10,601,472$       47,281,685$          


Comparative metrics available online through the Wisconsin Policy Forum.


                 Select "Debt" -- options for custom comparisons or comparisons by county


https://wispolicyforum.org/research/municipal-datatool-examining-and-comparing-wisconsin-
cities-and-villages/
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© 2021 Baker Tilly US, LLP
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City of Stoughton
Governmental funds - debt service 


Current and prior year data
2020 2019


     Principal 3,708,169$                 3,215,601$         
     Interest 1,106,258                   1,015,259           


          Total 4,814,427$                 4,230,860$         


     Noncapital expenditures 16,596,609$               16,433,004$       


Other reference values
     Median reference value generated from 2016 - 2019 Baker Tilly municipal client data for
        population ranges from 10,000 to 17,500.
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Independent Auditors' Report


To the City Council of
City of Stoughton


Report on the Financial Statements


We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin,
as of and for the year ended December 31, 2020 and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the City of Stoughton's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.


Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements


Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.


Auditors' Responsibility


Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.


An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the City of Stoughton's preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Stoughton's
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.


We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.


Opinions


In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Stoughton,  Wisconsin, as of December 31, 2020 and the
respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.


i


Baker Tilly US, LLP, trading as Baker Tilly, is a member of the global network of Baker Tilly International Ltd., the members of which are 
separate and independent legal entities.







Other Matters


Required Supplementary Information


Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the required
supplementary information as listed in the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic or historical context. We have
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements and other knowledge we obtained
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on
the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion
or provide any assurance.


Supplementary Information


Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City of Stoughton's basic financial statements. The supplementary information as listed in the
table of contents is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial
statements themselves and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the supplementary information is fairly stated in all
material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.


Madison, Wisconsin
May 6, 2021
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City of Stoughton 


Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) 


Year Ended December 31, 2020 
 
 
 
 
 


Management of the City of Stoughton offer readers of the City of Stoughton's (City) financial statements this 
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City for the fiscal year ended December 31, 
2020. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with the City's 
financial statements. 
 


Financial Highlights 
 
A successful city seeks out growth opportunities and prudently allocates its limited resources to provide the 
best goods and services to its residents. Prudent management of financial assets seeks to both maximize the 
value of current goods and services and future needs, wants and opportunities. Management presents this 
analysis with a view to the current period and the future. 
 


 Net positon increased $4.5 million, or 4.9%, in 2020 to $95.5 million from $91.0 million in 2019. 
Governmental activities accounted for $2.3 million of the increase in net position with the remaining 
$2.2 million generated from business-type activities. 
 


 Net investment in capital assets increased by $5.0 million, or 7.5%, in 2020 from 2019. Major 2020 
capital projects include street reconstruction, storm water improvements, downtown parking lot and 
sidewalk improvements and utility infrastructure improvements.   


 
 The City's governmental funds reported combined fund balances of $15.3 million at year-end. $3.4 million 


of the fund balance was unassigned and able to fund future City expenditures. The remainder of the fund 
balance was nonspendable, restricted, committed or assigned for various purposes.  
 


 The unassigned general fund balance at year-end including deficits in funds potentially funded by the 
general fund was $4,251,818, or 30.1%, of 2020 general fund budgeted expenditures. This exceeds the 
City’s policy of 20% to 25% of general fund annual budgeted expenditures. 


 
 Long-term bonds and notes outstanding decreased in 2020 by $3.2 million to $47.3 million.  


Overview of the Financial Statements 
 
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City's basic financial statements. 
These financial statements consist of two parts: Management's Discussion and Analysis (this section) and the 
basic financial statements. The basic financial statements include two kinds of statements that present 
different views of the City: 
 


 The first two statements are government-wide financial statements that provide both long-term and 
short-term information about the City's overall financial status. 


 
 The remaining statements are fund financial statements that focus on individual parts of City 


government, reporting the City's operations in more detail than the government-wide statements. 
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These financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the financial statements 
and provide more detailed data. The statements are followed by a section of required supplementary 
information that further explains and supports the information in the financial statements. 
 
The government-wide statements report information about the City as a whole using accounting methods 
similar to those used by private-sector companies. The statement of net position includes all of the 
government’s assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources. All of the 
current year’s revenues and expenses are accounted for in the statement of activities regardless of when 
cash is received or paid. 
 
The two government-wide statements report the City’s net position and how they have changed. Net 
position – the City’s assets plus deferred outflows of resources less liabilities and deferred inflows of 
resources – is one way to measure the City’s financial health, or position. Over time, increases or decreases 
in the City’s net position are an indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. To 
assess the overall health of the City you need to consider additional nonfinancial factors such as changes in 
the City’s property tax base, changes in the local, state and national economies and the condition of the City’s 
roads and other infrastructure. 
 
The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net position changed during 
the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving 
rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of the cash flows. Thus, revenue and expenses reported in 
this statement for some items will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods. 
 
A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been 
segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local governments, uses fund 
accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of 
the City can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds. 
 
Governmental Funds – Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported 
as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide 
financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of 
spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. 
Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements. 
 
Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, 
it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better 
understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental 
fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund 
balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental 
activities. 
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The City maintains thirty-seven individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the 
governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and 
changes in fund balances for the general fund, debt service fund and construction fund, all of which are 
considered to be major funds. Data from the other governmental funds are combined into a single, 
aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in 
the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report. 
 
The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund. A budgetary comparison statement has 
been provided for the general fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget. 
 
Proprietary Funds – The City maintains six different proprietary funds, five of which are enterprise funds. 
Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the 
government-wide financial statements. Proprietary fund financial statements present the same type of 
information as the government-wide financial statements, only in more detail. 
 
Internal Service Fund – The internal service fund is used to account for and report the financing of goods or 
services provided by one department or agency to other departments or agencies of the City, on a cost-
reimbursement basis. 
 
Fiduciary Funds – Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the 
government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the 
resources of those funds are not available to support the City’s own programs. The accounting used for 
fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds. 
 
Notes to the Financial Statements – The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full 
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. 
 
Other Information – In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, required 
supplementary information presents a detailed budgetary comparison schedule for the general fund to 
demonstrate compliance with the budget, followed by the City’s pension related information. The combining 
statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds are presented immediately 
following the required supplementary information. 
 


Financial Analysis of the City as a Whole 
 
An analysis of the City’s financial position begins with a review of the Statement of Net Position and the 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position. These two statements report the City’s net 
position and changes therein. It should be noted that the financial position could also be affected by 
nonfinancial factors, including economic conditions, population growth and new regulations. 
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A summary of the City’s Statement of Net Position is presented below. 
 


Table 1 
Condensed Statement of Net Position 


 Governmental Activities  Business-Type Activities  Total 


 2020  2019  2020  2019  2020  2019 
 
Current and other assets  $ 30,538,527  $ 32,681,577  $ 16,438,708  $ 15,289,239  $ 46,977,235  $ 47,970,816 
Net pension assets   1,244,940   -   392,879   -   1,637,819   - 
Capital assets   54,973,284   52,631,928   61,511,842   60,006,260   116,485,126   112,638,188 


                   
Total assets   86,756,751   85,313,505   78,343,429   75,295,499   165,100,180   160,609,004 


                   
Pension related amounts   3,029,971   3,686,053   932,797   1,173,998   3,962,768   4,860,051 


                   
Total deferred 


outflows of 
resources   3,029,971   3,686,053   932,797   1,173,998   3,962,768   4,860,051 


                   
Long-term liabilities   36,564,309   38,244,663   13,162,287   13,306,422   49,726,596   51,551,085 
Net pension liability   1,067,144   2,200,216   -   443,159   1,067,144   2,643,375 
Other liabilities   1,897,266   2,813,030   3,490,697   2,894,341   5,387,963   5,707,371 
                   


Total liabilities   39,528,719   43,257,909   16,652,984   16,643,922   56,181,703   59,901,831 
                   
Unearned revenue   12,060,684   11,569,786   -   -   12,060,684   11,569,786 
Pension related amounts   4,143,920   2,381,062   1,216,201   617,148   5,360,121   2,998,210 


                   
Total deferred 


inflows of 
resources   16,204,604   13,950,848   1,216,201   617,148   17,420,805   14,567,996 


                   
Net investment in capital 


assets   22,184,250   19,667,802   48,786,175   46,473,103   70,970,425   66,140,905 
Restricted    4,623,445   3,833,588   3,463,254   3,072,630   8,086,699   6,906,218 
Unrestricted   7,245,704   8,289,411   9,157,612   9,662,694   16,403,316   17,952,105 
                   


Total net position  $ 34,053,399  $ 31,790,801  $ 61,407,041  $ 59,208,427  $ 95,460,440  $ 90,999,228 


 
The largest portion of the City’s net position (74.1%) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, 
buildings and improvements, machinery and equipment and infrastructure), less any debt used to acquire those 
assets that are still outstanding. Although the City’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related 
debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources as 
the capital assets themselves cannot generally be liquidated to pay these liabilities. The investment in capital 
assets increased by $5.0 million, or 7.5%, in 2020 from 2019. An additional portion of the City’s net position 
(8.5%) represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. These restricted 
balances increased by $1.18 million in 2020 from 2019. The remaining balance of unrestricted net position 
(17.4%) may be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations. The unrestricted net position decreased 
by $1.7 million in 2020 from 2019. The decrease in net position is primarily due to do the significant investment 
in capital assets in 2020. 
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A summary of the City’s Statement of Activities is presented below. 
 


Table 2 
Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 


 Governmental Activities  Business-Type Activities  Total 


 2020  2019  2020  2019  2020  2019 
 
Revenues             


Program revenues:             
Charges for services  $ 2,401,419 $ 3,014,578 $ 20,646,050 $ 20,326,367 $ 23,047,469 $ 23,340,945
Operating grants 


and contributions   2,084,001  1,977,030  39,446  23,575  2,123,447  2,000,605
Capital grants and 


contributions   76,568  86,920  531,227  93,467  607,795  180,387
General revenues:             


Property taxes   10,681,114  10,239,339  -  -  10,681,114  10,239,339
Other taxes   94,727  130,559  -  -  94,727  130,559
Intergovernmental   1,404,140  932,109  -  -  1,404,140  932,109
Other   958,106  940,077  178,320  454,244  1,136,426  1,394,321


             
Total revenues   17,700,075  17,320,612  21,395,043  20,897,653  39,095,118  38,218,265


             
Expenses             


General government   3,231,833  2,230,352  -  -  3,231,833  2,230,352
Public safety   4,819,494  4,756,181  -  -  4,819,494  4,756,181
Public works   3,871,840  3,933,341  -  -  3,871,840  3,933,341
Culture/recreation/ 


education   3,008,077  4,061,644  -  -  3,008,077  4,061,644
Conservation and 


development   273,326  598,312  -  -  273,326  598,312
Water   -  -  1,631,375  1,664,278  1,631,375  1,664,278
Wastewater   -  -  1,953,613  1,992,498  1,953,613  1,992,498
Electric   -  -  13,648,917  14,070,250  13,648,917  14,070,250
EMS   -  -  638,636  653,890  638,636  653,890
Storm sewer   -  -  623,644  540,212  623,644  540,212
Interest and fiscal 


charges   933,151  1,031,519  -  -  933,151  1,031,519
 
Total expenses   16,137,721  16,611,349  18,496,185  18,921,128  34,633,906  35,532,477


             
Income before transfers   1,562,354  709,263  2,898,858  1,976,525  4,461,212  2,685,788
             
Transfers   700,244  (677,716)  (700,244)  677,716  -  -
             
Changes in net position   2,262,598  31,547  2,198,614  2,654,241  4,461,212  2,685,788
             
Beginning Net 


Position   31,790,801  31,759,254  59,208,427  56,554,186  90,999,228  88,313,440
             
Ending Net Position  $ 34,053,399 $ 31,790,801 $ 61,407,041 $ 59,208,427 $ 95,460,440 $ 90,999,228
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As previously noted, the Statement of Net Position shows the change in financial position of net position. The 
specific nature or source of these changes then becomes more evident in the Statement of Revenues, 
Expenses and Changes in Net Position as shown above in Table 2.  
 
Governmental Activities – Revenues 
 
Governmental activities increased the City’s net position by $2,262,598, or 7.1%, in 2020. This is up sharply 
from an increase in the City’s net position of $31,547 in 2019. 2020 had $1,351,563 less City contributions to 
the business-type activity funds compared to 2019. 2020 net position also increased $451,344 over 2019’s 
net increase due to changes in net pension asset/liabilities and pension deferred outflows/inflows. The 
remainder cause of the increased change in net position from 2020 to 2019 can be contributed to operating 
activities, special assessments and a variety of other factors. 
 
Program revenues are those revenues that can be directly related to a particular activity, whereas general 
revenues represent revenues that are not directly related to one specific function. General revenues include 
property taxes, state aids and investment income. Charges for services are primarily made up of licenses, 
permits, public charges for services such as library, garbage, recycling, park and recreation fees. Operating 
grants are mainly from state resources received for highway maintenance, taxi service and recycling 
programs. Capital grants fluctuate annually and are received to assist the City in capital asset purchases. 
 
Property taxes are the largest revenue source for the governmental activities accounting for 60% of total 
revenues. 
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Governmental Activities by Revenue Source 
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Governmental Activities – Expenses 
 
Governmental activities expenses are broken down into various functions. General government includes 
administrative type costs including Council, Clerk, Human Resources, Finance, Legal and Assessment 
services. Costs associated with the City's Police Department and Fire services are shown within the public 
safety function. The public works function includes expenses for street and sidewalk maintenance, winter and 
forestry operations and refuse and recycling efforts. Health and human services include the senior center, 
parks, recreation, cemetery and cable television. Conservation and development are the expenses of the 
planning department and TIF funds. 
 
 Governmental Activities Expenses Shown by Function 
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Business-Type Activities 
 
Business-type activities increased the City of Stoughton's net position in 2020 by $2,198,614 to $61,407,041 
from $59,208,427 in 2019. Table 3 below details the net position increase by fund.  
 


Table 3 
Net Position Enterprise Fund (Business-Type Activities) 


 Water Wastewater Electric Stormwater EMS Total 
       


Net position, 
beginning 15,223,140 17,861,756 21,458,401 3,440,699 1,224,431 59,208,427 


Net position, 
ending 15,528,074 18,229,531 22,285,449 3,979,858 1,384,129 61,407,041 


Change in net 
position 304,934 367,775 827,048 539,159 159,698 2,198,614 


Percent net 
position 
increase 2% 2% 4% 16% 13%  


 
The water fund experienced a modest 2% net position increase in 2020. A simplified rate case is pending in 
2021 with the Wisconsin Public Service Commission to maintain the utility’s financial strength and is expected 
to increase future regulatory operating revenues by 3% on an annual basis.  
 
Wastewater also experienced a modest 2% net position increase in 2020. To maintain the wastewater fund’s 
financial standing and to fund capital infrastructure improvements, the City implemented a 4.78% sewer rate 
increase that took effect on June 1, 2020. The rate increase was designed to raise approximately $95,000 on 
an annual basis.  
 
Electric experienced a 4% net position increase in 2020. To maintain the electric fund’s financial standing and 
to fund capital infrastructure improvements, the Public Service Commission of Wisconsin approved Stoughton 
Utilities’ application for a rate increase, which took effect on July 1, 2020. The rate increase was designed to 
increase regulatory operating revenues by $338,480 on an annual basis. 
 
Storm water experienced a significant 16% increase in net position. $418,657 of $539,159 of storm water’s 
net position increase was related to contributions in aid of construction and capital contributions from the 
City’s governmental funds. 
 
The EMS fund’s net position increase by $159,698, or 13%, in 2020. $25,000 of the net increase is from a 
transfer in from the general fund.  
 
Governmental Funds 
 
The focus of the City of Stoughton’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, 
outflows and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City’s financing 
requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of the government’s net 
resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 
 
As of December 31, 2020, the City’s governmental funds reported combined fund balances of $15,299,973, 
down from $17,377,128 at the end of 2019. Approximately 22% of this amount, $3,430,054, constitutes the 
unassigned fund balance, which is available to meet the City’s current and future needs. An additional 
$10,343,202 is included in the restricted, committed, or assigned category, which has been designated for 
specific projects or expenditures. The remaining $1,526,717 is nonspendable for prepaid expenditures, 
noncurrent assets, delinquent items and other investments. 
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General Fund 
 
The City’s general fund is the chief operating fund of the City. Total fund balance in the general fund 
increased $227,381, or 3.3%, from the prior year. The increase is primarily due to operating expenditures 
being below budget. See the following General Fund Budgetary Highlights section for further details. 
 
The City has a formal minimum fund balance policy. That policy is to maintain an unassigned general fund 
balance within a range of 20% to 25% of general fund annual budgeted expenditures. The unassigned 
general fund balance at year-end including deficits in funds potentially funded by the General Fund was 
$4,251,818, or 30.1%, of 2020 general fund budgeted expenditures. 
 
Debt Service Fund 
 
The City’s debt service fund accounts for the accumulation of resources for and payment of, general long-
term debt principal, interest and related costs. The fund balance at the end of 2020 was $696,580, which was 
a decrease of $135,821 from the prior year. The decrease was a planned, budgeted spend down of fund 
balance. 
 
Construction Capital Projects Fund 
 
The City’s construction capital projects fund accounts for the funds accumulated for the purpose of obtaining 
capital assets or for capital projects and other expenditures that are unique and are not normal operating or 
maintenance type expenditures reportable within the general fund or other governmental funds. The total 
fund balance as of December 31, 2020 was $2,005,994. 
 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 
 
Fund balance of all other governmental funds is $5,566,437, a decrease of $1,771,593 from the prior year. 
The cause of the decrease in fund balance is related to capital outlays, including TIF #4 and TIF #6. There 
are 34 different nonmajor governmental funds, each with a different purpose. 
 
Proprietary Funds 
 
The City of Stoughton’s proprietary fund financial statements provide the same type of information found in 
the government-wide financial statements but in more detail. Factors concerning the finances of these funds 
have already been addressed in the discussion of the City’s business-type activities. 
 
Internal Service Fund 
 
In December 2011, the City paid off its Wisconsin Retirement System Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability. 
The City borrowed money from the Electric Utility to pay off its portion of liability. This advance has been 
recorded in the Retirement Fund, which is an Internal Service Fund that the City created for this purpose. The 
internal service fund had a deficit of $206,435 as of December 31, 2020, which represents the amount to be 
paid to the Electric Utility and funded through future years’ charges to governmental funds.  
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General Fund Budgetary Highlights 
 
The General Fund budget had total appropriations, including those for transfers out, of $14,162,314. Actual 
expenditures and transfers out were $13,895,497 resulting in a $266,817 favorable variance. Total actual 
revenues and other sources were $14,122,878, which was $33,286 less than the budget. Further details can be 
found in the budget to actual section of this report and the City’s year-end budget to actual report. 
 


Capital Assets 
 
At the end of 2020, the City had invested a total of $116.5 million in capital assets. This investment in capital 
assets includes land, buildings and improvements, machinery and equipment and infrastructure. 
 


Table 4 
Capital Assets 


 Governmental Activities  Business-Type Activities  Total 


 2020  2019  2020  2019  2020  2019 
 
Land and other assets not 


being depreciated  $ 10,961,836 $ 11,424,738  $ 2,015,841 $ 2,112,866 $ 12,977,677 $ 13,537,604 
Buildings and 


improvements   26,114,584  25,765,325   1,240,308  1,240,308  27,354,892  27,005,633 
Machinery and equipment   10,955,620  9,089,162   941,588  941,588  11,897,208  10,750,750 
Infrastructure   35,209,942  33,684,912   -  -  35,209,942  33,684,912 
Utility plant   -  -   97,276,619  93,167,739  97,276,619  93,167,739 
               


Total capital 
assets   83,241,982  80,684,137   101,474,356  97,462,501  184,716,338  178,146,638 


               
Less accumulated 


depreciation   (28,268,698)  (28,052,209 )  (39,962,514)  (37,456,241)  (68,231,212)  (65,508,450) 
               
Net capital 


assets  $ 54,973,284 $ 52,631,928  $ 61,511,842 $ 60,006,260 $ 116,485,126 $ 112,638,188 


 
Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following: 
 
Governmental Activities 
 


 Over $1.4 million of street reconstruction projects.  
 TIF District #4 had $916,195 of capital outlay expenditures to reconstruct a downtown City street and 


parking lot, replace sidewalks and make general downtown area improvements.  
 TIF District #6 had $742,572 of capital outlay expenditures to finish construction of a new street. 
 Various equipment purchases. 


 
Business-Type Activities 
 


 Capital assets increased due to regular additions and replacements of infrastructure and equipment. 
 $689,244 of additional capital assets from contributions in aid of construction and contributions from the 


City, including the City’s TIF districts. 
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Long-Term Debt 
 
At December 31, 2020, the City had $47,281,685 of long-term bonds and notes outstanding, which is a 
$3,235,359 decrease from 2019. $10,601,472 of this is revenue debt and the rest relates to general obligation 
issues. In accordance with Wisconsin Statutes, total general obligation indebtedness of the City may not 
exceed 5% of the equalized value of taxable property within the City's jurisdiction. The debt limit as of 
December 31, 2020 was $63,402,095. Total general obligation debt outstanding at year end was $36,680,213. 
Therefore, the City was at 58% of the legal debt limit. 
 
The City has a debt policy to maintain total outstanding general obligation debt at 4% or less of the equalized 
value. The City’s outstanding general obligation debt was at 2.9%. 
 


Currently Known Facts/Economic Conditions 
 
All currently known facts and economic conditions were considered in preparing the 2021 City budget. The 
City assumed limited COVID-19 closures and cancellations in 2021. As of April 21, 2021, the Stoughton 
Opera House was still closed with plans to reopen to still be determined. The City of Stoughton cannot at this 
time project how COVID-19 will impact the Opera House’s revenues or how much associated expense can be 
reduced to cover loss revenues. The general fund has ample reserves to cover loss revenues, if necessary. 
 


Requests for Information 
 
The financial report is designed to provide our citizens, customers, investors and creditors with a general 
overview of the City’s finances. If you have questions about this report or need any additional information, 
contact the City of Stoughton Finance Director. 
 







City of Stoughton
Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2020


Governmental
Activities


Business-
Type


Activities Total


Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources


Assets
Cash and investments $ 14,638,477 $ 10,272,064 $ 24,910,541
Receivables (net) 13,383,088 2,836,385 16,219,473
Internal balances 929,469 (929,469) -
Inventories and prepaid items 203,891 485,494 689,385
Investment in mutual insurance company 257,805 - 257,805
Restricted cash and investments - 3,231,368 3,231,368
Restricted net  pension asset 1,244,940 392,879 1,637,819
Other assets - 542,866 542,866
Land held for resale 1,125,797 - 1,125,797
Capital assets:


Capital assets not being depreciated 10,961,836 2,015,841 12,977,677
Capital assets net of depreciation 44,011,448 59,496,001 103,507,449


Total assets 86,756,751 78,343,429 165,100,180


Deferred Outflows of Resources
Pension related amounts 3,029,971 932,797 3,962,768


Total deferred outflows of resources 3,029,971 932,797 3,962,768


Liabilities, Deferred inflows of Resources and Net Position


Liabilities
Accounts payable 910,240 1,700,895 2,611,135
Accrued liabilities and deposits 728,591 270,865 999,456
Other liabilities 258,435 21,554 279,989
Liabilities payable from restricted assets:


Current portion of revenue bonds - 1,446,722 1,446,722
Accrued interest - 50,661 50,661


Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year 3,150,105 320,916 3,471,021
Due in more than one year 33,414,204 12,841,371 46,255,575
Net fire pension liability 1,067,144 - 1,067,144


Total liabilities 39,528,719 16,652,984 56,181,703


Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unearned revenue 12,060,684 - 12,060,684
Pension related amounts 4,143,920 1,216,201 5,360,121


Total deferred inflows of resources 16,204,604 1,216,201 17,420,805


Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 22,184,250 48,786,175 70,738,295
Restricted for:


Debt service 378,242 1,905,471 2,283,713
Firemen pension 877,271 - 877,271
Pension 1,244,940 392,879 1,637,819
Equipment replacement - 1,164,904 1,164,904
TID activities 1,357,188 - 1,357,188
Library 279,950 - 279,950
Impact fees 485,854 - 485,854


Unrestricted 7,245,704 9,157,612 16,635,446


Total net position $ 34,053,399 $ 61,407,041 $ 95,460,440


See notes to financial statements
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City of Stoughton
Statement of Activities
Year Ended December 31, 2020


Program Revenues
Net (Expenses) Revenues and Changes in Net


Position


Functions/Programs Expenses
Charges for


Services


Operating
Grants and


Contributions


Capital 
Grants and


Contributions
Governmental


Activities
Business-Type


Activities Total


Governmental activities:
General government $ 3,231,833 $ 200,529 $ 191,935 $ - $ (2,839,369) $ - $ (2,839,369)
Public safety 4,819,494 603,968 132,707 76,568 (4,006,251) - (4,006,251)
Public works 3,871,840 1,259,713 960,788 - (1,651,339) - (1,651,339)
Culture, recreation and


education 3,008,077 272,288 795,934 - (1,939,855) - (1,939,855)
Conservation and development 273,326 64,921 - - (208,405) - (208,405)
Interest and fiscal charges 933,151 - 2,637 - (930,514) - (930,514)


Total governmental
activities 16,137,721 2,401,419 2,084,001 76,568 (11,575,733) - (11,575,733)


Business-type activities:
Water 1,631,375 2,332,630 - 21,866 - 723,121 723,121
Wastewater 1,953,613 2,200,458 - 95,923 - 342,768 342,768
Electric 13,648,917 14,637,461 - 152,798 - 1,141,342 1,141,342
EMS 638,636 732,781 39,446 - - 133,591 133,591
Storm sewer 623,644 742,720 - 260,640 - 379,716 379,716


Total business-type
activities 18,496,185 20,646,050 39,446 531,227 - 2,720,538 2,720,538


Total $ 34,633,906 $ 23,047,469 $ 2,123,447 $ 607,795 (11,575,733) 2,720,538 (8,855,195)


General Revenues
Taxes


Property taxes, levied for general purposes 9,383,998 - 9,383,998
Property taxes, levied for TIF districts 1,297,116 - 1,297,116
Other taxes 94,727 - 94,727


Intergovernmental revenues not restricted to specific programs 1,404,140 - 1,404,140
Investment income 199,386 178,320 377,706
Miscellaneous 758,720 - 758,720


Total general revenues 13,138,087 178,320 13,316,407
Transfers 700,244 (700,244) -


Change in net position 2,262,598 2,198,614 4,461,212


Net Position, Beginning 31,790,801 59,208,427 90,999,228


Net Position, Ending $ 34,053,399 $ 61,407,041 $ 95,460,440


See notes to financial statements
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City of Stoughton
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
December 31, 2020


General Debt Service


Construction
Capital


Projects


Assets
Cash and investments $ 5,048,583 $ 391,255 $ 2,175,945
Receivables (net):


Taxes 9,521,625 - -
Delinquent personal property taxes 5,585 - -
Accounts 116,292 - 2,950
Accrued interest 5,429 - -
Special assessments - - -
Delinquent special assessments 13,413 - -
Loans - - -


Due from other funds 1,048,188 305,325 -
Advances to other funds 1,046,023 - -
Other investments 257,805 - -
Prepaid items 135,512 - -


Total assets $ 17,198,455 $ 696,580 $ 2,178,895


Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Fund
Balances


Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 235,099 $ - $ 170,644
Accrued liabilities 335,696 - 2,257
Deposits 46,554 - -
Other liabilities - - -
Due to other funds 87,731 - -
Due to other governments 348 - -
Advances from other funds - - -


Total liabilities 705,428 - 172,901


Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unearned revenues 9,462,065 - -
Unavailable revenues - - -


Total deferred inflows of resources 9,462,065 - -


Fund Balances
Nonspendable for prepaid items 135,512 - -
Nonspendable for noncurrent interfunds 1,046,023 - -
Nonspendable for delinquent items 18,998 - -
Nonspendable for other investments 257,805 - -
Restricted - 696,580 -
Committed - - -
Assigned 1,090,151 - 2,005,994
Unassigned (deficit) 4,482,473 - -


Total fund balances (deficit) 7,030,962 696,580 2,005,994


Total liabilities and fund balance $ 17,198,455 $ 696,580 $ 2,178,895


See notes to financial statements
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Nonmajor
Governmental


Funds Total


$ 7,022,694 $ 14,638,477


2,619,233 12,140,858
- 5,585


249,398 368,640
- 5,429


641,630 641,630
- 13,413


207,533 207,533
- 1,353,513
- 1,046,023
- 257,805


68,379 203,891


$ 10,808,867 $ 30,882,797


$ 504,497 $ 910,240
25,746 363,699


- 46,554
258,087 258,087
129,878 217,609


- 348
1,046,023 1,046,023


1,964,231 2,842,560


2,598,619 12,060,684
679,580 679,580


3,278,199 12,740,264


68,379 203,891
- 1,046,023
- 18,998
- 257,805


3,395,463 4,092,043
1,679,536 1,679,536
1,475,478 4,571,623


(1,052,419) 3,430,054


5,566,437 15,299,973


$ 10,808,867 $ 30,882,797


See notes to financial statements
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City of Stoughton
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Net Position
December 31, 2020


Total Fund Balances, Governmental Funds $ 15,299,973


Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Net Position
are Different Because:


Capital assets used in governmental funds are not financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported in the funds. See Note 2. 54,973,284


Land held for resale. 1,125,797


Some receivables that are not currently available are reported as unavailable
revenues in the fund financial statements but are recognized as revenue when
earned in the government-wide statements. 679,580


The net pension asset and liability does not relate to current financial resources and
is not reported in the governmental funds. 177,796


Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions do not relate to current financial
resources and are not reported in the governmental funds. 3,029,971


Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions do not relate to current financial
resources and are not reported in the governmental funds. (4,143,920)


Internal service funds are reported in the statement of net position as governmental
activities. (206,435)


Some liabilities, including long-term debt, are not due and payable in the current
period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. See Note  2. (36,882,647)


Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 34,053,399


See notes to financial statements
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City of Stoughton
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances -
Governmental Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2020


General Debt Service


Construction
Capital


Projects


Revenues
Taxes $ 9,441,021 $ - $ -
Intergovernmental 2,313,838 2,637 -
Licenses and permits 253,821 - -
Fines, forfeitures and penalties 88,178 - -
Public charges for services 485,898 - -
Intergovernmental charges for services 45,665 73,975 -
Special assessments 12,770 - -
Investment income 126,801 1,465 6,984
Miscellaneous revenues 427,855 - -


Total revenues 13,195,847 78,077 6,984


Expenditures
Current:


General government 2,254,231 - -
Public safety 4,193,736 - -
Public works 1,536,944 - -
Culture, recreation and education 1,213,599 - -
Conservation and development - - 36,755


Capital outlay - - 2,023,709
Debt Service:


Principal - 3,708,169 -
Interest and fiscal charges - 1,049,996 38,393


Total expenditures 9,198,510 4,758,165 2,098,857


Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 3,997,337 (4,680,088) (2,091,873)


Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Debt issued - - 1,368,195
Premium on debt - 141,078 11,652
Sales of fixed assets - - 14,904
Transfers in 927,031 4,403,189 300,000
Transfers out (4,696,987) - -


Total other financing sources (uses) (3,769,956) 4,544,267 1,694,751


Net change in fund balances 227,381 (135,821) (397,122)


Fund Balances, Beginning 6,803,581 832,401 2,403,116


Fund Balances, Ending $ 7,030,962 $ 696,580 $ 2,005,994


See notes to financial statements
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Nonmajor
Governmental


Funds Total


$ 1,334,820 $ 10,775,841
571,168 2,887,643


- 253,821
- 88,178


1,041,640 1,527,538
73,858 193,498


229,285 242,055
64,136 199,386


603,400 1,031,255


3,918,307 17,199,215


180,231 2,434,462
11,869 4,205,605


789,114 2,326,058
1,506,082 2,719,681


59,621 96,376
3,909,974 5,933,683


- 3,708,169
17,869 1,106,258


6,474,760 22,530,292


(2,556,453) (5,331,077)


636,805 2,005,000
5,423 158,153


217,604 232,508
1,368,827 6,999,047


(1,443,799) (6,140,786)


784,860 3,253,922


(1,771,593) (2,077,155)


7,338,030 17,377,128


$ 5,566,437 $ 15,299,973


See notes to financial statements
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City of Stoughton
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
 and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Activities
Year Ended December 31, 2020


Net Change in Fund Balances, Total Governmental Funds $ (2,077,155)
  
Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Activities are


Different Because:


Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of net
position the cost of these assets is capitalized and they are depreciated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense in the statement of activities.


Capital outlay is reported as an expenditure in the fund financial statements but is
capitalized in the government-wide financial statements 5,933,683


Some items reported as capital outlay were not capitalized (783,552)
Depreciation is reported in the government-wide financial statements (2,281,083)
Net book value of assets retired (369,664)


Capital assets contributed to business-type activities are reported as capital outlay in the fund
financial statements. (158,028)


Receivables not currently available are reported as revenue when collected or currently
available in the fund financial statements but are recognized as revenue when earned in the
government-wide financial statements.


Special assessments 176,822
Revolving loan 37,950


Debt issued provides current financial resources to governmental funds, but issuing debt
increases long-term liabilities in the statement of net position. Repayment of debt principal
is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities
in the statement of net position.


Debt issued (2,005,000)
Principal repaid 3,708,169


Governmental funds report debt premiums and discounts as other financing sources (uses)
or financing sources or uses. However, in the statement of net position, these are reported
as additions to or deductions from long-term debt. These are allocated over the period the
debt is outstanding in the statement of activities and are reported as interest expense.


Amortization 74,915
Premium on debt issued (158,153)


Some expenses in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in the governmental funds. 


Compensated absences 60,423
Net pension asset/liability 2,378,012
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions (656,082)
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions (1,762,858)
Accrued interest on debt 98,192


Internal service funds are used by management to charge self insurance costs to individual
funds. The change in net position of the internal service fund reported with governmental
activities 46,007


Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 2,262,598


See notes to financial statements
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City of Stoughton
Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Funds
December 31, 2020


Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds


Water Wastewater Electric


Assets
Current assets:


Cash and investments $ 1,249,524 $ 692,624 $ 6,762,610
Receivables (net):


Other receivables 243,355 244,250 1,607,703
Interest receivable 9,605 8,379 13,747
Current portion of special assessments 29,026 19,905 -


Due from other funds 36,744 26,204 73,714
Current portion of advance to other funds - - 48,459
Inventories 41,039 - 443,455
Prepaid items - - 1,000
Restricted assets:


Redemption account - current 303,450 242,432 525,535


Total current assets 1,912,743 1,233,794 9,476,223


Noncurrent assets:
Restricted assets:


Reserve account 340,710 - 460,722
Depreciation account 25,000 33,283 25,000
Equipment replacement - 1,164,904 -
Construction account 110,332 - -
Net pension asset 75,459 72,180 221,736


Capital assets:
Land and land rights 430,131 - 344,364
Construction in progress 11,147 9,793 981,323
Plant in service 24,788,077 32,381,992 34,132,615
Property held for future use - - 229,097
Less Accumulated depreciation (8,169,139) (12,977,468) (17,124,007)


Other assets:
Special assessments 116,103 79,621 -
Other prepaid asset - 41,595 -
Preliminary survey and investigation 22,505 - -
Plant and maintenance reserve account 195,083 - 532,766
Sick leave reserve account 103,078 112,235 150,721
Advance to other funds - - 157,976
Investment in ATC - - 465,248
Nonutility property (net of amortization) 13,518 - -


Total noncurrent assets 18,062,004 20,918,135 20,577,561


Total assets 19,974,747 22,151,929 30,053,784


Deferred Outflows of Resources
Pension related amounts 179,243 183,065 516,144


Total deferred outflows of resources 179,243 183,065 516,144


See notes to financial statements
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Business-Type Activities -
Enterprise Funds


Nonmajor
Enterprise


Funds Total


Governmental
Activities -


Internal
Service Fund


$ 473,423 $ 9,178,181 $ -


464,691 2,559,999 -
- 31,731 -
- 48,931 -


51,717 188,379 -
- 48,459 -
- 484,494 -
- 1,000 -


- 1,071,417 -


989,831 13,612,591 -


- 801,432 -
- 83,283 -
- 1,164,904 -
- 110,332 -


23,504 392,879 -


9,986 784,481 -
- 1,002,263 -


8,155,831 99,458,515 -
- 229,097 -


(1,691,900) (39,962,514) -


- 195,724 -
- 41,595 -
- 22,505 -
- 727,849 -
- 366,034 -
- 157,976 -
- 465,248 -
- 13,518 -


6,497,421 66,055,121 -


7,487,252 79,667,712 -


54,345 932,797 -


54,345 932,797 -


See notes to financial statements
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City of Stoughton
Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Funds
December 31, 2020


Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds


Water Wastewater Electric


Liabilities
Current liabilities:


Accounts payable $ 86,419 $ 62,576 $ 1,502,706
Accrued liabilities 19,256 17,088 92,195
Public benefits - - 21,554
Deposits 1,829 - 107,639
Due to other funds 458,608 20,611 539,739
Current portion of general obligation debt 51,000 34,000 -


Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets
Current portion of revenue bonds 435,751 340,971 670,000
Accrued interest 13,051 15,128 22,482


Total current liabilities 1,065,914 490,374 2,956,315


Noncurrent liabilities:
Long-term debt:


Customer advances for construction 5,000 - 1,344,916
Revenue bonds payable 2,937,456 3,137,294 3,080,000
Unamortized debt premium 61,517 - 63,098
General obligation debt payable 219,000 146,000 -
Compensated absences 103,078 112,235 150,721


Advances from other funds - - -


Total noncurrent liabilities 3,326,051 3,395,529 4,638,735


Total liabilities 4,391,965 3,885,903 7,595,050


Deferred Inflows of Resources
Pension related amounts 233,951 219,560 689,429


Total deferred inflows of resources 233,951 219,560 689,429


Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 13,465,824 15,756,052 14,750,294
Restricted for:


Debt service 656,109 260,587 988,775
Equipment replacement - 1,164,904 -
Pension 75,459 72,180 221,736


Unrestricted (deficit) 1,330,682 975,808 6,324,644


Total net position $ 15,528,074 $ 18,229,531 $ 22,285,449


See notes to financial statements
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Business-Type Activities -
Enterprise Funds


Nonmajor
Enterprise


Funds Totals


Governmental
Activities -


Internal
Service Funds


$ 49,194 $ 1,700,895 $ -
32,858 161,397 -


- 21,554 -
- 109,468 -


305,325 1,324,283 48,459
235,916 320,916 -


- 1,446,722 -
- 50,661 -


623,293 5,135,896 48,459


- 1,349,916 -
- 9,154,750 -
- 124,615 -


1,449,614 1,814,614 -
31,442 397,476 -


- - 157,976


1,481,056 12,841,371 157,976


2,104,349 17,977,267 206,435


73,261 1,216,201 -


73,261 1,216,201 -


4,814,005 48,786,175 -


- 1,905,471 -
- 1,164,904 -


23,504 392,879 -
526,478 9,157,612 (206,435)


$ 5,363,987 $ 61,407,041 $ (206,435)


See notes to financial statements
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City of Stoughton
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Proprietary Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2020


Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds


Water Wastewater Electric


Operating Revenues $ 2,332,630 $ 2,200,458 $ 14,637,461


Operating Expenses
Operation and maintenance 1,083,459 1,046,544 12,366,320
Depreciation 468,240 808,765 1,193,582


Total operating expenses 1,551,699 1,855,309 13,559,902


Operating income 780,931 345,149 1,077,559


Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Investment income 19,079 25,007 131,701
Interest and fiscal charges (86,975) (98,304) (95,662)
Miscellaneous expenses (4,280) - (6,541)
Intergovernmental - - -
Interest subsidy - - -
Amortization of premium 11,579 - 13,188


Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (60,597) (73,297) 42,686


Income (loss) before contributions and transfers 720,334 271,852 1,120,245


Contributions and Transfers
Contributions in aid of construction 21,866 95,923 152,798
Capital contributions - City - - -
Transfers in - - -
Transfers out (437,266) - (445,995)


Total contributions and transfers (415,400) 95,923 (293,197)


Change in net position 304,934 367,775 827,048


Net Position (Deficit), Beginning 15,223,140 17,861,756 21,458,401


Net Position (Deficit), Ending $ 15,528,074 $ 18,229,531 $ 22,285,449


See notes to financial statements
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Business-Type Activities -
Enterprise Funds


Nonmajor
Enterprise


Funds Total


Governmental
Activities -


Internal
Service Fund


$ 1,475,501 $ 20,646,050 $ 53,580


915,503 15,411,826 -
301,517 2,772,104 -


1,217,020 18,183,930 -


258,481 2,462,120 53,580


2,533 178,320 -
(45,260) (326,201) (7,573)


- (10,821) -
38,026 38,026 -
1,420 1,420 -


- 24,767 -


(3,281) (94,489) (7,573)


255,200 2,367,631 46,007


260,640 531,227 -
158,017 158,017 -
25,000 25,000 -


- (883,261) -


443,657 (169,017) -


698,857 2,198,614 46,007


4,665,130 59,208,427 (252,442)


$ 5,363,987 $ 61,407,041 $ (206,435)


See notes to financial statements
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City of Stoughton
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2020


Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds


Water Wastewater Electric


Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Received from customers $ 2,350,648 $ 2,182,857 $ 14,407,267
Received from municipality for services - - -
Received for street lighting - - 90,036
Paid to suppliers for goods and services (711,644) (642,685) (11,070,176)
Paid to employees for services (393,911) (387,225) (781,167)


Net cash flows from operating activities 1,245,093 1,152,947 2,645,960


Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Investments sold and matured 430,148 466,778 918,960
Investment income 19,725 36,405 66,433
Investments purchased (199,503) (204,171) (248,535)
Dividends from ATC - - (7,571)


Net cash flows from investing activities 250,370 299,012 729,287


Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities
Paid to municipality for tax equivalent (431,034) - (452,940)
Received from municipality principal on Wisconsin Retirement UAAL


advance - - 46,007
Received from municipality interest on Wisconsin Retirement UAAL


advance - - 7,573
Transfers to/from other funds - - -
Paid to utilities principal on Wisconsin Retirement UAAL advance - - -
Paid to utilities interest on Wisconsin Retirement UAAL advance - - -
Repayment of due to other funds - - -


Net cash flows from noncapital financing activities (431,034) - (399,360)


Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities
Debt issued - - -
Debt retired (490,951) (439,677) (660,000)
Interest paid (86,571) (100,296) (99,083)
Special assessments received 29,026 19,905 -
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (626,559) (920,301) (1,767,798)
Capital contributions received 5,156 - 102,236
Customer advances for construction received - - 1,317,500


Net cash flows from capital and related financing activities (1,169,899) (1,440,369) (1,107,145)


Net change in cash and cash equivalents (105,470) 11,590 1,868,742


Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning 2,215,753 1,653,586 4,493,683


Cash and Cash Equivalents, Ending $ 2,110,283 $ 1,665,176 $ 6,362,425


See notes to financial statements
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Business-Type Activities -
Enterprise Funds


Nonmajor
Enterprise


Funds Total


Governmental
Activities -


Internal
Service Fund


$ 1,444,655 $ 20,385,427 $ -
- - 53,580
- 90,036 -


(532,806) (12,957,311) -
(493,519) (2,055,822) -


418,330 5,462,330 53,580


- 1,815,886 -
2,533 125,096 -


- (652,209) -
- (7,571) -


2,533 1,281,202 -


- (883,974) -


- 46,007 -


- 7,573 -
25,000 25,000 -


- - (46,008)
- - (7,572)


(1,420) (1,420) -


23,580 (806,814) (53,580)


410,000 410,000 -
(351,562) (1,942,190) -
(48,643) (334,593) -


- 48,931 -
(804,848) (4,119,506) -


- 107,392 -
- 1,317,500 -


(795,053) (4,512,466) -


(350,610) 1,424,252 -


824,033 9,187,055 -


$ 473,423 $ 10,611,307 $ -


See notes to financial statements
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City of Stoughton
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2020


Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds


Water Wastewater Electric


Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash Flows From
Operating Activities


Operating income $ 780,931 $ 345,149 $ 1,077,559
Nonoperating revenue (expense) - - (3,227)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash flows from


operating activities:
Depreciation 468,240 808,765 1,193,582
Depreciation charged to other funds 32,742 - 65,333


Changes in assets, deferred outflows of resources and liabilities and
deferred inflows of resources:


Customer accounts receivable 6,165 (24,716) (188,166)
Other accounts receivable (8,351) 12,019 124,188
Due from other funds (6,207) (4,904) (59,620)
Due to other funds (77,570) (998) 44,138
Inventories (1,440) - (256,244)
Prepaid items 7,184 6,656 13,404
Accounts payable 18,854 (10,659) 620,867
Accrued wages 5,002 - -
Compensated absences 17,516 14,893 5,508
Customer deposits 1,829 - (13,333)
Other current liabilities - 2,822 10,352
Commitment to community - - 409
Pension related deferrals and liabilities 198 (7,964) 11,210
Other prepaid asset - 11,884 -


Net cash flows from operating activities $ 1,245,093 $ 1,152,947 $ 2,645,960


Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents to the Statement of
Net Position, Proprietary Funds


Cash and investments $ 1,249,524 $ 692,624 $ 6,762,610
Restricted cash and investments


Redemption account 303,450 242,432 525,535
Reserve account 340,710 - 460,722
Depreciation account 25,000 33,283 25,000
Construction account 110,332 - -


Plant and maintenance reserve account 195,083 - 532,766
Sick leave reserve account 103,078 112,235 150,721
Replacement account - 1,164,904 -


Total cash and investments 2,327,177 2,245,478 8,457,354


Less noncash equivalents (216,894) (580,302) (2,094,929)


Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,110,283 $ 1,665,176 $ 6,362,425


Noncash Capital and Related Financing Activities
Unrealized gain (loss) on investments $ (902) $ (4,172) $ 47,623


Contributed capital assets $ 21,866 $ 95,923 $ 7,527


ATC earnings allocated $ - $ - $ 11,885


See notes to financial statements
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Business-Type Activities -
Enterprise Funds


Nonmajor
Enterprise


Funds Total


Governmental
Activities -


Internal
Service Fund


$ 258,481 $ 2,462,120 $ 53,580
39,446 36,219 -


301,517 2,772,104 -
- 98,075 -


3,852 (202,865) -
(69,629) 58,227 -
(4,515) (75,246) -


- (34,430) -
- (257,684) -
- 27,244 -


(108,490) 520,572 -
3,397 8,399 -


(6,501) 31,416 -
- (11,504) -
- 13,174 -
- 409 -


772 4,216 -
- 11,884 -


$ 418,330 $ 5,462,330 $ 53,580


$ 473,423 $ 9,178,181 $ -
-


- 1,071,417 -
- 801,432 -
- 83,283 -
- 110,332 -
- 727,849 -
- 366,034 -
- 1,164,904 -


473,423 13,503,432 -


- (2,892,125) -


$ 473,423 $ 10,611,307 $ -


$ - $ -


$ 158,017 $ -


$ - $ -


See notes to financial statements
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City of Stoughton
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Fund
December 31, 2020


Custodial
Fund


Assets
Cash and Investments $ 10,132,132


Tax roll receivable 6,807,186


Total assets 16,939,318


Liabilities
Due to other taxing units 16,939,318


Total liabilities 16,939,318


Net Position


Total net position $ -


See notes to financial statements
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City of Stoughton
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Fund
Year Ended December 31, 2020


Custodial
Fund


Additions
Property taxes collected for other governments $ 4,367,403


Total additions 4,367,403


Deductions
Property taxes distributed to other governments 4,367,403


Total deductions 4,367,403


Change in fiduciary net position -


Net Position, Beginning -


Net Position, Ending $ -


See notes to financial statements
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City of Stoughton
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2020


1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies


The accounting policies of the City of Stoughton (City), Wisconsin conform to accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America as applicable to governmental units. The accepted
standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles is the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).


Reporting Entity


This report includes all of the funds of the City. The reporting entity for the City consists of the primary
government and its component unit. Component units are legally separate organizations for which the
primary government is financially accountable or other organizations for which the nature and
significance of their relationship with the primary government are such that their exclusion would cause
the reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading. The primary government is financially
accountable if (1) it appoints a voting majority of the organization's governing body and it is able to
impose its will on that organization, (2) it appoints a voting majority of the organization's governing body
and there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific
financial burdens on, the primary government, (3) the organization is fiscally dependent on and there is
a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial
burdens on, the primary government. Certain legally separate, tax exempt organizations should also be
reported as a component unit if all of the following criteria are met: (1) the economic resources
received or held by the separate organization are entirely or almost entirely for the direct benefit of the
primary government, its component units or its constituents; (2) the primary government or its
component units, is entitled to, or has the ability to access, a majority of the economic resources
received or held by the separate organization; and (3) the economic resources received or held by an
individual organization that the primary government, or its component units, is entitled to, or has the
ability to otherwise access, are significant to the primary government.


Component units are reported using one of three methods, discrete presentation, blended or fiduciary.
Generally, component units should be discretely presented in a separate column in the financial
statements. A component unit should be reported as part of the primary government using the blending
method if it meets any one of the following criteria: (1) the primary government and the component unit
have substantively the same governing body and a financial benefit or burden relationship exists,
(2) the primary government and the component unit have substantively the same governing body and
management of the primary government has operational responsibility for the component unit, (3) the
component unit serves or benefits, exclusively or almost exclusively, the primary government rather
than its citizens or (4) the total debt of the component unit will be paid entirely or almost entirely from
resources of the primary government.


Blended Component Units


The Stoughton Redevelopment Authority (RDA) serves all the citizens of the government and is
governed by a board of seven Commissioners. The rates for user charges and bond issuance
authorizations are approved by the government's council and the government is legally obligated to
provide resources in case there are deficiencies in debt service payments and resources are not
available from other remedies. The Authority is reported as a special revenue fund. The Authority
does not issue separate financial statements.  
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City of Stoughton
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2020


Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 


Government-Wide Financial Statements


The statement of net position and statement of activities display information about the reporting
government as a whole. They include all funds of the reporting entity except for fiduciary funds.
The statements distinguish between governmental and business-type activities. Governmental
activities generally are financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues and other
nonexchange revenues. Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to
external parties for goods or services. Likewise, the primary government is reported separately
from certain legally separate component units for which the primary government is financially
accountable.


The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function or segment. The City does not allocate indirect expenses to
functions in the statement of activities. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or
applicants who purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services or privileges provided by a
given function or segment, and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not
included among program revenues are reported as general revenues. Internally dedicated
resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues.


Fund Financial Statements


Financial statements of the City are organized into funds, each of which is considered to be
a separate accounting entity. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of 
self-balancing accounts, which constitute its assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities,
deferred inflows of resources, net position/fund balance, revenues and expenditures/expenses. 


Funds are organized as major funds or nonmajor funds within the governmental and proprietary
statements. An emphasis is placed on major funds within the governmental and proprietary
categories. A fund is considered major if it is the primary operating fund of the City or meets the
following criteria:


a. Total assets/deferred outflows of resources, liabilities/deferred inflows of resources,
revenues or expenditures/expenses of that individual governmental or enterprise fund are
at least 10 percent of the corresponding total for all funds of that category or type, and 


b. The same element of the individual governmental or enterprise fund that met the
10 percent test is at least 5 percent of the corresponding total for all governmental and
enterprise funds combined.


c. In addition, any other governmental or enterprise fund that the City believes is particularly
important to financial statement users may be reported as a major fund.


Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary
funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major
individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate
columns in the fund financial statements.


The City reports the following major governmental funds:


General Fund


General Fund accounts for the City's primary operating activities. It is used to account for and
report all financial resources except those accounted for and reported in another fund.
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City of Stoughton
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2020


Debt Service Fund


Debt Service Fund is used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted,
committed or assigned to expenditure for the payment of general long-term debt principal,
interest and related costs, other than TID or enterprise debt.


Capital Projects Fund


Construction Capital Project Fund is used to account for and report financial resources that are
restricted, committed, or assigned to expenditures for capital outlays, including the acquisition
or construction of capital facilities and other capital assets.


Enterprise Funds


The City reports the following major enterprise funds:


Water Utility accounts for operations of the water system


Wastewater Utility accounts for operations of the wastewater system


Electric Utility accounts for operations of the electric system


The City reports the following nonmajor governmental and enterprise funds:


Special Revenue Funds


Special Revenue Funds are used to account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue
sources that are restricted or committed to expenditures for specified purposes (other than
debt service or capital projects).


Library Food Pantry
Ambulance Landmarks
Opera House Fire Department Special
Opera House Repair Senior Center Wood Shop
Township Outreach Senior Center Special
Tourism Economic Development
Seniors in Need Redevelopment Authority
CDBG Special Assessments
Cemetery K9 Unit
Revolving loan fund Tree Commission
Firemen's Pension Fund Refuse fund


Capital Projects Funds


Capital Projects Funds are used to account for and report financial resources that are
restricted, committed or assigned to expenditure for capital outlays, including the acquisition or
construction of capital facilities and other capital assets.


Fire Equipment TIF District No. 3
Park Acquisition TIF District No. 4
Equipment Replacement TIF District No. 5
Building Maintenance TIF District No. 6
Outlay TIF District No. 7
Technology TIF District No. 8
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City of Stoughton
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2020


Enterprise Funds


Enterprise Funds are used to account for and report any activity for which a fee is charged to
external uses for goods or services, and must be used for activities which meet certain debt or
cost recovery criteria.


EMS Storm Sewer


In addition, the City reports the following fund types:


Internal Service Funds


Internal Service Fund are used to account for and report the financing of goods or services
provided by one department or agency to other departments or agencies of the City, or to other
governmental units, on a cost-reimbursement basis.


Retirement fund


Custodial Funds


Custodial Fund are used to account for and report assets controlled by the City and the assets
are for the benefit of individuals, private organizations and/or other governmental units.


Tax Collections Fund


Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation 


Government-Wide Financial Statements


The government-wide statement of net position and statement of activities are reported using the
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual
basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recorded when the
liability is incurred or economic asset used. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets and
liabilities resulting from exchange and exchange-like transactions are recognized when the
exchange takes place. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are
levied. Taxes receivable for the following year are recorded as receivables and deferred inflows.
Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed
by the provider are met. Special assessments are recorded as revenue when earned. Unbilled
receivables are recorded as revenues when services are provided.


As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the City's water,
wastewater, and electric utilities and various other functions of the government. Elimination of
these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various
functions concerned.


Fund Financial Statements 


Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when
they are both measurable and available. Available means collectible within the current period or
soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the City
considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current
fiscal period. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for
unmatured interest on long-term debt, claims, judgments, compensated absences and pension
expenditures, which are recorded as a fund liability when expected to be paid with expendable
available financial resources.
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City of Stoughton
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2020


Property taxes are recorded in the year levied as receivables and deferred inflows. They are
recognized as revenues in the succeeding year when services financed by the levy are being
provided.


Intergovernmental aids and grants are recognized as revenues in the period the City is entitled the
resources and the amounts are available. Amounts owed to the City which are not available are
recorded as receivables and unavailable revenues. Amounts received before eligibility
requirements (excluding time requirements) are met are recorded as liabilities. Amounts received
in advance of meeting time requirements are recorded as deferred inflows.


Special assessments are recorded as revenues when they become measurable and available as
current assets. Annual installments due in future years are reflected as receivables and
unavailable revenues. Delinquent special assessments being held by the County are reported as
receivables and unavailable revenues.


Revenues susceptible to accrual include property taxes, miscellaneous taxes, public charges for
services, special assessments and interest. Other general revenues such as fines and forfeitures,
inspection fees, recreation fees and miscellaneous revenues are recognized when received in
cash or when measurable and available under the criteria described above. 


Proprietary and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as described previously in this note. 


The proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal
operating revenues of the water, wastewater, storm sewer, electric utility funds and EMS fund are
charges to customers for sales and services. Special assessments are recorded as receivables
and contribution revenue when levied. Operating expenses for proprietary funds include the cost of
sales and services, administrative expenses and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.


All Financial Statements


The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenditures/expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.


Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net
Position or Equity


Deposits and Investments


For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the City considers all highly liquid investments with an
initial maturity of three months or less when acquired to be cash equivalents.


Investment of City funds is restricted by Wisconsin state statutes. Available investments are limited
to:


a. Time deposits in any credit union, bank, savings bank or trust company. 
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City of Stoughton
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2020


b. Bonds or securities of any county, city, drainage district, technical college district, village,
town or school district of the state. Also, bonds issued by a local exposition district, a local
professional baseball park district, a local professional football stadium district, a local
cultural arts district, the University of Wisconsin Hospitals and Clinics Authority or the
Wisconsin Aerospace Authority.


c. Bonds or securities issued or guaranteed by the federal government.


d. The local government investment pool.


e. Any security maturing in seven years or less and having the highest or second highest
rating category of a nationally recognized rating agency.


f. Securities of an open-end management investment company or investment trust, subject to
various conditions and investment options.


g. Repurchase agreements with public depositories, with certain conditions.


The City has adopted an investment policy. That policy follows the state statute for allowable
investments, and does not address the risks disclosed in Note 4.


Investments are stated at fair value, which is the amount at which an investment could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties. Fair values are based on methods and
inputs as outlined in Note 4. No investments are reported at amortized cost. Adjustments
necessary to record investments at fair value are recorded in the operating statement as increases
or decreases in investment income. Investment income on commingled investments of municipal
accounting funds is allocated based on average balances. The difference between the bank
statement balance and carrying value is due to outstanding checks and/or deposits in transit.


The Wisconsin Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) is part of the State Investment Fund
(SIF) and is managed by the State of Wisconsin Investment Board. The SIF is not registered with
the Securities and Exchange Commission, but operates under the statutory authority of Wisconsin
Chapter 25. The SIF reports the fair value of its underlying assets annually. Participants in the
LGIP have the right to withdraw their funds in total on one day's notice. At December 31, 2020, the
fair value of the City 's share of the LGIP's assets was substantially equal to the amount as
reported in these statements.


PMA Financial Network, Inc. is the administrator for the Wisconsin Investment Series Cooperative
(WISC). The investment manager for WISC is PMA Financial Network, Inc. The WISC is not
registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission, but does operate in a manner consistent
with Rule 2a7 of the Investment Company Act of 1940. Investments in WISC are valued at WISC’s
share price, the price for which the investments could be sold. At December 31, 2020 the City's
share of the WISC's assets was substantially equal to the amount reported in these statements.


See Note 4. for further information. 


Receivables  


Property taxes are levied in December on the assessed value as of the prior January 1. In addition
to property taxes for the City, taxes are collected for and remitted to the state and county
governments as well as the local school district and technical college district. Taxes for all state
and local governmental units billed in the current year for the succeeding year are reflected as
receivables and due to other taxing units on the accompanying statement of fiduciary net position.
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City of Stoughton
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2020


Property tax calendar - 2020 tax roll:


Lien date and levy date December 2020
Tax bills mailed December 2020
Payment in full, or January 31, 2021
First installment due January 31, 2021
Second installment due July 31, 2021
Personal property taxes in full January 31, 2021
Tax sale - 2020 delinquent real estate taxes October 2023


Accounts receivable have been shown net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts. Delinquent
real estate taxes as of July 31 are paid in full by the County, which assumes the collection thereof. 
No provision for uncollectible accounts receivable has been made for the water, wastewater, and
electric utilities because they have the right by law to place substantially all delinquent bills on the
tax roll and other delinquent bills are generally not significant. 


During the course of operations, transactions occur between individual funds that may result in
amounts owed between funds. Short-term interfund loans are reported as due to and from other
funds. Long-term interfund loans (noncurrent portion) are reported as advances from and to other
funds. Interfund receivables and payables between funds within governmental activities are
eliminated in the statement of net position. Any residual balances outstanding between the
governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the governmental-wide financial
statements as internal balances.


In the governmental fund financial statements, advances to other funds are offset equally by a
nonspendable fund balance account which indicates that they do not constitute expendable
available financial resources and, therefore, are not available for appropriation or by a restricted
fund balance account, if the funds will ultimately be restricted when the advance is repaid.


It is the City's policy to record receivable when the initial loan is made. Interest received from loan
repayments is recognized as revenue when received in cash. Any unspent loan repayments at
year end are presented as committed fund balance in the fund financial statements.


Inventories and Prepaid Items  


Governmental fund inventory items are charged to expenditure accounts when purchased. Year-
end inventory was not significant. Proprietary fund inventories are generally used for construction
and/or for operation and maintenance work. They are not for resale.   They are valued at cost
based on weighted average and charged to construction and/or operation and maintenance
expense when used.


Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded
as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements.


Restricted Assets  


Mandatory segregations of assets are presented as restricted assets. Such segregations are
required by bond agreements and other external parties. Current liabilities payable from these
restricted assets are so classified. The excess of restricted assets over current liabilities payable
from restricted assets will be used first for retirement of related long-term debt. The remainder, if
generated from earnings, is shown as restricted net position.
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City of Stoughton
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2020


Capital Assets  


Government-Wide Statements


Capital assets, which include property, plant and equipment, are reported in the government-
wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an
initial cost of more than $5,000 for general capital assets and $15,000 for infrastructure assets
and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. All capital assets are valued at historical
cost or estimated historical cost if actual amounts are unavailable. Donated capital assets are
recorded at their estimated acquisition value at the date of donation. 


Additions to and replacements of capital assets of business-type activities are recorded at
original cost, which includes material, labor, overhead and an allowance for the cost of funds
used during construction when significant. For tax-exempt debt, the amount of interest
capitalized equals the interest expense incurred during construction netted against any interest
revenue from temporary investment of borrowed fund proceeds. The cost of renewals and
betterments relating to retirement units is added to plant accounts. The cost of property
replaced, retired or otherwise disposed of, is deducted from plant accounts and, generally,
together with removal costs less salvage, is charged to accumulated depreciation.


Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets is recorded as an allocated expense in the
statement of activities, with accumulated depreciation reflected in the statement of net position.
Depreciation is provided over the assets' estimated useful lives using the straight-line method.
The range of estimated useful lives by type of asset is as follows:


Buildings 15-75 Years
Land Improvements 15-30 Years
Machinery and Equipment 3-15 Years
Utility System 5-100 Years
Infrastructure 30-75 Years


Fund Financial Statements


In the fund financial statements, capital assets used in governmental fund operations are
accounted for as capital outlay expenditures of the governmental fund upon acquisition.
Capital assets used in proprietary fund operations are accounted for the same way as in the
government-wide statements.


Land Held for Resale


Land held for resale consists of land and improvements and is valued at cost of acquisition,
demolition, and site improvement.


Other Assets  


These accounts include costs related to the utility's investment in American Transmission
Company (ATC) and nonutility property.


The electric utility is a member of ATC. ATC was formed by approximately 25 utilities to plan,
construct, maintain, monitor and own electric transmission facilities in Wisconsin. The utility owns
less than 1/2 of 1 percent of ATC. The investment earns dividends quarterly, some of which is paid
in cash and some of which is required to be reinvested. From time to time, the utility has the option
to contribute additional funds to maintain their proportionate share of ownership. The asset is
valued at net asset value per share which is equal to original cost plus additional contributions and
reinvested dividends and approximates fair value.
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The water and electric utilities have plant and maintenance reserve accounts.  Monthly deposits
are made into this account and made available for routine capital projects and other large
operating expenses.


The water, wastewater, and electric utilities have sick leave reserve accounts. Upon retirement,
these funds are used for insurance coverage for utility employees.


Nonutility Property


Water utility non-utility property consists of a park shelter with a balance of $107,000 at
December 31, 2020. The cost is being amortized on a straight-line basis over its useful life.


Deferred Outflows of Resources 


A deferred outflow of resources represents a consumption of net position/fund balance that applies
to a future period and will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until
that future time.


Compensated Absences  


Under terms of employment, employees are granted sick leave and vacations in varying amounts.
Only benefits considered to be vested are disclosed in these statements. 


All vested vacation and sick leave pay is accrued when incurred in the government-wide  and
proprietary fund financial statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in governmental
funds only if they have matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements,
and are payable with expendable resources. 


Payments for vacation and sick leave will be made at rates in effect when the benefits are used.
Accumulated vacation and sick leave balances at December 31, 2020 are determined on the basis
of current salary rates and include salary related payments.


The City provides post-employment health insurance benefits for all eligible employees who chose
to convert accumulated sick leave benefits to post-employment health insurance. The benefits are
based on contractual agreements with employee groups, local ordinances, or employee benefit
policies.  Employees may convert 100% of accumulated sick leave to pay for health care
premiums. The cost of those premiums is recognized as an expenditure as the premiums are paid.
The entire cost is paid by the City. Funding for those costs is provided out of the general fund.
Total expenditures for premiums during the year were $127,596. Four participants were eligible
during 2020 to receive benefits. There is no amount outstanding at year-end to be paid in the
future. The City does not incur an implicit rate subsidy on these benefits.


Long-Term Obligations   


All long-term obligations to be repaid from governmental and business-type resources are reported
as liabilities in the government-wide statements. The long-term obligations consist primarily of
notes and bonds payable and accrued compensated absences.


Long-term obligations for governmental funds are not reported as liabilities in the fund financial
statements. The face value of debts (plus any premiums) are reported as other financing sources
and payments of principal and interest are reported as expenditures. The accounting in proprietary
funds is the same as it is in the government-wide statements.


For the government-wide statements and proprietary fund statements, bond premiums and
discounts are amortized over the life of the issue using the straight-line method. The balance at
year end is shown as an increase or decrease in the liability section of the statement of net
position.
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The City has a debt policy to maintain total outstanding general obligation debt of 4 percent or less
of the equalized value of taxable property within the City's jurisdiction. The City's total outstanding
general obligation debt was at 2.89 percent.


Deferred Inflows of Resources  


A deferred inflow of resources represents an acquisition of net position/fund balance that applies to
a future period and therefore will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that
future time.


Equity Classifications  


Government-Wide Statements


Equity is classified as net position and displayed in three components:


a. Net investment in capital assets - Consists of capital assets including restricted capital
assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances
(excluding unspent debt proceeds) of any bonds, mortgages, notes or other
borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of
those assets.


b. Restricted net position - Consists of net position with constraints placed on their use
either by 1) external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors or laws or
regulations of other governments or, 2) law through constitutional provisions or
enabling legislation.


c. Unrestricted net position - All other net positions that do not meet the definitions of
restricted or net investment in capital assets.


The net position section includes an adjustment for capital assets owned by the business-type
activities column, but financed by the debt of the governmental activities column. The amount
is a reduction of net investment in capital assets and an increase in unrestricted net position,
shown only in the total column. A reconciliation of this adjustment is as follows:


Governmental
Activities


Business-Type
Activities Adjustment Total


Net investment in capital assets $ 22,184,250 $ 48,786,175 $ (232,130) $ 70,738,295
Unrestricted 7,245,704 9,157,612 232,130 16,635,446


When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City's policy to
use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.


Fund Statements


Governmental fund balances are displayed as follows:


a.  Nonspendable - Includes fund balance amounts that cannot be spent either because
they are not in spendable form or because legal or contractual requirements require
them to be maintained intact.


b.  Restricted - Consists of fund balances with constraints placed on their use either by
1) external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors or laws or regulations of
other governments or 2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.
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c.  Committed - Includes fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific purposes
that are internally imposed by the government through formal action of the highest
level of decision making authority. Fund balance amounts are committed through a
formal action (resolution) of the City Council. This formal action must occur prior to the
end of the reporting period, but the amount of the commitment, which will be subject to
the constraints, may be determined in the subsequent period. Any changes to the
constraints imposed require the same formal action of the City Council that originally
created the commitment.


d.  Assigned - Includes spendable fund balance amounts that are intended to be used for
specific purposes that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or
committed. The City Council has, by resolution, adopted a financial policy authorizing
the finance director to assign amounts for a specific purpose. Assignments may take
place after the end of the reporting period.


e.  Unassigned - Includes residual positive fund balance within the general fund which
has not been classified within the other above mentioned categories. Unassigned fund
balance may also include negative balances for any governmental fund if expenditures
exceed amounts restricted, committed or assigned for those purposes.


Proprietary fund equity is classified the same as in the government-wide statements.


The City considers restricted amounts to be spent first when both restricted and unrestricted
fund balance is available unless there are legal documents / contracts that prohibit doing this,
such as in grant agreements requiring dollar for dollar spending. Additionally, the City would
first use committed, then assigned, and lastly unassigned amounts of unrestricted fund
balance when expenditures are made.


The City has a formal minimum fund balance policy. That policy is to maintain an unassigned
general fund balance within a range of 20% to 25% of general fund annual budgeted
expenditures. The unassigned general fund balance at year end was $4,251,818 or 30.13% of
2020 general fund budgeted expenditures. The unassigned balance for this calculation
includes deficit fund balances for Opera House ($228,519), and Landmarks ($2,136).


See Note 4. for further information.


Pension  


For purposes of measuring the net pension (asset) liability, deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions and pension expense, information about the
fiduciary net position of the Wisconsin Retirement System (WRS) and additions to/deductions from
WRS' fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by
WRS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported
at fair value.


Basis for Existing Rates  


  Example Utility Fund


Current water rates were approved by the PSCW effective October 1, 2018.


Current electric rates were approved by the PSCW on July 1, 2020.


Current wastewater rates were approved by the utilities committee effective June 1, 2020.
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2. Reconciliation of Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 


Explanation of Certain Differences Between the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and the
Statement of Net Position 


The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance, total
governmental funds and net position, governmental activities as reported in the government-wide
statement of net position. The details of this reconciliation include the following items.


Capital assets used in governmental funds are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported
in the funds.


Capital assets not being depreciated $ 10,961,836
Capital assets, net of depreciation 44,011,448


Combined adjustment for capital assets $ 54,973,284


Long-term liabilities applicable to the City's governmental activities are not due and payable in the
current period, and accordingly, are not reported as fund liabilities. Interest on long-term debt is not
accrued in governmental funds, but rather is recognized as an expenditure when due. All liabilities-both
current and long-term-are reported in the statement of net position.


Bonds and notes payable $ 34,544,683
Compensated absences 1,190,077
Accrued interest 318,338
Unamortized premium on debt 829,549


Combined adjustment for long-term
liabilities $ 36,882,647


3. Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability  


Budgetary Information


A budget has been adopted for the all funds except Fire Equipment Fund. A budget has not been
formally adopted for any other funds. Wisconsin Statute 65.90 requires that an annual budget be
adopted for all funds.


Excess Expenditures and Other Financing Uses Over Appropriations  


Funds
Budgeted


Expenditures
Actual


Expenditures


Excess
Expenditures
Over Budget


Construction Capital Projects $ 1,980,552 $ 2,098,857 $ 118,305
Township Outreach 7,750 7,922 172
Redevelopment Authority 8,950 19,172 10,222
Cemetery 200 4,089 3,889
Revolving Loan 4,000 6,000 2,000
TIF District No. 6 74,138 818,500 744,362
TIF District No. 7 338,975 344,425 5,450
Outlay 946,000 1,545,082 599,082


The City controls expenditures at the object level. Some individual line items experienced expenditures
which exceeded appropriations. The detail of those items can be found in the City's year-end budget to
actual report.
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Deficit Balances  


Generally accepted accounting principles require disclosure of individual funds that have deficit
balances at year end.


As of December 31, 2020, the following individual funds held a deficit balance:


Fund Amount Reason


Special revenue - Opera House $ 228,519 Expenditures in excess of revenues
Special revenue -  Landmarks 2,136 Expenditures in excess of revenues
Capital projects - TIF District No. 5 690,566 Expenditures in excess of revenues
Capital projects - TIF District No. 8 62,819 Expenditures in excess of revenues


TIF district deficits are anticipated to be funded with future incremental taxes levied over the life of the
districts, which is 27 years for the districts created before October 1, 1995, and 23 years for districts
created thereafter through September 30, 2004. Beginning October 1, 2004, the life of new districts
varies by type of district (20-27 years) and may be extended in some cases. Other fund deficits are
anticipated to be funded with future contributions, general tax revenues, or long-term borrowing.


Limitations on the City'S Tax Levy  


Wisconsin law limits the City's future tax levies. Generally the City is limited to its prior tax levy dollar
amount (excluding TIF Districts), increased by the greater of the percentage change in the City's
equalized value due to new construction or zero percent. Changes in debt service from one year to the
next are generally exempt from this limit with certain exceptions. The City is required to reduce its
allowable levy by the estimated amount of fee revenue it collects for certain services, if those services
were funded in 2013 by the property tax levy. Levies can be increased above the allowable limits if the
amount is approved by referendum.
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4. Detailed Notes on All Funds 


Deposits and Investments 


The City's deposits and investments at year end were comprised of the following:


Carrying
Value


Statement
Balances Associated Risks


Deposits $ 8,456,239 $ 8,834,909 Custodial credit
U.S. agencies - explicitly guaranteed 93,520 93,520 Custodial credit, interest


rate
U.S. agencies - implicitly guaranteed 128,220 128,220 Credit, custodial credit,


concentration of credit,
interest rate


LGIP 1,486,906 1,506,540 Credit
Certificates of deposit - non-negotiable 1,306,605 1,306,605 Custodial credit
State and local bonds 1,298,314 1,298,314 Credit, custodial credit,


concentration of credit,
interest rate


Wisconsin Investment Series Cooperative 20,790,019 21,011,285 Credit
Mutual funds - other than bonds 55,967 55,967 N/A
Certificates of deposit - negotiable 2,095,105 2,095,105 Credit, custodial credit,


concentration of credit,
interest rate


Cash on hand 2,563,146 - N/A


Total deposits and investments $ 38,274,041 $ 36,330,465


Reconciliation to financial statements


Per statement of net position
Unrestricted cash and investments $ 24,910,541
Restricted cash and investments 3,231,368


Per statement of net position - fiduciary
fund


Custodial Fund 10,132,132


Total deposits and investments $ 38,274,041


Deposits in each local and area bank are insured by the FDIC in the amount of $250,000 for time and
savings accounts (including NOW accounts) and $250,000 for demand deposit accounts (interest-
bearing and noninterest-bearing). In addition, if deposits are held in an institution outside of the state in
which the government is located, insured amounts are further limited to a total of $250,000 for the
combined amount of all deposit accounts.Deposits in the credit union are insured by the National
Credit Union Administration in the amount of $250,000 for all share draft accounts and $250,000 for all
share certificate and regular share accounts.


Bank accounts and credit unions are also insured by the State Deposit Guarantee Fund in the amount
of $400,000. However, due to the nature of this fund, recovery of material principal losses may not be
significant to individual municipalities. This coverage has not been considered in computing custodial
credit risk.


The Securities Investor Protection Corporation (SIPC), created by the Securities Investor Protection
Act of 1970, is an independent government-sponsored corporation (not an agency of the U.S.
government).
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SIPC membership provides account protection up to a maximum of $500,000 per customer, of which
$100,000 may be in cash. $500,000 of the City's investments are covered by SIPC. 


The City maintains collateral agreements with its banks. At December 31, 2020, the banks had
pledged various government securities in the amount of $7,322,659 to secure the City's deposits.


The City categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by
generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to
measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant
unobservable inputs.


The valuation methods for recurring fair value measurements are as follows:


 Market approach


December 31, 2020
Investment Type Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total


U.S. agencies $ - $ 221,740 $ - $ 221,740
State and local bonds - 1,298,314 - 1,298,314
Certificates of deposit - negotiable - 2,095,105 - 2,095,105


Total $ - $ 3,615,159 $ - $ 3,615,159


Custodial Credit Risk 


Deposits


Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a financial institution failure, the City's
deposits may not be returned to the City.


As of December 31, 2020, $1,025,317 of the City's total bank balances were exposed to
custodial credit risk as follows:


Uninsured and uncollateralized $ 1,025,317


Total $ 1,025,317


Investments


For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty, the City will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party.


U.S. Agencies


Neither insured nor registered and held by counterparty $ 221,740


State and Local Bonds


Neither insured nor registered and held by counterparty $ 1,022,795


Certificates of Deposit - Negotiable


Neither insured nor registered and held by counterparty $ 888,668
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Credit Risk 


Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its
obligations.


As of December 31, 2020, the City's investments were rated as follows:


Investment Type
Standard &


Poors


Moody's
Investors
Services


U.S. Agencies implicitly guaranteed AAA Aaa
Certificates of deposit - negotiable AAA-A+ Aa1
State and local bonds AA Aa1
Wisconsin Investment Series


Cooperative AAAm


The City also held investments in the following external pool which is not rated:


Local Government Investment Pool


There are also negotiable certificates of deposit in the amount of $1,206,437 that are not rated.


Interest Rate Risk


Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the value of an
investment.


As of December 31, 2020, the City's investments were as follows:


Maturity (In Years)
Investment Type Fair Value Less than 1 1-3 3 or more


U.S. agencies explicitly guaranteed $ 93,520 $ - $ - $ 93,520
U.S. agencies implicitly guaranteed 128,220 - - 128,220
State and local bonds 1,298,314 - 1,298,314 -
Certificates of deposit - negotiable 2,095,105 1,071,560 1,023,545 -


Total $ 3,615,159 $ 1,071,560 $ 2,321,859 $ 221,740


See Note 1. for further information on deposit and investment policies.


Receivables  


All receivables, except $18,998 in general fund, $116,103 in water utility, $79,621 in wastewater utility
and $849,163 in nonmajor funds are expected to be collected within one year.


Revenues of the  are reported net of uncollectible amounts. Total uncollectible amounts related to
revenues of the current period are as follows:


Uncollectibles related to ambulance receivables
(nonmajor enterprise fund - EMS) $ 148,421


Total uncollectibles of the current fiscal year $ 148,421
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Governmental funds report unavailable or unearned revenue in connection with receivables for
revenues that are not considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period. Property
taxes levied for the subsequent year are not earned and cannot be used to liquidate liabilities of the
current period. Governmental funds also defer revenue recognition in connection with resources that
have been received, but not yet earned. At the end of the current fiscal year, the various components
of unavailable revenue and unearned revenue reported in the governmental funds were as follows:


Unearned Unavailable


Property taxes receivable for subsequent year $ 12,060,684 $ -
Special assessments not yet due - 641,630
Grant receivable - 37,950


Total unearned/unavailable revenue for governmental
funds $ 12,060,684 $ 679,580


Restricted Assets  


The following represent the balances of the restricted assets:


Long-Term Debt Accounts


Redemption - Used to segregate resources accumulated for debt service payments over the next
twelve months.


Reserve - Used to report resources set aside to make up potential future deficiencies in the
redemption account.


Depreciation - Used to report resources set aside to fund plant renewals and replacement or make
up potential future deficiencies in the redemption account.


Construction - Used to report proceeds of revenue bond issuances that are restricted for use in
construction.


Equipment Replacement Account


The Wastewater utility established an equipment replacement account to be used for significant
mechanical equipment replacement as required by the Wisconsin Department of Natural
Resources.


Net Pension Asset


Restricted assets have been reported in connection with the net pension asset balance since this
balance must be used to fund employee benefits.
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Following is a list of restricted assets at December 31, 2020: 


Restricted
Assets


Liabilities
Payable from


Restricted
Assets


Restricted Net
Position


Bond redemption account $ 1,071,417 $ 50,661 $ 1,020,756
Bond reserve account 801,432 - 801,432
Bond depreciation account 83,283 - 83,283
Construction account 110,332 - n/a
Equipment replacement account 1,164,904 - 1,164,904
Net pension asset - business-type activities 392,879 - 392,879
Net pension asset - governmental activities 1,244,940 - 1,244,940


Total $ 4,869,187 $ 50,661 $ 4,708,194


Capital Assets  


Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2020, was as follows:


Beginning
Balance Additions Deletions


Ending
Balance


Governmental Activities
Capital assets not being depreciated:


Land $ 9,298,987 $ - $ 297,412 $ 9,001,575
Construction in progress 670,858 107,252 272,742 505,368
Inexhaustible portion of streets 1,454,893 - - 1,454,893


Total capital assets not being
depreciated 11,424,738 107,252 570,154 10,961,836


Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 25,765,325 362,121 12,862 26,114,584
Machinery and equipment 9,809,162 1,606,212 459,754 10,955,620
Streets 20,991,132 2,975,024 1,503,280 22,462,876
Sidewalks 5,583,321 214,236 32,135 5,765,422
Street lighting 227,551 - - 227,551
Bridges 845,989 - - 845,989
Storm sewers 5,031,948 - 128,815 4,903,133
Traffic signals 411,974 - - 411,974
Dams 592,997 - - 592,997


Total capital assets being depreciated 69,259,399 5,157,593 2,136,846 72,280,146


Total capital assets 80,684,137 5,264,845 2,707,000 83,241,982
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Beginning
Balance Additions Deletions


Ending
Balance


Governmental Activities
Less accumulated depreciation for:


Buildings and improvements $ (7,453,341) $ (474,202) $ 643 $ (7,926,900)
Machinery and equipment (5,404,002) (749,742) 399,721 (5,754,023)
Streets (9,004,815) (748,014) 1,503,280 (8,249,549)
Sidewalks (3,018,243) (115,308) 32,135 (3,101,416)
Street lighting (53,295) (3,034) - (56,329)
Bridges (233,166) (11,280) - (244,446)
Storm sewers (2,620,342) (163,274) 128,815 (2,654,801)
Traffic signals (199,775) (10,299) - (210,074)
Dams (65,230) (5,930) - (71,160)


Total accumulated depreciation (28,052,209) (2,281,083) 2,064,594 (28,268,698)


Net capital assets being depreciated 41,207,190 2,876,510 72,252 44,011,448


Total governmental activities capital
assets, net of accumulated
depreciation $ 52,631,928 $ 2,983,762 $ 642,406 $ 54,973,284


Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows: 


Governmental Activities
General government $ 156,136
Public Safety 450,973
Public works, which includes the depreciation of infrastructure 1,399,518
Culture, recreation and education 274,456


Total governmental activities Depreciation expense $ 2,281,083
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Business-Type Activities


Beginning
Balance Additions Deletions


Ending
Balance


Water
Capital assets not being depreciated:


Land and land rights $ 430,131 $ - $ - $ 430,131
Construction in progress 30 11,117 - 11,147


Total capital assets not being
Depreciated 430,161 11,117 - 441,278


Capital assets being depreciated:
Source of supply 595,730 - - 595,730
Pumping 1,598,745 - - 1,598,745
Treatment 90,763 - - 90,763
Transmission and distribution 21,308,554 625,621 41,700 21,892,475
General 610,364 - - 610,364


Total capital assets being depreciated 24,204,156 625,621 41,700 24,788,077


Total capital assets 24,634,317 636,738 41,700 25,229,355


Less accumulated depreciation for:
Source of supply (421,541) (17,276) - (438,817)
Pumping (1,357,135) (57,449) - (1,414,584)
Treatment (89,951) (437) - (90,388)
Transmission and distribution (5,063,800) (399,839) 63,001 (5,400,638)
General (798,731) (25,981) - (824,712)


Total accumulated  depreciation (7,731,158) (500,982) 63,001 (8,169,139)


Net capital assets being depreciated 16,472,998 124,639 (21,301) 16,618,938


Net water capital assets $ 16,903,159 $ 135,756 $ (21,301) $ 17,060,216


Beginning
Balance Additions Deletions


Ending
Balance


Wastewater
Capital assets not being depreciated:


Construction in progress $ - $ 9,793 $ - $ 9,793


Total capital assets not being
depreciated - 9,793 - 9,793


Capital assets being depreciated:
Collection system 13,667,393 815,021 27,838 14,454,576
Collection system pumping 753,684 2,975 1,200 755,459
Treatment and disposal 15,664,654 19,234 11,580 15,672,308
Administrative and general assets 1,467,607 32,042 - 1,499,649


Total capital assets being depreciated 31,553,338 869,272 40,618 32,381,992


Total capital assets 31,553,338 879,065 40,618 32,391,785


Less accumulated depreciation for
Wastewater (12,237,929) (808,765) 69,226 (12,977,468)


Total accumulated depreciation (12,237,929) (808,765) 69,226 (12,977,468)


Net capital assets being depreciated 19,315,409 60,507 (28,608) 19,404,524


Net wastewater capital assets $ 19,315,409 $ 70,300 $ (28,608) $ 19,414,317
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Beginning
Balance Additions Deletions


Ending
Balance


Electric
Capital assets not being depreciated:


Land and land rights $ 344,364 $ - $ - $ 344,364
Construction in progress 123,908 857,415 - 981,323
Property held for future use 229,097 - - 229,097


Total capital assets not being
depreciated / amortized 697,369 857,415 - 1,554,784


Capital assets being depreciated:
Transmission 15,019 - - 15,019
Distribution 29,370,280 976,630 224,879 30,122,031
Administrative and general assets 3,989,226 9,815 3,476 3,995,565


Total capital assets being depreciated /
amortized 33,374,525 986,445 228,355 34,132,615


Total capital assets 34,071,894 1,843,860 228,355 35,687,399


Less accumulated depreciation for:
Transmission (19,366) - - (19,366)
Distribution (13,646,535) (1,080,855) 228,203 (14,499,187)
Administrative and general assets (2,430,870) (178,060) 3,476 (2,605,454)


Total accumulated depreciation /
amortization (16,096,771) (1,258,915) 231,679 (17,124,007)


Net capital assets being depreciated /
amortized 17,277,754 (272,470) (3,324) 17,008,608


Net electric capital assets $ 17,975,123 $ 584,945 $ (3,324) $ 18,563,392


Stormwater
Capital assets not being depreciated:


Land $ 9,986 $ - $ - $ 9,986
Construction in progress 975,350 - 975,350 -


Total capital assets not being
depreciated 985,336 - 975,350 9,986


Capital assets being depreciated:
Storm Sewer 4,035,720 1,938,215 - 5,973,935


Total capital assets being depreciated 4,035,720 1,938,215 - 5,973,935


Total capital assets 5,021,056 1,938,215 975,350 5,983,921


Less accumulated depreciation for:
Storm Sewer (441,617) (208,233) - (649,850)


Total accumulated depreciation (441,617) (208,233) - (649,850)


Net capital assets being depreciated 3,594,103 1,729,982 - 5,324,085


Net other enterprise capital assets $ 4,579,439 $ 1,729,982 $ 975,350 $ 5,334,071


42







City of Stoughton
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2020


Beginning
Balance Additions Deletions


Ending
Balance


EMS
Capital assets being depreciated:


Buildings and improvements $ 1,240,308 $ - $ - $ 1,240,308
Equipment 941,588 - - 941,588


Total capital assets being depreciated 2,181,896 - - 2,181,896


Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements (355,463) (24,526) - (379,989)
Equipment (593,303) (68,758) - (662,061)


Total accumulated depreciation (948,766) (93,284) - (1,042,050)


Net capital assets being depreciated 1,233,130 (93,284) - 1,139,846


Net EMS capital assets $ 1,233,130 $ (93,284) $ - $ 1,139,846


Business-type capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation $ 60,006,260 $ 2,427,699 $ 922,117 $ 61,511,842


Depreciation expense was charged to functions as follows:


Business-Type Activities
Water $ 468,240
Wastewater 808,765
Electric 1,193,582
Storm sewer 208,233
EMS 93,284


Total business-type activities depreciation expense $ 2,772,104


Depreciation expense may be different from business-type activity capital asset additions because of
joint metering, salvage, cost of removal, internal allocations, or cost associated with the disposal of
assets.
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Interfund Receivables/Payables, Advances and Transfers   


Interfund Receivables/Payables


The following is a schedule of interfund receivables and payables including any overdrafts on
pooled cash and investment accounts:


Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount


General Electric Utility $ 488,022
General Water Utility 458,608
General Opera House 80,947
General Wastewater Utility 20,611
Storm Sewer Electric Utility 51,717
Debt Service EMS 305,325
Electric Utility General 73,714
Water Utility General 7,718
Wastewater Utility General 6,299
Water Utility Special Assessments 29,026
Wastewater Utility Special Assessments 19,905


Total, fund financial statements 1,541,892


Less fund eliminations (132,664)
Less government-wide eliminations (273,324)
Less interfund advances (206,435)


Total internal balances, government-wide statement of net position $ 929,469


Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount


Governmental activities Business-type activities $ 1,272,566
Business-type activities Governmental activities (343,097)


Total government-wide financial statements $ 929,469


The principal purpose of these interfunds is to fund ongoing operations.  All remaining balances
resulted from the time lag between the dates that: (1) interfund goods and services are provided or
reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the accounting system, and
(3) payments between funds are made.


Advances


The general fund is advancing funds to the TIF District Nos. 5, 6 and 8 capital project funds. The
amount advanced is determined by the deficiency of revenues over expenditures and other
financing sources since the district's inception. A repayment schedule has not been established.


In December 2011, the Electric Utility provided an advance to the Internal Service Fund for the
purpose of full payment of the Wisconsin Retirement System Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability.
The Internal Service Fund will repay the Electric Utility over a period of fourteen years at 3%. A
repayment schedule has been established.
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The following is a schedule of interfund advances:


Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount


Amount Not
Due Within
One Year


General Fund TIF District No. 5 $ 761,320 $ 761,320
General Fund TIF District No. 6 140,399 140,399
Electric Utility Internal service fund 206,435 157,976
General Fund TIF District No. 8 144,304 144,304


Total, fund financial statements 1,252,458


Less fund eliminations (1,046,023)


Total, interfund advances $ 206,435


Internal Service Fund Advance


Years Principal Interest


2021 $ 48,459 $ 6,193
2022 51,006 4,739
2023 53,651 3,209
2024 47,388 1,600
2025 5,931 178


Total $ 206,435 $ 15,919


For the statement of net position, interfund advances which are owed within the governmental
activities or business-type activities are netted and eliminated.
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Transfers


The following is a schedule of interfund transfers:


Fund Transferred To Fund Transferred From Amount Principal Purpose


General Building maintenance $ 40,000 Fund capital projects


Debt service TIF District No. 5 102,521
Payments on TIF District


debt


Debt service TIF District No. 6 70,138
Payments on TIF District


debt


General Water utility 437,266
Payment in lieu of taxes and


dividend


General Electric utility 445,995
Payment in lieu of taxes and


dividend
Debt service General 3,344,613 Payments on non-TID debt


Debt service TIF District No. 3 433,029
Payments on TIF District


debt


Debt service TIF District No. 4 101,625
Payments on TIF District


debt


Debt Service TIF District No. 7 333,975
Payments on TIF District


debt
Redevelopment authority General 79,618 Fund operations
Revolving loan TIF District No. 4 135,000 Fund operations
General Tourism 3,770 Roo tax revenue
EMS General 25,000 Fund operations
Library General 623,000 Fund annual operations
Landmarks General 7,500 Fund operations
Opera house General 182,000 Fund operations
Redevelopment authority CDBG 6,453 Fund operations
Equipment replacement General 220,000 Fund capital projects
Construction General 100,000 Fund capital projects
Outlay General 100,000 Fund capital projects
Economic Development General 15,256 Fund Operations
Construction Special assessments 200,000 Fund capital projects


Debt service TIF District No. 8 17,288
Payments on TIF District


debt


Total, fund financial statements 7,024,047


Less fund eliminations (6,115,786)


Less government-wide eliminations (50,000)


Capital assets contributions from governmental
activities to business-type activities (158,017)


Total transfers, government-wide statement
of activities $ 700,244


Fund Transferred To Fund Transferred From Amount


Governmental activities Business-type activities $ 883,261
Business-type activities Governmental activities (183,017)


Total government-wide financial statements $ 700,244
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Generally, transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the fund that collects them to the fund
that the budget requires to expend them, (2) move receipts restricted to debt service from the
funds collecting the receipts to the debt service fund and (3) use unrestricted revenues collected in
the general fund to finance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with
budgetary authorizations.


Long-Term Obligations  


Long-term obligations activity for the year ended December 31, 2020, was as follows:


Beginning
Balance Increases Decreases


Ending
Balance


Amounts Due
Within One


Year


Governmental Activities
Bonds and notes payable:


General obligation debt $ 35,242,908 $ 2,005,000 $ 3,458,438 $ 33,789,470 $ 3,114,084
General obligation debt from direct


borrowings and direct placements 1,004,944 - 249,731 755,213 36,021
Unamortized premium on debt 746,311 158,153 74,915 829,549 -


Subtotal 36,994,163 2,163,153 3,783,084 35,374,232 3,150,105


Other liabilities:
Compensated absences (Note 1) 1,250,500 410,121 470,544 1,190,077 -
Fire pension liability  (Note 5) 868,177 235,184 36,217 1,067,144 -


Total other liabilities 2,118,677 645,305 506,761 2,257,221 -


Total governmental activities long-
term liabilities $ 39,112,840 $ 2,808,458 $ 4,289,845 $ 37,631,453 $ 3,150,105


Business-Type Activities
Bonds and notes payable:


General obligation debt $ 2,162,092 $ 410,000 $ 436,562 $ 2,135,530 $ 320,916
Revenue bonds 7,885,000 - 1,070,000 6,815,000 1,075,000
Revenue debt from direct borrowings and


direct placements 4,222,100 - 435,628 3,786,472 371,722
Unamortized premium on debt 149,382 - 24,767 124,615 -


Subtotal 14,418,574 410,000 1,966,957 12,861,617 1,767,638


Other liabilities:
Vested compensated absences 366,060 119,036 87,620 397,476 -
Customer advances for construction 27,416 1,385,963 63,463 1,349,916 -


Total other liabilities 393,476 1,504,999 151,083 1,747,392 -


Total business-type activities long-
term liabilities $ 14,812,050 $ 1,914,999 $ 2,118,040 $ 14,609,009 $ 1,767,638


In accordance with Wisconsin Statutes, total general obligation indebtedness of the City may not
exceed 5 percent of the equalized value of taxable property within the City's jurisdiction. The debt limit
as of December 31, 2020, was $63,402,095. Total general obligation debt outstanding at year end was
$36,680,213. 
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General Obligation Debt 


All general obligation notes and bonds payable are backed by the full faith and credit of the City.
Notes and bonds in the governmental funds will be retired by future property tax levies or tax
increments accumulated by the debt service fund. Business-type activities debt is payable by
revenues from user fees of those funds or, if the revenues are not sufficient, by future tax levies.


Governmental Activities


General Obligation Debt
Date of
Issue


Final
Maturity


Interest
Rates


Original
Indebtedness


Balance
December 31,


2020


2012 General Obligation
Notes 4/15/12 3/1/22 0.40 - 2.00% $ 2,759,000 $ 491,543


2014 General Obligation
Notes 6/1/14 4/1/24 2.00 - 2.25 2,755,000 835,000


2015 General Obligation
Notes 7/9/15 4/1/25 2.00 - 2.25 1,545,000 890,000


2016 General Obligation
Notes 5/26/16 4/1/26 3.25 - 3.75 5,830,000 4,405,000


2016 State Trust Fund
Loan* 12/28/16 3/15/36 3.5 850,000 755,213


2017 General Obligation
Notes 6/8/17 4/1/27 2.00 - 3.00 7,085,000 5,915,000


2018 General Obligation
Bonds 4/26/18 4/1/38 2.00 - 4.00 12,585,000 11,790,000


2018 General Obligation
Notes 4/26/18 4/1/28 3.20 - 4.00 775,000 775,000


2019 General Obligation
Notes 4/24/19 4/1/29 2.13 - 4.00 6,980,000 6,682,927


2020 General Obligation
Notes 6/18/20 4/1/30 2.00 - 3.00 2,005,000 2,005,000


Total governmental activities, general obligation debt $ 34,544,683


Business-Type Activities


General Obligation Debt
Date of
Issue


Final
Maturity


Interest
Rates


Original
Indebtedness


Balance
December 31,


2020


2012 General Obligation
Notes 4/15/12 3/1/22 0.40 - 2.00% $ 661,000 $ 163,457


2014 General Obligation
Notes 6/1/14 4/1/24 2.00 - 2.25 280,000 120,000


2015 General Obligation
Notes 7/9/15 4/1/25 2.00 - 2.25 1,180,000 610,000


2017 General Obligation
Notes 6/8/17 4/1/27 2.00 - 3.00 575,000 415,000


2019 General Obligation
Notes 4/24/19 4/1/29 2.13 - 4.00 450,000 417,073


2020 General Obligation
Notes 6/18/20 4/1/30 2.00 - 3.00 410,000 410,000


Total business-type activities, general obligation debt $ 2,135,530


* - Direct borrowing or direct placement.
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Debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:


Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities
General Obligation Debt General Obligation Debt


Years Principal Interest Principal Interest


2021 $ 3,114,084 $ 906,326 $ 320,916 $ 47,951
2022 3,479,643 817,200 312,813 38,257
2023 3,436,596 731,381 315,948 30,779
2024 3,475,100 662,911 284,900 23,245
2025 3,538,603 540,441 261,397 16,517
2026-2030 11,235,444 1,519,291 639,556 29,791
2031-2035 3,770,000 573,475 - -
2036-2038 1,740,000 88,000 - -


Total $ 33,789,470 $ 5,839,025 $ 2,135,530 $ 186,540


Governmental Activities
Notes from Direct Borrowings


and Direct Placements


Years Principal Interest


2021 $ 36,021 $ 26,432
2022 37,282 25,172
2023 38,587 23,867
2024 39,876 22,578
2025 41,333 21,121
2026-2030 229,356 118,608
2031-2035 272,421 39,846
2036 60,337 2,116


Total $ 755,213 $ 279,740


The City's outstanding debt from direct borrowing and placements related to governmental
activities of $755,213 contain a provision that in an event of default, any delinquent payment
amount is subject to a penalty of one percent per month.


Revenue Debt


Business-type activities revenue bonds are payable only from revenues derived from the operation
of the water, wastewater and electric utilities. 


The utilities has pledged future  revenues to repay revenue bonds issued in between 2000-2019.
Proceeds from the bonds provided financing for the utility construction, improvements, and
additions. The bonds are payable solely from utility revenues and are payable through 2036.
Annual principal and interest payments on the bonds are expected to require 2%, 12%, and 13%
respectively of electric, water, and wastewater gross revenues. The total principal and interest
remaining to be paid on the bonds is $12,296,594. Principal and interest paid for the current year
and total customer gross revenues were $1,778,740 and $19,346,336, respectively.
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Revenue debt payable at December 31, 2020, consists of the following:


Business-Type Activities Revenue Debt


Date of
Issue


Final
Maturity


Interest
Rates


Original
Indebtedness


Balance
December 31,


2020
Water Utility


2010 Water Utility Revenue
Bonds* 1/27/10 5/1/29 2.67% $ 575,018 $ 308,207


2016 Water Utility Revenue
Bonds 5/26/16 5/1/26 1.00 - 2.75 2,520,000 1,340,000


2019 Water Utility Revenue
Bonds 11/14/19 5/1/34 2.00 - 3.00 1,825,000 1,725,000


Total Water Utility 3,373,207


* - Direct borrowing or direct placement


Wastewater Utility


2003 Wastewater Utility Clean
Water Fund Loan* 9/10/03 5/1/23 2.766% 1,670,624 314,224


2007 Wastewater Utility Clean
Water Fund Loan* 6/27/07 5/1/27 2.475 1,539,762 677,175


2014 Wastewater Utility Clean
Water Fund Loan* 11/1/14 5/1/34 2.625 3,305,713 2,486,866


Total Wastewater Utility 3,478,265


* - Direct borrowing or direct placement


Electric Utility


2013 Electric Utility Revenue
Bonds 4/1/13 4/1/23 2.00 - 2.25% 3,170,000 2,765,000


2016 Electric Utility Revenue
Bonds 5/26/16 4/1/36 2.00 - 3.00 4,005,000 985,000


Total Electric Utility 3,750,000


Total business-type activities, revenue debt $ 10,601,472
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Debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:


Business-Type Activities
Revenue Debt


Years Principal Interest


2021 $ 1,075,000 $ 149,113
2022 1,080,000 127,238
2023 1,110,000 104,644
2024 355,000 89,106
2025 365,000 80,450
2026-2030 1,395,000 284,328
2031-2035 1,280,000 106,591
2036 155,000 157,325


Total $ 6,815,000 $ 1,098,795


Business-Type Activities
Revenue Debt  from Direct


Borrowings and Direct
Placements


Years Principal Interest


2021 $ 371,722 $ 94,065
2022 381,501 84,156
2023 391,540 73,986
2024 291,253 65,077
2025 298,768 57,466
2026-2030 1,246,929 178,643
2031-2034 804,759 42,934


Total $ 3,786,472 $ 596,327


The City's outstanding debt from direct borrowings and placements related to business-type activities of
$3,786,472 contain a provision that in an event of default, outstanding amounts become immediately due
and payable.


Other Debt Information  


Estimated payments of compensated absences and the fire pension liability are not included in the
debt service requirement schedules. The compensated absences liability and the fire pension
liability attributable to governmental activities will be liquidated primarily by the general fund. 


A statutory mortgage lien upon the City's system and any additions, improvements and extensions
thereto is created by Section 66.0621 of the Wisconsin Statutes as provided for in the ordinances
creating the revenue bond issue. The City's system and the earnings of the system remain subject
to the lien until payment in full of the principal and interest on the bonds.


The water and electric mortgage revenue bond ordinances require segregation of the proceeds of
the bond issues and the creation and continual funding of several funds from operating revenues.
The City was in compliance with funding requirements in all material respects at December 31,
2020.
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Net Position/Fund Balances 


Net position reported on the government-wide statement of net position at December 31, 2020,
includes the following:


Governmental Activities


Net investment in capital assets:
Land $ 9,001,575
Construction in progress 505,368
Inexhaustible portion of streets 1,454,893
Other capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 44,011,448
Less: Related long-term debt outstanding (excluding unspent capital related


debt proceeds) (34,149,483)
Plus noncapital debt outstanding 2,189,998
Less unamortized debt premium (829,549)


Total net investment in capital assets $ 22,184,250
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Governmental Funds


Governmental fund balances reported on the fund financial statements at December 31, 2020,
include the following:


General
Fund


Debt
Service Construction


Nonmajor
Funds Total


Fund Balances


Nonspendable:
Prepaid items $ 135,512 $ - $ - $ 68,379 $ 203,891
Delinquent items 18,998 - - - 18,998
Noncurrent interfunds 1,046,023 - - - 1,046,023
CVMIC equity 257,805 - - - 257,805


Subtotal 1,458,338 - - 68,379 1,526,717


Restricted for:
Debt service - 696,580 - - 696,580
Library - - - 279,950 279,950
Parks - - - 485,854 485,854
TID activities - - - 1,752,388 1,752,388
Firemen Pension - - - 877,271 877,271


Subtotal - 696,580 - 3,395,463 4,092,043


Committed to:
Senior center wood shop - - - 8,689 8,689
Food pantry - - - 296,408 296,408
Fire department special - - - 39,596 39,596
Ambulance - - - 18,258 18,258
Opera house repair - - - 6,778 6,778
Township outreach - - - 12,426 12,426
Tourism - - - 25,926 25,926
Seniors in need - - - 51,885 51,885
Senior center special - - - 512,887 512,887
Capital projects - - - 404,996 404,996
K9 unit - - - 13,688 13,688
Tree commission - - - 4,982 4,982
Cemetery - - - 24,300 24,300
Revolving loans - - - 254,331 254,331
Refuse - - - 4,386 4,386


Subtotal - - - 1,679,536 1,679,536
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General
Fund


Debt
Service Construction


Nonmajor
Funds Totals


Assigned to:
Safety camp $ 28,836 $ - $ - $ - $ 28,836
Youth gift 19,871 - - - 19,871
Bryant grant 102,760 - - - 102,760
Pool sinking fund 15,233 - - - 15,233
Shop with a cop 6,728 - - - 6,728
Tree plantings developer 21,184 - - - 21,184
Police federal grants 5,176 - - - 5,176
Paul Kraby memorial 3,032 - - - 3,032
Utility payment in lieu of taxes 883,261 - - - 883,261
Virgin lake boardwalk 148 - - - 148
Buddy bags 46 - - - 46
Arts council 3,251 - - - 3,251
Buddy benches 625 - - - 625
Fire equipments - - - 16,609 16,609
Equipment replacement - - - 251,874 251,874
Capital projects - - 2,005,994 533,557 2,539,551
Outlay - - - 578,292 578,292
Technology - - - 95,146 95,146


Subtotal 1,090,151 - 2,005,994 1,475,478 4,571,623


Unassigned (deficit): 4,482,473 - - (1,052,419) 3,430,054


Total fund balances (deficit) $ 7,030,962 $ 696,580 $ 2,005,994 $ 5,566,437 $15,299,973


Business-Type Activities
Net investment in capital assets:


Land $ 784,481
Construction in progress 1,002,263
Other capital assets, net of depreciation 59,496,001
Less long-term debt outstanding (excluding unspent capital related debt


proceeds) (12,371,955)
Less unamortized debt premium (124,615)


Total net investment in capital assets $ 48,786,175


5. Other Information 


Employees' Retirement System


Plan Description


The WRS is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan. WRS benefits and
other plan provisions are established by Chapter 40 of the Wisconsin Statutes. Benefit terms may
only be modified by the legislature. The retirement system is administered by the Wisconsin
Department of Employee Trust Funds (ETF). The system provides coverage to all eligible State of
Wisconsin, local government and other public employees. All employees, initially employed by a
participating WRS employer on or after July 1, 2011, and expected to work at least 1,200 hours a
year (880 hours teachers and school district educational support employees) and expected to be
employed for at least one year from employee’s date of hire are eligible to participate in the WRS. 


ETF issues a standalone Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, which can be found at
http://etf.wi.gov/publications/cafr.htm.
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Vesting


For employees beginning participation on or after January 1, 1990, and no longer actively
employed on or after April 24, 1998, creditable service in each of five years is required for eligibility
for a retirement annuity. Participants employed prior to 1990 and on or after April 24, 1998, and
prior to July 1, 2011, are immediately vested. Participants who initially became WRS eligible on or
after July 1, 2011, must have five years of creditable service to be vested. 


Benefits Provided


Employees who retire at or after age 65 (54 for protective occupation employees, 62 for elected
officials and executive service retirement participants, if hired on or before 12/31/2016) are entitled
to retirement benefit based on a formula factor, their average earnings and creditable service.


Final average earnings is the average of the participant's three highest annual earnings period.
Creditable service includes current service and prior service for which a participant received
earnings and made contributions as required. Creditable service also includes creditable military
service. The retirement benefit will be calculated as a money purchase benefit based on the
employee's contributions plus matching employer's contributions, with interest, if that benefit is
higher than the formula benefit.


Vested participants may retire at age 55 (50 for protective occupations) and receive an actuarially
reduced benefit. Participants terminating covered employment prior to eligibility for an annuity may
either receive employee-required contributions plus interest as a separation benefit or leave
contributions on deposit and defer application until eligible to receive a retirement benefit. 


The WRS also provides death and disability benefits for employees.


Post-Retirement Adjustments


The Employee Trust Funds Board may periodically adjust annuity payments from the retirement
system based on annual investment performance in accordance with s. 40.27, Wis. Stat. An
increase (or decrease) in annuity payments may result when investment gains (losses), together
with other actuarial experience factors, create a surplus (shortfall) in the reserves, as determined
by the system’s consulting actuary. Annuity increases are not based on cost of living or other
similar factors. For Core annuities, decreases may be applied only to previously granted increases.
By law, Core annuities cannot be reduced to an amount below the original, guaranteed amount
(the “floor”) set at retirement. The Core and Variable annuity adjustments granted during recent
years are as follows:


Year
Core Fund
Adjustment


Variable Fund
Adjustment


2010    (1.3)%    22.0%


2011 (1.2) 11.0


2012 (7.0) (7.0)


2013 (9.6) 9.0


2014 4.7 25.0


2015 2.9 2.0


2016 0.5 (5.0)


2017 2.0 4.0


2018 2.4 17.0


2019 0.0 (10.0)
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Contributions


Required contributions are determined by an annual actuarial valuation in accordance with Chapter
40 of the Wisconsin Statutes. The employee required contribution is one-half of the actuarially
determined contribution rate for General category employees, including Teachers, Executives and
Elected Officials. Starting on January 1, 2016, the Executives and Elected Officials category
merged into the General Employee category. Required contributions for protective employees are
the same rate as general employees. Employers are required to contribute the remainder of the
actuarially determined contribution rate. The employer may not pay the employee required
contribution unless provided for by an existing collective bargaining agreement.


During the reporting period, the WRS recognized $531,189 in contributions from the City.


Contribution rates for the plan year reported as of December 31, 2020 are: 


Employee Category Employee Employer


General (Executives & Elected Officials) 6.55 % 6.55 %


Protective with Social Security 6.55 % 10.55 %


Protective without Social Security 6.55 % 14.95 %


Pension liability, Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions


At December 31, 2020, the City reported an asset of $1,637,819 for its proportionate share of the
net pension asset. The net pension asset was measured as of December 31, 2019, and the total
pension liability used to calculate the net pension asset was determined by an actuarial valuation
as of December 31, 2018 rolled forward to December 31, 2019. No material changes in
assumptions or benefit terms occurred between the actuarial valuation date and the measurement
date. The City’s proportion of the net pension asset was based on the City’s share of contributions
to the pension plan relative to the contributions of all participating employers. At December 31,
2019, the City’s proportion was 0.05079366 percent, which was an increase of 0.00089611 percent
from its proportion measured as of December 31, 2018.


For the year ended December 31, 2020, the City recognized pension expense of $608,770.


At December 31, 2020, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources  related to pensions from the following sources:


Deferred
Outflows of
Resources


Deferred
Inflows of
Resources


Differences between expected and actual experience $ 3,108,955 $ 1,555,824


Changes in assumptions 127,629 -


Net differences between projected and actual earnings on pension
plan investments - 3,348,285


Changes in proportion and differences between employer
contributions and proportionate share of contributions - 14,107


Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date 529,789 -


Total $ 3,766,373 $ 4,918,216
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$529,789 reported as deferred outflows related to pension resulting from the WRS Employer’s
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net
pension liability (asset) in the year ended December 31, 2021. Other amounts reported as deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pension will be recognized in
pension expense as follows:


Year Ended 
December 31:


Deferred
Outflows of


Resources and
Deferred Inflows


of Resources
(net)


2021 $ (504,579)


2022 (373,284)


2023 57,564


2024 (861,333)


Actuarial Assumptions


The total pension liability in the December 31, 2019 actuarial valuation was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:


Actuarial Valuation Date: December 31, 2018


Measurement Date of Net Pension Liability (Asset): December 31, 2019


Actuarial Cost Method: Entry Age Normal


Asset Valuation Method: Fair Value


Long-Term Expected Rate of Return: 7.0%


Discount Rate: 7.0%


Salary Increases:


    Inflation


    Seniority/Merit


3.0%


0.1% - 5.6%


Mortality: Wisconsin 2018 Mortality Table


Post-Retirement Adjustments*: 1.9%


* No post-retirement adjustment is guaranteed. Actual adjustments are based on recognized
investment return, actuarial experience and other factors. 1.9 percent is the assumed annual
adjustment based on the investment return assumption and the post-retirement discount rate. 


Actuarial assumptions are based upon an experience study conducted in 2018 that covered a
three-year period from January 1, 2015 to December 31, 2017. The Total Pension Liability for
December 31, 2019 is based upon a roll-forward of the liability calculated from the December 31,
2018 actuarial valuation.
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Long-Term Expected Return on Plan Assets


The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each
major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by
weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by
adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best estimates of geometric real rates of return
for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:


Core Fund Asset Class
Current Asset
Allocation %


Long-Term
Expected


Nominal Rate
of Return %


Long-Term
Expected Real
Rate of Return


%


Global Equities   49 %      8.0 %     5.1 %


Fixed Income 24.5 4.9 2.1


Inflation Sensitive Assets 15.5 4.0 1.2


Real Estate 9 6.3 3.5


Private Equity/Debt 8 10.6 7.6


Multi-Asset 4 6.9 4.0


Total Core Fund 110 7.5 4.6


Variable Fund Asset Class


U.S Equities 70 7.5 4.6


International Equities 30 8.2 5.3


Total Variable Fund 100 7.8 4.9


New England Pension Consultants Long Term US CPI (Inflation) Forecast: 2.75 percent
Asset Allocations are managed within established ranges, target percentages may differ from actual monthly
allocations


Single Discount Rate


A single discount rate of 7.00 percent was used to measure the total pension liability for the current
and prior year. This single discount rate was based on the expected rate of return on pension plan
investments of 7.00 percent and a long term bond rate of 2.75 percent. (Source: Fixed-income
municipal bonds with 20 years to maturity that include only federally tax-exempt municipal bonds
as reported in Fidelity Index’s “20-year Municipal GO AA Index” as of December 31, 2019. In
describing this index, Fidelity notes that the Municipal Curves are constructed using option-
adjusted analytics of a diverse population of over 10,000 tax-exempt securities.) Because of the
unique structure of WRS, the 7.00 percent expected rate of return implies that a dividend of
approximately 1.9 percent will always be paid. For purposes of the single discount rate, it was
assumed that the dividend would always be paid. The projection of cash flows used to determine
this single discount rate assumed that plan member contributions will be made at the current
contribution rate and that employer contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference
between actuarially determined contribution rates and the member rate. Based on these
assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all
projected future benefit payments (including expected dividends) of current plan members.
Therefore, the long term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all
periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.


58







City of Stoughton
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2020


Sensitivity of the City’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the
Discount Rate


The following presents the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using
the discount rate of 7.00 percent, as well as what the City’s proportionate share of the net pension
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower
(6.00 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.00 percent) than the current rate: 


1% Decrease
to Discount
Rate (6.00%)


Current
Discount Rate


(7.00%)


1% Increase to
Discount Rate


(8.00%)


City’s proportionate share of the net pension
liability(asset) $ 4,217,677 $ (1,637,819) $ (6,015,477)


Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position


Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in separately issued
financial statements available at https://etf.wi.gov/about-etf/reports-and-studies/financial-reports-
and-statements.


At December 31, 2020, the City reported a payable to the pension plan which represents
contractually required contributions outstanding as of the end of the year.


Risk Management  


The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to or destruction of assets;
errors and omissions; workers compensation; and health care of its employees. The City participates in
a public entity risk pool called CVMIC to provide coverage for losses from theft of, damage to, or
destruction of assets and workers compensation. However, other risks, such as (torts; theft of, damage
to, or destruction of assets; errors and omission; workers compensation; and health care of its
employees) are accounted for and financed by the City in the general fund.


Public Entity Risk Pool


Wisconsin Municipal Insurance Commission (WMIC)
Cities and Villages Mutual Insurance Company (CVMIC)


The WMIC is an intergovernmental cooperation commission created by contract under Section
66.30 of the Wisconsin Statutes. It was created in August, 1987 for the purpose of facilitating
the organization, establishment and capitalization of the CVMIC, and has numerous cities and
villages as members.


The CVMIC is a municipal mutual insurance company established on September 14, 1987
under Section 611.23 of the Wisconsin Statutes. The CVMIC provides liability insurance
coverage to the cities and villages which make up the membership of the WMIC.


The CVMIC is self-insured up to a maximum of $2,000,000 of each insurance risk. Losses
paid by CVMIC plus administrative expenses will be recovered through premiums to the
participating pool of municipalities. The City's share of such losses is approximately 1
percent.


Management of each organization consists of a board of directors or officers comprised of
representatives elected by each of three classes of participants based on population. The City
does not exercise any control over the activities of the agencies beyond the election of the
officers and board.
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Financial statements of WMIC and CVMIC can be obtained directly from CVMIC's offices.


The initial investment in WMIC is refundable upon withdrawal from the commission and has
been reported at the original amount of $257,805 in the general fund.


The City pays an annual premium to CVMIC for its general liability insurance, which provides
coverage up to $5,000,000 per occurrence, less the City's retained liability. The City's retained
liability is limited to $25,000 per occurrence and an annual aggregate limit of $100,000. An
actuarially determined estimate has been recorded for this liability, as well as for claims
incurred but not reported at December 31, 2020. 


Commitments and Contingencies  


Claims and judgments are recorded as liabilities if all the conditions of Governmental Accounting
Standards Board pronouncements are met. The liability band expenditure for claims and judgments
are only reported in governmental funds if it has matured. Claims and judgments are recorded in the
government-wide statements and proprietary funds as expenses when the related liabilities are
incurred.


From time to time, the City is party to various pending claims and legal proceedings. Although the
outcome of such matters cannot be forecasted with certainty, it is the opinion of management and the
City attorney that the likelihood is remote that any such claims or proceedings will have a material
adverse effect on the City's financial position or results of operations. 


The City has received federal and state grants for specific purposes that are subject to review and
audit by the grantor agencies. Such audits could lead to requests for reimbursements to the grantor
agency for expenditures disallowed under terms of the grants. Management believes such
disallowances, if any, would be immaterial.


The City has active construction projects as of December 31, 2020. Work that has been completed on
these projects but not yet paid for (including contract retainages) is reflected as accounts payable and
expenditures.


Long-Term Contracts, WPPI Energy


The electric utility is one of 51 WPPI Energy member municipalities located throughout the States
of Wisconsin, Michigan and Iowa. On December 1, 1989, each initial WPPI Energy member
commenced purchasing electric service from WPPI Energy under a long-term Power Supply
Contract for Participating Members (long-term contract). Under the long-term contract, WPPI
Energy is obligated to provide and sell, and each member is obligated to take and pay for, the
electric power and energy required for the operation of each member's electric utility. 


The long-term contract requires all WPPI Energy members to pay for power and energy
requirements supplied or made available by WPPI Energy at rates sufficient to cover WPPI
Energy's revenue requirement including power supply costs, administrative expenses and debt
service. WPPI Energy's subsequent year's operating budget and rates are approved annually by its
Board of Directors, consisting of representatives from each member. The members have agreed
to charge rates to retail customers sufficient to meet their WPPI Energy obligations. The long-term
contract provides that all payments to WPPI Energy constitute operating expenses of the utility
payable from any operating and maintenance fund established for that system.


Fifty members, representing approximately 99.8 percent of WPPI Energy's existing load, have
long-term contracts through December 31, 2055. The remaining member has a long-term contract
through December 31, 2037.
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WPPI Energy's outstanding debt service obligation to be paid by its members through their
wholesale power charges through the remainder of the long-term contract was $305 million as of
December 31, 2020.


Municipal Revenue Obligation


In 2020, the City issued a municipal revenue obligation as part of a development agreement. The
amount of the obligation was $3,000,000, and is payable to the developer solely from tax
increments collected from a specific portion of the development in TIF No. 7.


Payments are scheduled through the year 2035, and carry an interest rate of 6 percent. The
obligation does not constitute a charge upon any funds of the City. In the event that future tax
increments are not sufficient to pay off the obligation, the obligation terminates with no further
liability to the City. Since the amount of future payments is contingent on the collection of future TIF
increments, the obligation is not reported as a liability in the accompanying financial statements.
The balance of the commitment outstanding at year end was $3,000,000.


Subsequent Events  


The  Public Service Commission of Wisconsin has approved a water rate increase effective June 1,
2021. 


City of Stoughton has been proactive in dealing with the effects of the nationwide COVID-19 pandemic,
where effects continue into 2021. The federal government passed the American Rescue Plan Act
(ARPA) on March 11, 2021. City’s estimated award is $1.29 million, which will be used to combat the
negative effects of the pandemic in the local economy. The City is expected to receive 50% of the
funds in May 2021, with the remaining funds expected a year later.


Effect of New Accounting Standards on Current-Period Financial Statements  


The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has approved the following: 


 Statement No. 87, Leases


 Statement No. 90, Majority Equity Interests - an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and


No. 61


 Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations


 Statement No. 92, Omnibus 2020


 Statement No. 93, Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates


 Statement No. 94, Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability Payment


Arrangements


 Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements


 Statement No. 97, Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting and Financial Reporting


for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans - an amendment of


GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 84, and a supersession of GASB Statement No. 32


When they become effective, application of these standards may restate portions of these financial
statements.
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Firemen's Pension Plan  


Plan description. The City reports a single-employer defined benefit pension plan for fire department
employees (the Plan). Management of the Plan is vested in the Firemen's Pension Board. No assets
have been accumulated in a trust for payment of these benefits. 


Benefits provided. The plan is administered by the Firemen's Pension Board and provides pension
benefits to fire department employees. The amount paid to retirees each year is based on the years of
service at the time of retirement and the position the retiree held while a member of the department. 


Plan membership. At December 31, 2019, the plan's membership consisted of:


Retirees and beneficiaries 26


Inactive, nonretired members -


Active members 30


Total 56


The City paid $36,217 for pension benefits as they came due during the reporting period. The City has
accumulated assets to pay for these benefits; however, the arrangement does not meet the definition
of a trust under GASB Statement No. 73. The specific criteria that are not met include:


 Contributions from employers and nonemployer contributing entities to the pension plan and


earnings on those contributions are irrevocable.


 Pension plan assets are legally protected from the creditors of employers, nonemployer


contributing entities, the pension plan administrator and plan members


Changes in total pension liability. The City's change in total pension liability for the year ended
December 31, 2020 was as follows:


Total Pension
Liability


Beginning of Year Balance $ 868,177


Service cost 20,856
Interest on total pension liability 35,715
Changes of assumptions 178,613
Benefit payments (36,217)


End of Year Balance $ 1,067,144


Assumptions. The total pension liability was determined using the following actuarial assumptions,
applied to all periods included in the measurement:


Measurement Date: December 31, 2019


Actuarial Valuation Date: December 31, 2018


Inflation: 2.3%


Salary Changes: 2.3%


Discount Rate: 2.74%


Source of Discount Rate: Bond Buyer GO 20-Year Municipal Bond Index


Source of Mortality Assumptions: Wisconsin 2018 Mortality table


Dates of Experience Studies: Experience study conducted using WRS
experience from 2015-2017
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Sensitivity of the total pension liability to changes in the discount rate. The following is a
sensitivity analysis of the total pension liability to changes in the discount rate. The table below
presents the pension liability of the District calculated using the current discount rate of 2.74 percent as
well as what the total pension liability would be if it were to be calculated using a discount rate that is
1 percentage point lower (1.74 percent) or 1 percentage point higher (3.74 percent) that the current
rate:


1% Decrease 
Current


Discount Rate 1% Increase 


Total pension liability $ 1,237,816 $ 1,067,144 $ 930,840


Pension expense, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions. For the year ended December 31, 2020, the City recognized pension expense of $6,438.


At December 31, 2020, the City reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions from the following sources:


Deferred
Outflows of
Resources


Deferred
Inflows of
Resources


Differences between expected and actual experience $ - $ 250,796


Changes in assumptions 196,395 191,109


Total $ 196,395 $ 441,905


Amounts reported as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to pension will be
recognized in pension expense as follows:


Year Ended
December 31:


Deferred
Outflows and


Deferred Inflows
of Resources


(Net)


2021 $ (50,133)


2022 (50,133)


2023 (50,133)


2024 (45,718)


2025 (51,842)


Thereafter 2,449
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City of Stoughton
Detailed Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - General Fund
Year Ended December 31, 2020


Original and
Final Budget Actual


Variance with
Final Budget


Revenues


Taxes
Taxes $ 9,444,414 $ 9,441,021 $ (3,393)


Intergovernmental Revenues
Intergovernmental 2,118,695 2,313,838 195,143


Licenses and Permits
Business and occupational licenses 38,575 37,098 (1,477)
Dog and cat licenses 3,500 1,524 (1,976)
Building permits 152,000 215,199 63,199


Total licenses and permits 194,075 253,821 59,746


Fines, Forfeitures and Penalties
Fines, forfeitures and penalties 155,000 88,178 (66,822)


Public Charges for Services
Public charges for services 666,363 485,898 (180,465)


Intergovernmental Charges
Intergovernmental charges for services 64,000 45,665 (18,335)


Special Assessments
Special assessments 11,500 12,770 1,270


Investment Income
Investment income 100,030 126,801 26,771


Miscellaneous
Miscellaneous revenues 439,967 427,855 (12,112)


Total revenues 13,194,044 13,195,847 1,803


Expenditures


General Government
Council/Board $ 46,500 $ 47,280 $ (780)
Legislative support 101,238 99,207 2,031
Judicial 61,770 59,563 2,207
Administrator 241,497 247,572 (6,075)
Information technology 331,810 301,229 30,581
Treasury 916,064 802,227 113,837
Legal 140,000 127,927 12,073
Personnel 191,288 186,344 4,944
General buildings/plant/hall 61,804 51,266 10,538
Assessment of property 47,900 48,190 (290)
Other general government 197,000 283,426 (86,426)


Total general government 2,336,871 2,254,231 82,640


Public Safety
Police 3,253,448 3,240,308 13,140
Fire protection 550,549 558,065 (7,516)
Inspection 362,580 395,363 (32,783)


Total public safety 4,166,577 4,193,736 (27,159)


See notes to required supplementary information
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Original and
Final Budget Actual


Variance with
Final Budget


Public Works
Highway and street maintenance and construction $ 121,469 $ 112,577 $ 8,892
Highway and street maintenance for local 1,196,067 1,199,861 (3,794)
Snow and ice control 68,000 65,968 2,032
Buildings and grounds operations 229,323 158,538 70,785


Total public works 1,614,859 1,536,944 77,915


Culture, Recreation and Education
Parks 244,480 201,382 43,098
Senior center 575,749 572,086 3,663
Community center 169,394 144,663 24,731
Recreation 342,411 220,880 121,531
Cemetery 36,000 33,323 2,677
Cable television 43,860 41,265 2,595


Total culture, recreation and education 1,411,894 1,213,599 198,295


Total expenditures 9,530,201 9,198,510 331,691


Excess of revenues over expenditures 3,663,843 3,997,337 333,494


Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in 962,120 927,031 (35,089)
Transfers out (4,632,113) (4,696,987) (64,874)


Total other financing sources (uses) (3,669,993) (3,769,956) (99,963)


Net change in fund balance (6,150) 227,381 233,531


Fund Balance, Beginning 6,803,581 6,803,581 -


Fund Balance, Ending $ 6,797,431 $ 7,030,962 $ 233,531


See notes to required supplementary information
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Proportionate


Share of the Net Plan Fiduciary
Proportion Proportionate Pension  Liability (Asset) Net Position


WRS of the Net Share of the as a Percentage as a Percentage
Fiscal Year Pension Net Pension Covered of Covered of the Total


Ending Liability (Asset) Liability (Asset) Payroll Payroll Pension Liability


12/31/15 0.04486493% (1,102,005)$           5,696,627$   19.34% 102.74%
12/31/16 0.04597674% 747,113                 6,169,077     12.11% 98.20%
12/31/17 0.04705035% 387,807                 6,266,372     6.23% 99.12%
12/31/18 0.04873732% (1,447,068)             6,542,867     22.12% 102.93%
12/31/19 0.04989755% 1,775,198              6,864,771     25.86% 96.45%
12/31/20 0.05079366% (1,637,819)             7,034,407     23.28% 102.96%


Contributions in
Relation to the Contributions


City Contractually Contractually Contribution as a Percentage
Fiscal Required Required Deficiency Covered of Covered


Year Ending Contributions Contributions (Excess) Payroll Payroll


12/31/15 465,913$              465,913$               -$                  6,169,077$                           7.55%
12/31/16 461,771                461,771                 -                    7,032,737                             6.57%
12/31/17 511,909                511,909                 -                    7,308,112                             7.00%
12/31/18 533,009                533,009                 -                    6,864,764                             7.76%
12/31/19 533,847                533,847                 -                    7,034,407                             7.59%
12/31/20 529,789                529,789                 -                    7,015,788                             7.55%


Year Ended December 31, 2020


Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability (Asset) -


Schedule of Employer Contributions - Wisconsin Retirement System


City of Stoughton


Wisconsin Retirement System
Year Ended December 31, 2020


See notes to the required supplementary information
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Schedule of Changes in the Total Pension Liability
Firemen's Pension Plan
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Difference
Interest on Between Expected


Fiscal Beginning Total Pension Changes in and Actual Changes of Benefit Ending
Year Ending Balance Service Cost Liability Benefit Terms Experience Assumptions Payments Balance


12/31/20 868,177$         20,856$        35,715$            -$                     -$                              178,613$          (36,217)$  1,067,144$    
12/31/19 1,392,161        47,261          48,829              -                       -                                (579,792)          (40,282)    868,177         
12/31/18 1,268,731        41,400          48,805              -                       -                                71,580              (38,355)    1,392,161      
12/31/17 1,259,717        42,477          45,829              -                       -                                (42,041)            (37,251)    1,268,731      


Schedule of Covered Payroll
Firemen's Pension Plan
Year Ended December 31, 2020


Total Pension
Liability as a


Percentage of
Fiscal Total Pension Covered Covered


Year Ending Liability Payroll Payroll


12/31/20 1,067,144$      87,401$        1221%


12/31/19 868,177           92,307          941%


12/31/18 1,392,161        102,773        1355%
12/31/17 1,268,731        93,830          1352%


See notes to the required supplementary information
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Budgetary Information


Budgetary information is derived from the annual operating budget and is presented using the same basis of
accounting for each fund as described in Note 1. 


Department heads submit budget requests by mid-August. The mayor and finance director produce the
executive budget, which is reviewed with the finance committee in mid-September. The City Council then
reviews the budget and holds a public hearing. Council adoption of the budget follows the public hearing,
usually in November.. Department heads have the authority to make budget transfers within their own
department, except for wage accounts and capital outlay items. Council action is required for adjustments to
wage and outlay accounts, and to change a department's total budget.


Appropriations lapse at year-end unless specifically carried over. There were no carryovers to the following
year. Budgets are adopted at the department level of expenditure. 


Wisconsin Retirement System


The amounts determined for each fiscal year were determined as of the calendar year-end and occurred within
the fiscal year.


The City is required to present the last ten years of data; however accounting standards allow the presentation
of as many years as are available until ten fiscal years are presented.


Changes in benefit terms. There were no changes of benefit terms for any participating employer in the
Wisconsin Retirement System.


Changes in assumptions. No significant change in assumptions were noted from the prior year. 


Firemen's Pension Plan


The amounts determined for each fiscal year were determined as of the calendar year-end and occurred within
the fiscal year.


The city is required to present the last ten years of data; however, accounting standards allow the presentation
of as many years as are available until ten fiscal years are presented.


Changes in benefit terms. There were no changes of benefit terms


Changes in assumptions. Discount rate changed from 4.10 percent to 2.74 percent.
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City of Stoughton
Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
December 31, 2020


Special Revenue Funds


Library Ambulance Opera House
Opera House


Repair
Township
Outreach


Assets
Cash and investments $ 303,609 $ 18,258 $ - $ 6,778 $ 10,698
Receivables (net):


Taxes - - - - -
Accounts - - 136,354 - 2,000
Special assessments - - - - -
Loans - - - - -


Prepaid items - - 67,850 - -


Total assets $ 303,609 $ 18,258 $ 204,204 $ 6,778 $ 12,698


Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources and Fund Balances


Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 4,180 $ - $ 87,773 $ - $ -
Accrued liabilities 19,479 - 5,916 - 272
Other liabilities - - 258,087 - -
Due to other funds - - 80,947 - -
Advances from other funds - - - - -


Total liabilities 23,659 - 432,723 - 272


Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unearned revenues - - - - -
Unavailable revenues - - - - -


Total deferred inflows of
resources - - - - -


Fund Balances (Deficit)
Nonspendable - - 67,850 - -
Restricted 279,950 - - - -
Committed - 18,258 - 6,778 12,426
Assigned - - - - -
Unassigned (deficit) - - (296,369) - -


Total fund balances
(deficit) 279,950 18,258 (228,519) 6,778 12,426


Total liabilities, deferred
inflows of resources
and fund balances $ 303,609 $ 18,258 $ 204,204 $ 6,778 $ 12,698
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Special Revenue Funds


Tourism
Seniors in


Need Food Pantry Landmarks


Fire
Department


Special
Senior Center
Wood Shop


Senior Center
Special


$ 24,780 $ 51,885 $ 303,120 $ 1,413 $ 39,596 $ 8,689 $ 512,887


- - - - - - -
11,457 - - - - - -


- - - - - - -
- - - - - - -
- - - - - - -


$ 36,237 $ 51,885 $ 303,120 $ 1,413 $ 39,596 $ 8,689 $ 512,887


$ 10,311 $ - $ 6,712 $ 3,549 $ - $ - $ -
- - - - - - -
- - - - - - -
- - - - - - -
- - - - - - -


10,311 - 6,712 3,549 - - -


- - - - - - -
- - - - - - -


- - - - - - -


- - - - - - -
- - - - - - -


25,926 51,885 296,408 - 39,596 8,689 512,887
- - - - - - -
- - - (2,136) - - -


25,926 51,885 296,408 (2,136) 39,596 8,689 512,887


$ 36,237 $ 51,885 $ 303,120 $ 1,413 $ 39,596 $ 8,689 $ 512,887
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City of Stoughton
Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
December 31, 2020


Special Revenue Funds


Economic
Development


Redevelop-
ment Authority


Special
Assessments CDBG K9 Unit


Assets
Cash and investments $ - $ 3,302 $ 347,133 $ - $ 13,688
Receivables (net):


Taxes - - 120,945 - -
Accounts - - 334 - -
Special assessments - - 641,630 - -
Loans - - - - -


Prepaid items - - - - -


Total assets $ - $ 3,302 $ 1,110,042 $ - $ 13,688


Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources and Fund Balances


Liabilities
Accounts payable $ - $ 3,302 $ 14,485 $ - $ -
Accrued liabilities - - - - -
Other liabilities - - - - -
Due to other funds - - 48,931 - -
Advances from other funds - - - - -


Total liabilities - 3,302 63,416 - -


Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unearned revenues - - - - -
Unavailable revenues - - 641,630 - -


Total deferred inflows of
resources - - 641,630 - -


Fund Balances (Deficit)
Nonspendable - - - - -
Restricted - - - - -
Committed - - 404,996 - 13,688
Assigned - - - - -
Unassigned (deficit) - - - - -


Total fund balances
(deficit) - - 404,996 - 13,688


Total liabilities, deferred
inflows of resources
and fund balances $ - $ 3,302 $ 1,110,042 $ - $ 13,688
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Special Revenue Funds Capital Projects Funds


Tree
Commission Cemetery


Revolving
Loan Fund


Firemen's
Pension Fund Refuse Fund


Fire
Equipment


Park
Acquisition


$ 4,982 $ 24,300 $ 37,933 $ 877,271 $ 69,855 $ 16,609 $ 485,449


- - - - 819,710 - -
- - 10,865 - - - 405
- - - - - - -
- - 207,533 - - - -
- - - - - - -


$ 4,982 $ 24,300 $ 256,331 $ 877,271 $ 889,565 $ 16,609 $ 485,854


$ - $ - $ 2,000 $ - $ 65,390 $ - $ -
- - - - 79 - -
- - - - - - -
- - - - - - -
- - - - - - -


- - 2,000 - 65,469 - -


- - - - 819,710 - -
- - - - - - -


- - - - 819,710 - -


- - - - - - -
- - - 877,271 - - 485,854


4,982 24,300 254,331 - 4,386 - -
- - - - - 16,609 -
- - - - - - -


4,982 24,300 254,331 877,271 4,386 16,609 485,854


$ 4,982 $ 24,300 $ 256,331 $ 877,271 $ 889,565 $ 16,609 $ 485,854
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City of Stoughton
Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
December 31, 2020


Capital Projects Funds


TIF District No.
3


TIF District No.
4


TIF District No.
5


TIF District No.
6


TIF District No.
7


Assets
Cash and investments $ 368,038 $ 267,376 $ 70,754 $ 682,981 $ 653,977
Receivables (net):


Taxes 512,638 174,190 49,621 149,306 762,486
Accounts - - - - 41,106
Special assessments - - - - -
Loans - - - - -


Prepaid items - - - - -


Total assets $ 880,676 $ 441,566 $ 120,375 $ 832,287 $ 1,457,569


Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources and Fund Balances


Liabilities
Accounts payable $ - $ 64,975 $ - $ 36,329 $ 3,545
Accrued liabilities - - - - -
Other liabilities - - - - -
Due to other funds - - - - -
Advances from other funds - - 761,320 140,399 -


Total liabilities - 64,975 761,320 176,728 3,545


Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unearned revenues 512,638 174,190 49,621 149,306 778,328
Unavailable revenues - - - - -


Total deferred inflows of
resources 512,638 174,190 49,621 149,306 778,328


Fund Balances (Deficit)
Nonspendable - - - - -
Restricted 368,038 202,401 - 506,253 675,696
Committed - - - - -
Assigned - - - - -
Unassigned (deficit) - - (690,566) - -


Total fund balances
(deficit) 368,038 202,401 (690,566) 506,253 675,696


Total liabilities, deferred
inflows of resources
and fund balances $ 880,676 $ 441,566 $ 120,375 $ 832,287 $ 1,457,569
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Capital Projects Funds


TIF District No.
8


Equipment
Replacement


Building
Maintenance Outlay Technology


Total Nonmajor
Governmental


Funds


$ 187,496 $ 276,260 $ 524,710 $ 733,721 $ 95,146 $ 7,022,694


30,337 - - - - 2,619,233
37,950 - 8,927 - - 249,398


- - - - - 641,630
- - - - - 207,533


529 - - - - 68,379


$ 256,312 $ 276,260 $ 533,637 $ 733,721 $ 95,146 $ 10,808,867


$ 22,051 $ 24,386 $ 80 $ 155,429 $ - $ 504,497
- - - - - 25,746
- - - - - 258,087
- - - - - 129,878


144,304 - - - - 1,046,023


166,355 24,386 80 155,429 - 1,964,231


114,826 - - - - 2,598,619
37,950 - - - - 679,580


152,776 - - - - 3,278,199


529 - - - - 68,379
- - - - - 3,395,463
- - - - - 1,679,536
- 251,874 533,557 578,292 95,146 1,475,478


(63,348) - - - - (1,052,419)


(62,819) 251,874 533,557 578,292 95,146 5,566,437


$ 256,312 $ 276,260 $ 533,637 $ 733,721 $ 95,146 $ 10,808,867
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City of Stoughton
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balances
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2020


Special Revenue Funds


Library Ambulance Opera House
Opera House


Repair
Township
Outreach


Revenues
Taxes $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
Intergovernmental 244,652 - 136,555 - 7,237
Public charges for services 7,158 - 204,366 - -
Intergovernmental charges for


services - - - - -
Special assessments - - - - -
Investment income 1,228 42 16 33 24
Miscellaneous revenues 28,981 4,412 7,182 - 2,500


Total revenues 282,019 4,454 348,119 33 9,761


Expenditures
Current:


General government - - - - -
Public safety - 4,017 - - -
Public works - - - - -
Culture, recreation and


education 880,161 - 480,214 - 7,922
Conservation and development - - - - -


Capital Outlay - - - - -
Debt service:


Interest and fiscal charges - - - - -


Total expenditures 880,161 4,017 480,214 - 7,922


Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over
expenditures (598,142) 437 (132,095) 33 1,839


Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Debt issued - - - - -
Premium on debt - - - - -
Sales of fixed assets - - - - -
Transfers in 623,000 - 182,000 - -
Transfers out - - - - -


Total other financing
sources (uses) 623,000 - 182,000 - -


Net change in fund
balances 24,858 437 49,905 33 1,839


Fund Balances, Beginning 255,092 17,821 (278,424) 6,745 10,587


Fund Balances, Ending $ 279,950 $ 18,258 $ (228,519) $ 6,778 $ 12,426
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Special Revenue Funds


Tourism
Seniors in


Need Food Pantry Landmarks


Fire
Department


Special
Senior Center
Wood Shop


Senior Center
Special


$ 37,704 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
- - - - - - -
- - - - - - -


- - - - - - -
- - - - - - -


64 199 603 8 180 16 11,837
- 12,360 177,275 - 2,590 2,090 26,115


37,768 12,559 177,878 8 2,770 2,106 37,952


- - - - - - -
- - - - 1,173 - -
- - - - - - -


33,934 18,565 53,583 7,810 - 85 2,107
- - - - - - -
- - - - 25,407 - -


- - - - - - -


33,934 18,565 53,583 7,810 26,580 85 2,107


3,834 (6,006) 124,295 (7,802) (23,810) 2,021 35,845


- - - - - - -
- - - - - - -
- - - - - - -
- - - 7,500 - - -


(3,770) - - - - - -


(3,770) - - 7,500 - - -


64 (6,006) 124,295 (302) (23,810) 2,021 35,845


25,862 57,891 172,113 (1,834) 63,406 6,668 477,042


$ 25,926 $ 51,885 $ 296,408 $ (2,136) $ 39,596 $ 8,689 $ 512,887
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City of Stoughton
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balances
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2020


Special Revenue Funds


Economic
Development


Redevelopmen
t Authority


Special
Assessments CDBG K9 Unit


Revenues
Taxes $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
Intergovernmental - - - - -
Public charges for services - - - - -
Intergovernmental charges for


services - - - - -
Special assessments - - 229,285 - -
Investment income 18 17 13,583 - 42
Miscellaneous revenues - - - - 2,593


Total revenues 18 17 242,868 - 2,635


Expenditures
Current:


General government - - - - -
Public safety - - - - 6,679
Public works - - - - -
Culture, recreation and


education - - - - -
Conservation and development 15,274 19,172 - - -


Capital Outlay - - - - -
Debt service:


Interest and fiscal charges - - - - -


Total expenditures 15,274 19,172 - - 6,679


Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over
expenditures (15,256) (19,155) 242,868 - (4,044)


Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Debt issued - - - - -
Premium on debt - - - - -
Sales of fixed assets - - - - -
Transfers in 15,256 86,071 - - -
Transfers out - - (200,000) (6,453) -


Total other financing
sources (uses) 15,256 86,071 (200,000) (6,453) -


Net change in fund
balances - 66,916 42,868 (6,453) (4,044)


Fund Balances, Beginning - (66,916) 362,128 6,453 17,732


Fund Balances, Ending $ - $ - $ 404,996 $ - $ 13,688
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Capital Projects Funds Capital Projects Funds


Tree
Commission Cemetery


Revolving
Loan Fund


Firemen's
Pension Fund Refuse Fund


Fire
Equipment


Park
Acquisition


$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
- - - - - - -
- - - - 792,968 - 37,148


- - - - - - -
- - - - - - -


10 146 4,973 5,356 532 72 1,867
741 - - 23,723 - - 6,362


751 146 4,973 29,079 793,500 72 45,377


- - - - - - -
- - - - - - -
- - - - 789,114 - -


- 4,089 - - - - 17,612
235 - 6,000 - - - -


- - - - - 4,246 -


- - - - - - -


235 4,089 6,000 - 789,114 4,246 17,612


516 (3,943) (1,027) 29,079 4,386 (4,174) 27,765


- - - - - - -
- - - - - - -
- - - - - - -
- - 135,000 - - - -
- - - - - - -


- - 135,000 - - - -


516 (3,943) 133,973 29,079 4,386 (4,174) 27,765


4,466 28,243 120,358 848,192 - 20,783 458,089


$ 4,982 $ 24,300 $ 254,331 $ 877,271 $ 4,386 $ 16,609 $ 485,854
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City of Stoughton
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balances
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2020


Capital Projects Funds


TIF District No.
3


TIF District No.
4


TIF District No.
5


TIF District No.
6


TIF District No.
7


Revenues
Taxes $ 494,843 $ 180,369 $ 50,678 $ 24,831 $ 546,395
Intergovernmental 12,773 11,644 39,592 - -
Public charges for services - - - - -
Intergovernmental charges for


services - - - - -
Special assessments - - - - -
Investment income 1,665 5,460 229 8,488 2,405
Miscellaneous revenues - 39,000 - 51,694 32,914


Total revenues 509,281 236,473 90,499 85,013 581,714


Expenditures
Current:


General government - - - - -
Public safety - - - - -
Public works - - - - -
Culture, recreation and


education - - - - -
Conservation and development - - - 5,790 10,450


Capital Outlay 950 916,195 950 742,572 -
Debt service:


Interest and fiscal charges - - - - -


Total expenditures 950 916,195 950 748,362 10,450


Excess (deficiency) of
revenues over
expenditures 508,331 (679,722) 89,549 (663,349) 571,264


Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Debt issued - - - - -
Premium on debt - - - - -
Sales of fixed assets - - - 173,230 -
Transfers in - - - - -
Transfers out (433,029) (236,625) (102,521) (70,138) (333,975)


Total other financing
sources (uses) (433,029) (236,625) (102,521) 103,092 (333,975)


Net change in fund
balances 75,302 (916,347) (12,972) (560,257) 237,289


Fund Balances, Beginning 292,736 1,118,748 (677,594) 1,066,510 438,407


Fund Balances, Ending $ 368,038 $ 202,401 $ (690,566) $ 506,253 $ 675,696
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Capital Projects Funds


TIF District No.
8


Equipment
Replacement


Building
Maintenance Outlay Technology


Total Nonmajor
Governmental


Funds


$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 1,334,820
95,500 - - 23,215 - 571,168


- - - - - 1,041,640


- 73,858 - - - 73,858
- - - - - 229,285


289 750 459 3,525 - 64,136
- - 180,368 2,500 - 603,400


95,789 74,608 180,827 29,240 - 3,918,307


- - 174,983 - 5,248 180,231
- - - - - 11,869
- - - - - 789,114


- - - - - 1,506,082
2,700 - - - - 59,621


121,939 570,502 - 1,527,213 - 3,909,974


- - - 17,869 - 17,869


124,639 570,502 174,983 1,545,082 5,248 6,474,760


(28,850) (495,894) 5,844 (1,515,842) (5,248) (2,556,453)


- - - 636,805 - 636,805
- - - 5,423 - 5,423
- - - 44,374 - 217,604
- 220,000 - 100,000 - 1,368,827


(17,288) - (40,000) - - (1,443,799)


(17,288) 220,000 (40,000) 786,602 - 784,860


(46,138) (275,894) (34,156) (729,240) (5,248) (1,771,593)


(16,681) 527,768 567,713 1,307,532 100,394 7,338,030


$ (62,819) $ 251,874 $ 533,557 $ 578,292 $ 95,146 $ 5,566,437
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City of Stoughton
Combining Statement of Net Position
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds
December 31, 2020


Storm Sewer EMS


Total Nonmajor
Enterprise


Funds
Assets


Current assets:
Cash and investments $ 64,153 $ 409,270 $ 473,423
Receivables 262,134 202,557 464,691
Due from other funds 51,717 - 51,717


Total current assets 378,004 611,827 989,831


Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets:


Land 9,986 - 9,986
Property and equipment 5,973,935 2,181,896 8,155,831


Less Accumulated depreciation (649,850) (1,042,050) (1,691,900)
Restricted assets:


Net pension asset - 23,504 23,504


Total noncurrent assets 5,334,071 1,163,350 6,497,421


Total assets 5,712,075 1,775,177 7,487,252


Deferred Outflows of 
Resources
Pension related amounts - 54,345 54,345


Total deferred outflows of resources - 54,345 54,345


Liabilities
Current liabilities:


Accounts payable 28,418 20,776 49,194
Accrued liabilities 18,269 14,589 32,858
Due to other funds - 305,325 305,325
Current portion of general obligation debt 235,916 - 235,916


Total current liabilities 282,603 340,690 623,293


Noncurrent liabilities:
Long-term debt:


General obligation debt payable 1,449,614 - 1,449,614
Compensated absences - 31,442 31,442


:


Total noncurrent liabilities 1,449,614 31,442 1,481,056


Total liabilities 1,732,217 372,132 2,104,349


Deferred Inflows of Resources
Pension related amounts - 73,261 73,261


Total deferred inflows of resources - 73,261 73,261


Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 3,674,159 1,139,846 4,814,005


Pension - 23,504 23,504
Unrestricted 305,699 220,779 526,478


Total net position $ 3,979,858 $ 1,384,129 $ 5,363,987


81







City of Stoughton
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Fund Net Position
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2020


Storm Sewer EMS


Total
Nonmajor
Enterprise


Funds


Operating Revenues
Charges for services $ 742,720 $ 732,781 $ 1,475,501


Total operating revenues 742,720 732,781 1,475,501


Operating Expenses
Operation and maintenance 371,141 544,362 915,503
Depreciation expense 208,233 93,284 301,517


Total operating expenses 579,374 637,646 1,217,020


Operating income 163,346 95,135 258,481


Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Investment income 1,426 1,107 2,533
Interest and fiscal charges (44,270) (990) (45,260)
Interest subsidy - 1,420 1,420
Intergovernmental grants - 38,026 38,026


Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (42,844) 39,563 (3,281)


Net Income Before Contributions and Transfers 120,502 134,698 255,200


Contributions and Transfers
Contributions in aid of construction 260,640 - 260,640
Capital contributions - city 158,017 - 158,017
Transfers in - 25,000 25,000


Total contributions and transfers 418,657 25,000 443,657


Change in net position 539,159 159,698 698,857


Net Position, Beginning 3,440,699 1,224,431 4,665,130


Net Position, Ending $ 3,979,858 $ 1,384,129 $ 5,363,987


82







City of Stoughton
Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2020


Storm Sewer EMS Total


Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Received from customers $ 742,057 $ 702,598 $ 1,444,655
Paid to suppliers for goods and services (315,743) (217,063) (532,806)
Paid to employees for services (173,906) (319,613) (493,519)


Net cash flows from operating activities 252,408 165,922 418,330


Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Investment income 1,426 1,107 2,533


Net cash flows from investing activities 1,426 1,107 2,533


Cash Flows From Noncapital Financing Activities
Transfers - 25,000 25,000
Repayment of due to other funds - (1,420) (1,420)


Net cash flows from noncapital financing activities - 23,580 23,580


Cash Flows From Capital and Related Financing Activities
Debt issued 410,000 - 410,000
Debt retired (216,562) (135,000) (351,562)
Interest paid (45,673) (2,970) (48,643)
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (804,848) - (804,848)


Net cash flows from capital and related financing activities (657,083) (137,970) (795,053)


Net change in cash and cash equivalents (403,249) 52,639 (350,610)


Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning 467,402 356,631 824,033


Cash and Cash Equivalents, Ending $ 64,153 $ 409,270 $ 473,423
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City of Stoughton
Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds
Year Ended December 31, 2020


Storm Sewer EMS Total


Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash Flows
from Operating Activities
Operating income $ 163,346 $ 95,135 $ 258,481
Nonoperation revenue - 39,446 39,446
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash flows


from operating activities:
Depreciation 208,233 93,284 301,517


Changes in assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities
and deferred inflows of resources:
Customer accounts receivable 3,852 - 3,852
Other accounts receivable - (69,629) (69,629)
Due from other funds (4,515) - (4,515)
Compensated absences - (6,501) (6,501)
Accounts payable (119,853) 11,363 (108,490)
Other current liabilities 1,345 2,052 3,397
Pension related deferrals and liabilities - 772 772


Net cash flows from operating activities $ 252,408 $ 165,922 $ 418,330


Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents to the
Statement of Net Position
Cash and investments $ 64,153 $ 409,270 $ 473,423


Cash and cash equivalents $ 64,153 $ 409,270 $ 473,423


Noncash Capital and Related Financing Activities
Contributed assets $ 158,017 $ -
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CITY OF STOUGHTON 
FINANCE DEPARTMENT 


207 S Forrest, Stoughton, WI 53589 
 


(608) 873-6677     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 
 
 
 
 
 
Date:  May 20, 2021 
 
To:  Finance Committee  
 
From:  Jamin Friedl 
   
Subject: Funding of Youth Center Access Control 
 
The Stoughton Area Youth Center has requested funding from the City to cover 50% of the costs 
associated with installing an access control system. The installation of the fob readers and electrical 
work has been quoted a total cost of $9,618. The City’s share of this cost would be $4,809.  
 
Based on the analysis of the Building Maintenance Fund through 4/30/21, there are sufficient funds 
available to cover this cost if the City chooses to do so.   
 
 
Respectfully, 
 
Jamin Friedl 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





















PROPOSAL 


1768 KAASE ROAD 


STOUGHTON, WI 53589 


p  608.205.9999 


f   608.205.9998 


WWW.NOSHORTSELECTRIC.NET 


Date:  5-16-21 


Submitted By:  Brett Hanson Customer Contact: 


Dan Glynn 


City of Stoughton 


Job Location: 


Stoughton Youth Center 


 


 


Proposal may be withdrawn by us if 


not accepted within 30 days. 


No Shorts Electric, LLC is pleased to have the opportunity to bid on the work stated below. We propose to: 


 


Install provided wiring for 2 key fob readers at the youth center 


Wiring will need to run from the data room on the first floor to each of the 2 selected doors and to 2 


readers mounted outside the doors 


There will be drywall that will need to be repaired as part of this job which is not included in the price 


This bid assumes the following: 


The door frames are hollow and wires can be fished down them 


New door strikes will be cut in before we arrive at the job so we know where wires will need to be run 


Key fob readers themselves will be mounted by others and strike final connections by others as well 


Price of: $2000.00 


 


The inspector may require additional work that can be done on a time and material basis. 


 
Acceptance of Proposal – The above prices, specifications and conditions are satisfactory and are hereby accepted.  No Shorts 


Electric, LLC is authorized to complete the work as described.  If accepted please send a signed copy and a deposit of ½ of the 


total. Thank you for your business. 


Date of Acceptance _________________   Customer Signature ______________________________________________ 







2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
Forecasted Beginning Balance 533,557$      90,157$       157,657$      220,657$         275,657$      
Bldg Maint Expenditures (209,500)$     (72,500)$      (77,000)$      (85,000)$         (25,000)$      
Annual Funding 140,000$      140,000$      140,000$      140,000$         140,000$      
Ending Balance 157,657$      220,657$      275,657$         390,657$      


12/31/20 Balance 533,557$      


2021 Projects Spent in 2020 -$            


2021 Projects Spent in 2021 (8,715)$        


Pre-2021 Carryovers Spent in 2021 -$            


Non-Project Costs in 2021 -$            


Remaining 2021 CIP Budget (200,785)$     


Remaining Pre-2020 Carryover Budget (323,900)$     


Minimum Balance Requirement (50,000)$      


Forecasted 12/31/21 Fund Balance 90,157$       


Building Maintenance Funding Forecast


12/31/20 Fund Balance 
Updated through 4/30/21





		YC Key FOB

		20210520101822384

		Youth center key fob reader

		2021-2025 CIP Summary - Working Document






 
 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON 
FINANCE DEPARTMENT 


207 S Forrest, Stoughton, WI 53589 
 


(608) 873-6677     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 
 
 
 
 
 
Date:  May 21, 2021 
 
To:  Finance Committee  
 
From:  Jamin Friedl 
   
Subject: Police Department Speed Board Request 
 
As noted below in Chief Leck’s memo, the Police Department is requesting funding to replace the 
existing speed board, which has stopped functioning. 
 
The City budgeted additional funds in Contingency to account for any lingering COVID impacts, 
which have not occurred. With that said, the Finance Department recommends utilizing 
Contingency funds to fulfill this request. Should the City decide to use Contingency Funds for this 
request, the available balance will be nearly identical to what was available last year at this time.  
 
 
Respectfully, 
 
Jamin Friedl 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





100-59200-50930


2021 BUDGET 100,000$                       


AMENDMENT REASON
10/27/2020 Liquor License Revocation Legal Fees (3,105)$                          
2/9/2021 RDA Grant Writing Services (675)$                             


4/30/2021 96,220$                         


CONTINGENCY ACCOUNT EARMARKED


AMENDMENT REASON
10/27/2020 Liquor License Revocation Legal Fees (5,792)$                          Remaining from 2020
2/9/2021 RDA Grant Writing Services (1,825)$                          


Speed Board (31,760)$                        Pending Decision


AVAILABLE BALANCE @ 4/30/21 56,843$                         


AVAILABLE BALANCE @ 4/30/20 58,646$                         







 


  1 


Memorandum 


To: Mayor Swadley  


                  Finance Director Friedl                


From: Chief Greg Leck 


Date: 5/21/2021 


Re: Traffic Speed Board Replacement  


              As requested, here is the additional information regarding the Traffic Speed Board.  As I  
              previously reported, the department’s current Speed Board has stopped functioning and                  
              is no longer repairable.  The current Board is almost twenty years old and parts are no  
              longer available.   
 
              For years the department has used the Traffic Speed Board regularly to help address  
              speeding concerns in throughout the City.  During weather permitted months, the Speed  
              Board is in almost continual in use only coming back into the department for charging.   
              The Board is regularly requested by citizens to address neighborhood speeding concerns.   
 
             Additionally, the Speed Board has traffic counting capabilities that allow us too quickly  
             gather traffic numbers and peak times to address specific traffic issues.  The Speed Board   
             provides the department with information that either confirms a traffic problem or shows  
             that the traffic issues are isolated. 
 
             The new Speed Board will have advanced features to allow the department to better 
             analyze traffic issues with real time data.  Further, this new Speed Board will have the   
             capabilities to be upgraded as technology changes. 
 
             Thank you for your consideration. 
 
 
                Respectfully, 
 
 
                Greg Leck            
                Chief of Police 







QUOTE Q-55833


Questions 
contact:


DATE:  12/14/2020 PAG
E 
NO:   
1Mail Purchase 


Orders to:        
3100 Research Dr. 
State College, PA 
16801


 All Traffic Solutions Inc.
 12950 Worldgate Dr #310
 Herndon, VA 20170
 Phone: 814-237-9005
 Fax: 814-237-9006
DUNS #: 001225114
Tax ID: 25-1887906
CAGE Code: 34FQ5


Contract:


MANUFACTURER:
All Traffic Solutions 
James Cole
x 
jcole@alltrafficsolutions.com


Independent Sales Rep:


BILL TO: SHIP TO:
City of Stoughton
321 South Fourth St 
Stoughton WI 53589


Billing Contact: 0034u00002YOTYoAAP


City of Stoughton
321 South Fourth St
Stoughton WI 53589
Attn: Allen Adams


PAYMENT 
TERMS:  
Net 30


CUSTOMER:  City of 
Stoughton


CONTACT:6082097538 ext, 0


ITEM NO: DESCRIPTION: QTY: EACH: EXT. 
PRICE:


4000745 SpeedAlert 24 Radar Message Sign (RMS); base 
unit (select mount separately)


1 $9,050.00 $9,050.00


4000874 All Options Activation: Bluetooth, Traffic Data, 
Violator Alert, Pictures, ($3000 Value, requires 
Traffic or Message Suite)


1 $0.00 $0.00


4000636 Trailer Battery kit for ATS-5, 470Ah deep cycle 
batteries w/cover, hold down, cables& hdwr (iA24, 
SA24)


1 $990.00 $990.00


4000740 Trailer Certificate of Origin 1 $0.00 $0.00


4000754 USB cable, 16ft, extra long for trailer or pole 1 $60.00 $60.00


4000173 Trailer, ATS-5 (select power separately) 1 $3,950.00 $3,950.00


4000781 ALPR Camera and Battery Enclosure for ATS-5, 
incl 470Ah Batteries, (requires 40A charger, not 
incl.)


1 $2,350.00 $2,350.00


4000836 ALPR Trailer Charger, 40A; for 940Ah battery 
capacity


1 $600.00 $600.00


4001178 Genetec Sharp V ALPR System for ATS-5 Trailer 
with power supply and modem


1 $6,950.00 $6,950.00


4000647 App, Traffic Suite (12mo); Equip Mgmt, Reporting, 
Image Mgmt, Alerts, Mapping and PremierCare


1 $1,500.00 $1,500.00







4001179 App, Hosted Genetec Security Center Software for 
Sharp V (12mos)


1 $3,950.00 $3,950.00


4000278 Solar panel, 120W: includes bracket for ATS-5 
trailer and harness


1 $1,200.00 $1,200.00


4100557 hrns, Power cord, iA w/ quick connects for trailer 1 $60.00 $60.00


4001299 3 Year Warranty 1 $0.00 $0.00


4000641 Shipping and Handling Common Carrier 1 $1,100.00 $1,100.00


SALES 
AMOUNT:


$31,760.00Special Notes:


TOTAL 
USD:


$31,760.00


Duration:  This quote is good for 60 days from date of issue.
Shipping Notes:  All shipments shall be FOB shipper. Shipping charges shall be additional unless listed on quote.


Taxes:  Taxes are not included in quote.  Please provide a tax-exempt certificate or sales tax will be applied.
Warranty:  Unless otherwise indicated, all products have a  one year warranty from date of sale.  Warranty extensions are a component of some 
applications that are available at time of purchase. A Finance Charge of 1.5% per month will be applied to overdue balances. GSA GS-07F-6092R


Authorization:  By Signing below, I indicate that my organization does not require a purchase order and I am 
authorized to commit my organization to this order.


Print Name, Title                        Signature                                                          Date                 


\fullname1\ , \title1\ \signature1\ \date1\







QUOTE Q-55842


Questions 
contact:


DATE:  12/14/2020 PAG
E 
NO:   
1Mail Purchase 


Orders to:        
3100 Research Dr. 
State College, PA 
16801


 All Traffic Solutions Inc.
 12950 Worldgate Dr #310
 Herndon, VA 20170
 Phone: 814-237-9005
 Fax: 814-237-9006
DUNS #: 001225114
Tax ID: 25-1887906
CAGE Code: 34FQ5


Contract:


MANUFACTURER:
All Traffic Solutions 
James Cole
x 
jcole@alltrafficsolutions.com


Independent Sales Rep:


BILL TO: SHIP TO:
City of Stoughton
321 South Fourth St 
Stoughton WI 53589


Billing Contact: 003C000001QOfbVIAT


City of Stoughton
321 South Fourth St
Stoughton WI 53589
Attn: Greg Leck


PAYMENT 
TERMS:  
Net 30


CUSTOMER:  City of 
Stoughton


CONTACT:(608) 873-3374 ext, 0


ITEM NO: DESCRIPTION: QTY: EACH: EXT. 
PRICE:


4000745 SpeedAlert 24 Radar Message Sign (RMS); base 
unit (select mount separately)


1 $9,050.00 $9,050.00


4000647 App, Traffic Suite (12mo); Equip Mgmt, Reporting, 
Image Mgmt, Alerts, Mapping and PremierCare


1 $1,500.00 $1,500.00


4000874 All Options Activation: Bluetooth, Traffic Data, 
Violator Alert, Pictures, ($3000 Value, requires 
Traffic or Message Suite)


1 $0.00 $0.00


4000173 Trailer, ATS-5 (select power separately) 1 $3,950.00 $3,950.00


4100557 hrns, Power cord, iA w/ quick connects for trailer 1 $60.00 $60.00


4001299 3 Year Warranty 1 $0.00 $0.00


4000636 Trailer Battery kit for ATS-5, 470Ah deep cycle 
batteries w/cover, hold down, cables& hdwr (iA24, 
SA24)


1 $990.00 $990.00


4000740 Trailer Certificate of Origin 1 $0.00 $0.00


4000754 USB cable, 16ft, extra long for trailer or pole 1 $60.00 $60.00


4000838 Solar panel, 90W: includes bracket for ATS-5 
trailer and harness


1 $940.00 $940.00


4000641 Shipping and Handling Common Carrier 1 $900.00 $900.00







SALES 
AMOUNT:


$17,450.00Special Notes:


TOTAL 
USD:


$17,450.00


Duration:  This quote is good for 60 days from date of issue.
Shipping Notes:  All shipments shall be FOB shipper. Shipping charges shall be additional unless listed on quote.


Taxes:  Taxes are not included in quote.  Please provide a tax-exempt certificate or sales tax will be applied.
Warranty:  Unless otherwise indicated, all products have a  one year warranty from date of sale.  Warranty extensions are a component of some 
applications that are available at time of purchase. A Finance Charge of 1.5% per month will be applied to overdue balances. GSA GS-07F-6092R


Authorization:  By Signing below, I indicate that my organization does not require a purchase order and I am 
authorized to commit my organization to this order.


Print Name, Title                        Signature                                                          Date                 


\fullname1\ , \title1\ \signature1\ \date1\
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CITY OF STOUGHTON 
FINANCE DEPARTMENT 


207 S Forrest, Stoughton, WI 53589 
 


(608) 873-6677     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Date:  April 22, 2021 
 
To:  Finance Committee  
 
From:  Jamin Friedl 
   
Subject: Waiving/Delaying of Certain License and Permit Fees in 2021 
 
The City of Stoughton Finance Department has been requested to provide budgetary information 
relating to License and Permit revenues to assist the Finance Committee in determining whether 
it would like to investigate waiving or delaying certain fees due to the lingering impacts of 
COVID-19. The next page contains information as it relates to License and Permit revenues as 
follows: 
 


• 2019 Actual and Budget Amounts 
• 2020 Actual and Budget Amounts 
• 2021 Year-to-Date 3/31 Actual and Budget Amounts 


 
City staff is requesting the Finance Committee to consider the pros and cons of waiving/delaying 
certain fees in 2021 and to provide direction to the Finance Department if this matter is to be 
investigated further.  
 
Prior to making a decision to proceed, I wanted to bring to your attention a new program 
established by Public Health Madison and Dane County that will give licensed establishments a 
COVID-19 credit to help rebound from the ongoing pandemic. This 30% credit will provide 
financial assistance to more than 3,500 qualifying establishments in Dane County. 
 
This 30% credit to licensed establishments for the upcoming licensing year will result in a 
$568,000 transfer of funds from Public Health’s reserve fund back to licensed establishments. 
Public Health is offering this credit to show support for operators impacted by the pandemic and 
return some of the licensing fees that operators had previously paid.  
 
Qualifying licenses are associated with food and drink establishments, tattoo and body piercing, 
hotels and tourist rooming houses, bed and breakfast, swimming pools, campgrounds and 
recreational campgrounds. Operators in these categories must renew for the 2021-22 licensing 
year to receive the credit. School and temporary food establishment licenses are excluded from 
this funding. 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





The resolution associated with this program has been referred to the Dane County Personnel and 
Finance Committee. The City of Stoughton Finance Committee might want to follow this action 
closely prior to making a recommendation at the City level.  
 
Respectfully, 
 
Jamin Friedl 
 
 







2021 2021 2020 2020 2019 2019
AMENDED ACTIVITY AMENDED ACTIVITY AMENDED ACTIVITY


DESCRIPTION BUDGET THRU 3/31/21 BUDGET THRU 12/31/20 BUDGET THRU 12/31/19


LIQUOR & MALT BEVERAGE 18,000$                      4,400$                        18,000$                      20,626$                      18,000$                      39,579$                      
OPERATORS 11,000$                      970$                           12,000$                      9,090$                        11,000$                      11,870$                      
CIGARETTE 1,600$                        400$                           1,575$                        1,600$                        1,600$                        1,575$                        
MISC. LICENSE 6,500$                        1,095$                        7,000$                        5,782$                        6,800$                        6,583$                        
DOG 3,400$                        -$                            3,500$                        1,524$                        2,500$                        3,440$                        
BUILDING 75,000$                      8,017$                        75,000$                      84,815$                      90,000$                      67,360$                      
ELECTRICAL 25,000$                      3,432$                        25,000$                      37,694$                      30,000$                      25,105$                      
PLUMBING 15,000$                      2,482$                        15,000$                      21,638$                      18,000$                      17,002$                      
HEATING 12,000$                      2,122$                        12,000$                      26,690$                      15,000$                      13,580$                      
FIRE PROTECTION FEES 5,000$                        368$                           5,000$                        5,202$                        4,000$                        5,865$                        
MISC 28,000$                      6,360$                        25,000$                      44,362$                      25,000$                      37,830$                      


200,500$                    29,645$                      199,075$                    259,023$                    221,900$                    229,789$                    


 MISC - Rezoning, CUP, Site Plan Reviews, Final Plat Reviews, Signage, Fencing, Decks, etc. 


2020 Building, Electrical, Plumbing and Heating exceedance is mainly due to ZinkPower


2020 Misc exceedance is mainly due to the KPW Phase II Final Plat Review


BUDGET REPORT FOR STOUGHTON CITY                                                  
Calculations as of 3/31/2021                                                   
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